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COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND)
(a codperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A. (RABOBANK
INTERNATIONAL EQUITY DERIVATIVES)
(a codperatie tormed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND) AUSTRALIA BRANCH
(Australia Business Number 70 003 917 655)
{a cotperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND) SINGAPORE BRANCH
{Singapore Company Registration Number FO3634W)
{a cooperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

Euro 70,000,000,000
Global Medium-Term Note Programme
Due from seven days 10 perpetuity

SERIES NO: 1588A
TRANCHE NO: 1
£275,000,000 4.875 per cent. Notes 2006 due 10 January 2023

Issue Price: 99.543 per cent.
Barclays Capital
The Royal Bank of Scotland

Rabobank International

The date of these Final Terms is 8 May 2006
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PART A- CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein {save as provided beiow) shall be deemed to be defined as such for the
purpcses of the Conditions (the “Conditions”) sel forth in the Cffering Circular dated 11 July 2005
as supplemented by (i) a supplemental offering circular relating to the terms and conditions of the
notes set out in the offering circular dated 7 October 2003, (ii) a supplemental offering circular
relating to the terms and conditicns of the notes set out in the offering circular dated 15 October
2004 and (i) a supplemental offering circular relating to an addition to the risk factors set forth in
the offering circular dated 11 July 2005, in each case dated 8 September 2005 and (iv) a
supplemental oftering circular relating to an increase of the programme Iimit to Euro
70,000,000,000 dated 21 November 2005 (together, the “Offering Circular’). This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the
Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the “Prospectus Directive") and must be read in
conjunction with the Offering Circular, which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on
the basis of the combination of these Fina! Terms and the Offering Circular. The Offering Circular is
available for viewing at, and copies may be obtained from, Rabobank Nederland at Croeselaan 18,
3521 CB Utrecht, the Netherlands and the principa! office in England of the Arranger and of the
Paying Agent in Luxembourg and Amsterdam.

1 Issuer: Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-
‘ Boerenleenbank B.A. (Rabcbank Nederland)
2 (i) Series Number: 1588A
(i Tranche Number: 1
3 Spccified Currency or Currencies: Pounds sterling ("€")
4 Aggregate Nominal Amdum‘:
(i Tranche: £275,000,000
(i) Series: £275,000,000
5 lssue Price: 99.543 per cent. of the Aggregale Nominal
Amount
6 Specified Denominations: £50,000
7 (i) Issue Date: 10 May 2006
(i1 interest Commencement Not Applicable
Date (if different from the
Issue Date);
8 Maturity Date: 10 January 2023
¢ Domestic Note: (if Domestic Note, No

there will be no gross-up for
withholding tax}

10 Interest Basis: 4.875 per cent. Fixed Rate
11 Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par
12 Change of Interest or Not Applicable

A0B243314/1.0/08 May 2006




Redemption/Payment Basis:
13 Put/Call Options:
14 (0 Status of the Notes:

i Date approval for issuance
of Notes obtained:

15 Method of distribution:

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF
ANY) PAYABLE '

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions
0] Rate of interest:
(i) Interest Payment Date(s):

(i) Fixed Coupon Amounts:

(iv) Broken Amount:

(v) Day Count Fraction
{Condition 1{a)):

{vi) Determination Date(s)

{Condition 1(a)):

Cther terms relating to the
method of calculating
interest for Fixed Rate

Notes:
17 Floating Rate Provisions
18 Zero Coupon Note Provisions
19 index Linked Interest Note
Provisions
20 Equity Linked Interest Note
Provisions
21 Dual Currency Note Provisions

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22 Call Option
23 Put Option
24 Final Redemption Amount (all Notes

except Index Linked Redemption

Not Applicable
Senior

Not Applicable

Syndicated

Applicable

4.875 per cent. per annum payable annually in
arrear

10 January in each year commencing on 10
January 2007 (short first coupon) and ending
on the Maturity Date

£2,437.50 per £50,000 in nominal amount

£1,636.13 per £50,000 in nominal amount in
respect of the Interest Payment Date on 10
January 2007

Actual/Actual-ICMA

Each Interest Payment Date

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

£50,000 per Note of £50,000 specified
denomination

'A0B243314/1.0/08 May 2006




Notes) of Each Note

25 Final Redemption Amount (Equity Not Applicable
Linked Redemption Notes)

26 Fina! Redemption Amount (Index Not Applicable
Linked Redemption Notes)
27 Early Redemption Amount
(i Early Redemption Yes, as set out in the Conditions

Amount(s) of each Note
payable on redemption for
taxation reasons {Condition
7{c)) or an event of default
(Condition 13) andfor the
method of calculating the
same (if required or if
different from that set out in
the Conditions):

(i) Redemption for taxation Yes
reasons permitted on days
other than Interest Payment
Dates (Condition 7(c)):

(iif) Unmatured Coupons to Yes
become void upon early
redemption (Bearer Notes
only) (Condition 10(f)):

(iv) Early Redemption Amount Not Applicable
of each Note payable on
redemption  pursuant to
Condition 7{g):

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO

THE NOTES
28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes
{i) Temporary or permanent Temporary Global Note exchangeable for a
Global Note/Certificate: permanent Global Note which is exchangeable
for Definitive Notes in the limited
circumsiances specified in the permanent
Global Note
(i) Applicable TEFRA D Rules
exemption:
29 Financiaf Centre(s) (Condition London
10(h)) or other special provisions
relating to payment dates:
30 Talons for future Coupons or No

Receipts to be attached to Detinitive

A06243314/1.0/08 May 2006




Notes (and dates on which such
Talons mature):

31 Detais refating to Partly Paid Notes:

amount of each payment
comprising the [ssue Price and date
on which each payment is to be
made and consequences (if any) of
failure to pay, including any right of
the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and
interest due on late payment:

32 Details relating to instaiment Notes:

33 Redenomination, renominalisation
and reconventioning provisions:

34 Consolidation provisions:

35 Other terms or special conditions:
DISTRIBUTION

36 ) if syndicated, names and

addresses of Managers:

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

So long as Bearer Notes are represented by a
permanent Global Note and the permanent
Global Note is held on behalf of Euroclear,
Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other
clearing system, notwithstanding Condition 17,
notices to Noteholders may be given by
delivery of the relevant notice to that clearing
system for communication by it to entitied
accountholders. Any notice thus delivered 1o
that clearing system shall be deemed to have
been given to the Noteholders on the day on
which that notice is delivered to the clearing
system

Barclays Bank PLC

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Whart

London E14 4BB
United Kingdom

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
135 Bishopsgate

L.ondon

ECZM 3UR

United Kingdom

Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-
Beerenleenbank B.A, (Rabebank
International)

Croeselaan 18

A06243314/1.0/08 May 2006




(i) Stabilising Manager (if any):

(i) Dealers’ Commission:

a7 If non-syndicated, name and
address of Dealer:

38 Additional selling restrictions:

39 Subscription period:

GENERAL

40 Additional steps that may only be

laken following approval by an
Extraordinary Resolution in
accordance with Condition 12(a}:

11 The aggregate principal amount of
Notes issued has been translated
into Euro at the rale of 1.44,
producing a sum of {for Notes not
denominated in Euro):

42 In the case of Notes listed on
Eurolist by Euronext Amsterdam
N.V.:

3521 CB Utrecht
The Netherlands

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Combined management, underwriting and
selling commission of 0.175 per cent. of the
Aggregate Nominal Amount of Notes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Euro 396,000,000

Not Applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admilted to trading the issue
of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 70,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note

Programme of the Issuer.

RESPONSIBILITY

The tssuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:
By:

Duly authorised
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PART B — OTHER INFORMATION

1 LISTING
(i) Listing: Luxembourg
(i) Admission {o Trading: Application has been made for the Notes to

be admitted to trading on the Official List of
the Regulated Market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange with effect from 10 May
2006.

iii) Estimate of total expenses related Euro 9,485
to admission to trading:

2 RATING

Rating: The Notes have been rated Aaa, AA+ and
AAA by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
("Moody's"), Fitch Ratings Ltd. (“Fiteh”) and
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
(“Standard & Poor’s"), respectively.

As defined by Moody’s an Aaa rating means
that the Notes are judged to be of the
highest quality, with minimal credit risk. As
defined by Fitch an AA+ rating means that
the Notes are judged to be of a very high
credit quality and denote expectations of low
credit risk. It indicates very strong capacity
for payment of financial commitments and is
not significantly vuinerable to foreseeable
events. As defined by Standard & Poor’s, an
AAA rating means that the Notes has the
highest rating assigned by Standard &
Poar’s and that the Issuer's capacity 1o meet
its financial commitment on the obligation is
extremely strong.

3 NOTIFICATION

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets (Autoriteit Financiéle Markten) has
provided each of the Commission bancaire, financiére et des assurances (CBFA) in
Belgium, Epitroph Kefalaiagoras in Greece, Comision Nacional del Mercado de Valores
(CNMV) in Spain, Autorité des marchés financiers (AMF) in France, lrish Financial
Regulatory Authority in Ireland, Commissione Nazionale per le Societad e la Borsa
(CONSOB) in Italy, Kredittilsynet in Norway, Financial Market Authority (FMA) in Austria,
Rahoitustarkastus in Finland, Finansinspektionen in Sweden, Financial Services Authority
(FSA) in United Kingdom, Commission de surveillance du secteur financier in Luxembourg
and the Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht (BaFin) in Germany with a
certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance

with the Prospectus Directive.

AQ6243314/1.0/08 May 2006
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11

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE OFFER
So far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the Notes has an interest
material to the offer.

REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

() Reasons for the offer: Banking business

(in Estimated net proceeds  £273,262,000

(i) Estimated total £481,250 (comprising selling concession
expenses: and combined management and

underwriting commission only)

YIELD

Indication of yield: 4.859 per cent. semi-annually
This is the yield-to-maturity and is calculated as the
rate of return anticipated on the Notes as if they will be
held until the Maturity Date. The calculation of the
yield-to-maturity takes into account the re-cffer price
of the Notes, the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the
Notes, the Rate of Interest and the time to Maturity. it
is also assumed that all coupons are reinvesied at the
same rate.
The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis
ot the re-offer price of the Notes. It is NOT an
indication of future yield.

HISTORIC INTEREST RATES
Not Applicable

PERFORMANCE OF INDEX/FORMULA, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF
INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING
THE UNDERLYING

Not Applicable

PERFORMANCE OF RATES OF EXCHANGE AND EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT ‘

Not Applicable

PERFORMANCE OF UNDERLYING, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF
INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND INFORMATION CONCERNING THE
UNDERLYING

Not Applicable

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

{0 ISIN Code: XS50253359961

(i)  Common Code: 025335996
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(il Fondscode: Nct Applicable

(iv)  Any clearing system(s) other ~ Not Applicable

than Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg
and the relevant number(s):

V) Delivery: Delivery against payment

(viy  The Agents appainted in Not Applicable

respect of the Notes are:
12 GENERAL

So long as the Notes are represented by a temporary Global Note or permanent Global
Note and the relevant clearing system(s) so permit, the Notes shall be tradeable only in
Nominai Amounts of at least the Specified Denomination and integral multiples of £1,000 in
excess thereof.

in relation to the Notes, should Definitive Notes be required to be issued, a holder who
does not have an integral multiple of the Specified Denomination in his account with the
relevant clearing system(s) at the relevant time may not receive all of his entitlement in the
form of Definitive Notes unless and until such time as his holding becomes an integrai
muitiple of the Specified Denomination.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

By:
Duly autherised

A06243314/1.0/08 May 2006
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COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

(RABOBANK NEDERLAND)
(a codperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A. (RABOBANK
INTERNATIONAL EQUITY DERIVATIVES)
(a coperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
{(RABOBANK NEDERLAND) AUSTRALIA BRANCH
(Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655)
{a cooperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND) SINGAPORE BRANCH
(Singapore Company Registration Number FO3634W)
(a cooperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND)

Euro 70,000,000,000
Global Medium-Term Note Programme
Due from seven days to perpetuity

SERIES NO: 1527A
TRANCHE NO: 2
SEK 250,000,000 3.00 per cent. Notes 2006 due 2011

(to be consolidated and form a single series with the Issuer's
SEK 500,000,000 3.00 per cent. Notes 2006 due 2011
issued on 18 January 2006)

Issue Price: 98.945 per cent.

Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Rabobank International

The date of these Final Terms is 8 May 2008



PART A — CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the
“Conditions”) set forth in the Offering Circular dated 11 July 2005, as supplemented by (i) a
supplemental offering circular refating to the terms and conditions of the notes set out in the
offering circular dated 7 October 2003, (i) a supplemental offering circular relating to the terms and
conditions of the notes set out in the offering circular dated 15 October 2004, (iii) a supplemental
offering circular relating to an addition to the risk factors set forth in the offering circular dated 11
July 2005, in each case dated 8 September 2005 and (iv) a supplemental offering circular relating
to an increase of the programme limit to Euro 70,000,000,00 dated 21 November 2005 (together,
the “Offering Circular”). This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein
for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the
‘Prospectus Directive’) and must be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular, which
constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive. Full information on the
Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final
Terms and the Offering Circular. The Offering Circular is available for viewing at, and copies may
be obtained from, Rabobank Nederland at Croeselaan 18, 3521 CB Utrecht, the Netherlands and
the principal office in England of the Arranger and of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg and
Amsterdam.

1 Issuer: Codperatieve Centraie Raiffeisen-
Boerenleenbank B.A. (Rabobank Nederland)

2 (i) Series Number: 1527A

(ii) Tranche Number: 2
3 .Specified Currency or Currencies: Swedish Krona (“SEK”)
4 Aggregate Nominal Amount:

(i) Tranche: SEK 250,000,000

(to be consolidated and form a single series
with the Issuer's SEK 500,000,000 3.00 per
cent. Notes 2006 due 2011 issued on 18
January 2008 on exchange of the temporary
Globkal Notes for the permanent Global Note
{which is expected to be no less than 40 days
after the Issue Date subject to certification of
non-U.S. beneficial ownership))

(i) Series: SEK 750,000,000

5 Issue Price: 98.945 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal
‘ Amount plus 112 days’ accrued interest from
and including 18 January 2006 to but

excluding 10 May 2006

6 Specified Denominations: SEK 10,000 and SEK 50,000
7 (i Issue Date: 10 May 2008
(ii) Interest Commencement 18 January 2006

Date (if different from the

ADB232315/2.1/08 May 2006 1
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11
12

13
14

15

Issue Date):
Maturity Date:

Domestic Note: (if Domestic Note,
there will be no gross-up for
withholding tax)

{nterest Basis:
Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of Interest or
Redemption/Payment Basis:

Put/Call Options:
(i) Status of the Notes:

(ii) Date approval for issuance
of Notes obtained:

Method of distribution:

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF
ANY) PAYABLE

16

17
18
19

20

21

Fixed Rate Note Provisions

(1) Rate of Interest:

(i) Interest Payment Date(s):

(ii) Fixed Coupon Amounts:

(iv) Broken Amount:

(V) Day Count Fraction
(Condition 1(a)):

{vi) Determination Date(s)
(Condition 1{a)):

(vii)  Other terms relating to the
method of calculating
interest for Fixed Rate
Notes:

Floating Rate Provisions
Zero Coupon Note Provisions

Index Linked interest Note
Provisions

Equity Linked Interest Note
Provisions

Dual Currency Note Provisions

AQ06232315/2.1/08 May 2006

18 January 2011
No

3.00 per cent. Fixed Rate
Redemption at par

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Senior

Not Applicable

Syndicated

Applicable

3.00 per cent. per annum payable annually in
arrear

18 January in each year commencing on 18
January 2007 and ending on the Maturity Date

SEK 300 per SEK 10,000 in nominal amount
and SEK 1,500 per SEK 50,000 in nominal
amount

Not Applicable
Actual/Actual-ICMA

Each Interest Payment Date

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable



PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22 Call Option Not Applicable

23 Put Option Not Applicable

24 Final Redemption Amount (all Notes SEK 10,000 per Note of SEK 10,000 specified
except Equity Linked Redemption denomination and SEK 50,000 per Note of
Notes and index Linked SEK 50,000 specified denomination

Redemption Notes) of Each Note:

25 Final Redemption Amount (Equity Not Applicabie
Linked Redemption Notes)
26 Fina! Redemption Amount (Index Not Applicable
Linked Redemption Notes):
27 Early Redemption Amount
(i) Early Redemption Yes, as set out in the Conditions

Amount(s) of each Note
payable on redemption for
taxation reasons {Condition
7(c)) or an event of default
(Condition 13) and/or the
method of calculating the
same (if required or if
different from that set out in
the Conditions):

(i) Redemption for taxation Yes
reasons permitted on days
other than Interest Payment
Dates (Condition 7(c)):

(iif) Unmatured Coupons to Yes
become wvoid upon early
redemption (Bearer Notes
only) (Condition 10(f)):

(iv) Early Redemption Amount Not Applicable
of each Note payable on
redemption  pursuant to
Condition 7(g):

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO

THE NOTES
28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes
® Temporary or permanent Temporary Global Note which is exchangeable
Global Note/Certificate: for a permanent Giobal Note which s
exchangeable for Definitive Notes in the limited
circumstances specified in the permanent
Global Note
Upon issue of the temporary Global Note, the
temporary ISIN and Common Codes will be
A06232315/2,1/08 May 2006 3



(i) Applicable TEFRA
exemption:

29 Financial Centre(s) (Condition
10(h)) or other special provisions
relating to payment dates;

30 Talons for future Coupons or
Receipts to be attached to Definitive
Notes (and dates on which such
Talons mature):

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Notes:
amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and date
on which each payment is to be
made and conseqguences (if any) of
failure to pay, including any right of
the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and
interest due on late payment:

32 Details relating to Instalment Notes:

33 Redenomination, renominalisation
and reconventioning provisions:

34 Consolidation provisions:

35 Other terms or special conditions:
DISTRIBUTION

36 (i) If syndicated, names and

addresses of Managers:

AD6232315/2.1/08 May 2006

tnose set out in paragraphs 11(i)}(a) and
11(ii){a), respectively, of Part B of these Final
Terms.

Upeon exchange of the temporary Global Note
for the permanent Global Note, the Notes will
be consolidated with and form a single series
with the lissuer's SEK 500,000,000 3.00 per
cent. Notes 2006 due 2011 issued on 18
January 2006 and the ISIN and Common
Codes will be those set out in paragraphs
11(i)(b) and 11(ii)(b), respectively, of Part B to
these Final Terms.

D Rules

Stockholm, TARGET

No

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-
Boerenleenbank B.A. (Rabobank
International)

Crceselaan 18

3521 CB Utrecht

The Nethertands

Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch
Winchester House

1 Great Winchester Street

London EC2N 2DB



United Kingdom
(i) Stabilising Manager (if any):  Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

(1) Dealers’ Commission: Combined management and underwriting
commission of 0.25 per cent. and selling
commission of 1.625 per cent., in each case of
the Aggregate Nominal Amount

37 If non-syndicated, name and Not Applicable
address of Dealer:

38 Additional selling restrictions: Not Applicable

39 Subscription pericd: Not Applicable

GENERAL

40 Additional steps that may only be Not Applicable

taken following approval by an
Extraordinary Resolution in
accordance with Condition 14(a):

41 The aggregate principal amount of Eurc 26,765,750
Notes issued has been translated -
into Euro at the rate of 0.107063,
producing a sum of (for Notes not
denominated in Euro);

42 In the case of Notes listed on Not Applicable
Eurolist by Euronext Amsterdam
NV

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue
of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 70,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note
Programme of the Issuer.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.
Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

By: ! .
y /1'..{-“\

Duly alithorised

A06232315/2.1/08 May 2006 5



PART B - OTHER INFORMATION
1 LISTING
0 Listing:

(i) Admission to Trading:

(iiiy Estimate of total expenses related
to admission to trading:

2 RATING
Rating:

3 NOTIFICATION

Luxembourg

Application has been made for the Notes to
be admitted to trading on the Official List of
the Regulated Market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange with effect from 10 May
2006

The Notes are to be consolidated and form
a single series with the Issuer's SEK
500,000,000 3.00 per cent. Notes 2006 due
2011 issued on 18 January 2006 which are
listed and admitted to trading on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange

Euro 1,975

The Notes have been rated Aaa, AAA and
AA+ by Moody’s I[nvestors Service, [nc.
("Moody's”"), Standard & Poor's Ratings
Services (“Standard & Poor’s”) and by
Fitch Ratings Ltd. (“Fitch”), respectively.

As defined by Moody's an Aaa rating means
that the Notes are judged to be of the
highest quality, with minimal credit risk. As
defined by Standard & Poar’s, an AAA rating
means that the Notes has the highest rating
assigned by Standard & Poor’s and that the
Issuer’'s capacity to meet its financial
commitment on the obligation is extremely
strong. As defined by Fitch an AA+ rating
means that the Notes are judged to be of a
very high credit quality and denote
expectations of low credit risk. 1t indicates
very strong capacity for payment of financial
commitments and is not significantly
vulnerable to foreseeable events.

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets (Autoriteit Financiéle Markten) has
provided each of the Commission bancaire, financiére et des assurances (CBFA) in
Belgium, Epitroph Kefalaiagoras in Greece, Comision Nacional de! Mercado de Valores
(CNMV) in Spain, Aulorité des marchés financiers (AMF) in France, Irish Financial
Regulatory Authority in lreland, Commissione Nazionale per le Societa e /a Borsa
{CONSOB) in ltaly, Kredittisynet in Norway, Financial Market Authority (FMA) in Austria,

Rahoitustarkastus in Finland, Finansinspektionen in Sweden, Financial Services Authority
(FSA) in United Kingdom, Commission de surveillance du secteur financier in Luxembourg

A06232315/2,1/08 May 2006 5]
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and the Bundesanstalt fiir Finanzdienstieistungsaufsicht (BaFin).in Germany with a
certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance
with the Prospectus Directive.

4 INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE OFFER
So far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the Notes has an interest
material to the offer.
5 REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES
(i) Reasons for the offer: Banking business
(ii) Estimated net proceeds  SEK 244,826,370
(iii) Estimated total SEK 4,837,500 (comprising SEK 150,000
expenses: Managers’ expenses and SEK 4,687,500
selling concession and combined
management and underwriting commission)
6 YIELD
indication of yield: 3.244 per cent. per annum
This is the yield-to-maturity and is calculated as the
rate of return anticipated on the Notes as if they will be
held until the Maturity Date. The calculation of the
yield-to-maturity takes into account the Issue Price of
the Notes, the Aggregate Nominal Amount of the
Notes, the Rate of Interest and the time to Maturity. It
is also assumed that all coupons are reinvested at the
same rate.
The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis
of the Issue Price of the Notes. It is NOT an indication
of future yield.
7 HISTORIC INTEREST RATES
Not Applicable
8 PERFORMANCE OF INDEX/FORMULA, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF
INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING
THE UNDERLYING
Not Applicable
9 PERFORMANCE OF RATES OF EXCHANGE AND EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT
Not Applicable
10 PERFORMANCE OF UNDERLYING, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF
INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND INFORMATION CONCERNING THE
UNDERLYING
Not Applicable
11 OPERATIONAL INFORMATION
(i) (a) Temporary ISIN Code: X50253173198
AD6232315/2 1/08 May 2006 7



(iii)
(iv)

(b) Permanent ISIN Code:

(a} Temporary Common Code:
(b) Permanent Common Code:

Fondscode:

Any clearing system(s) other
than Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg and
the relevant number(s):

Delivery:

The Agents appointed in respect
of the Notes are:

Signed on behalf of the [ssuer:

By

Duly authorised

A06232315/2.1/08 May 2006

X50240330232
025317319
024033023

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Delivery against payment

Not Applicable



De voornaamste wijzigingen in deze versie betreffen de volgende:

- Papierladenbakken aparte dialoog: Voor elke printer moet eenmalig via dit scherm de ladenbakken worden ingesteld.
Dit staat beschreven in:
Rabobank Office Help — Gebruik van Rabobank Correspondentie Reeks — Beheer Office onder Instellen Papierladen.
- Repareerknopje toegevoegd. Hiermee kunnen oa de volgende problemen woren opgelost:

Corrupte documenten.

In documenten waarin een inhoudsopgave wordt aangemaakt (Rapport en Handleiding) worden verborgen
bladwijzers aangemaakt. De hoeveelheid verborgen bladwijzers kan zo groot worden, dat het document corrupt
raakt. Deze functie verwijdert deze verborgen bladwijzers. Ze worden vanaf Office versie 3.2 overigens ook
verwijderd wanneer een nieuwe inhoudsopgave wordt aangemaakt.

- Blokhaken in de
documentnaam.

Een document dat wordt geopend vanuit de Raboweb omgeving kan soms blokhaken bevatten in de
documentnaam. De blokhaken worden met deze functie verwijderd.

- : Koppeling met
sjabloon ontbreekt.

Indien van een document de koppeling met het sjabloon is verdwenen, dan wordt in deze functie geprobeerd de
koppeling opnieuw te leggen. Wordt het sjabloon niet gevonden dan wordt de gebruiker in de gelegenheid gesteld
het sjabloon te zoeken. (Het probleem van de verdwenen koppeling komt met name voor als afwisselend via
telewerkportaal en op de werkplek aan een document wordt gewerkt.)

- Bescherming tegen macrovirussen wordt standaard aangevinkt.
- Mogelijkheid om (via Rio) het Emailadres uit de organisatie-gegevens in twee gedeeltes te splitsen.



COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND)
(a cotperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COUPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
- (RABOBANK INTERNATIONAL EQUITY DERIVATES)
{a codperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdem)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
{RABOBANK NEDERLAND) AUSTRALIA BRANCH
(Australian Business Numbar 70 003 $17 655)
(a cotperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND) SINGAPORE BRANCH
(Singapore Company Registration Number FO3634W)
(a codperatie formed under the law of the Netheriands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

Euro 70,000,000,000
Global Medium-Term Note Programme
Due from seven days to perpetuity
COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND})

SERIES NO: 1539A
TRANCHE NO.: 2

JPY 25,000,000,000 0.80 per cent. Fixed Rate Notes 2006 due 2011
(to be consolidated and form a single series with the
JPY 50,000,000,000 0.80 per cent. Fixed Rate Notes 2006 due 2011
issued on 3 February 2006)

Issue Price: 87.126 per cent.

Daiwa Securities SMBC Europe
UBS Investment Bank

The date of these Final Terms is 5 May 2006




PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set
forth in the Offering Circular dated 11 July 2005, as supplemented by (i) a supplemental offering
circular relating to the terms and conditions of the notes set out in the offering circular dated 7
October 2003, (ii) a supplemental offering circular relating to the terms and conditions of the notes
set out in the offering circular dated 15 October 2004, {jii) a supplemental offering circular relating
to an addition to the risk factors set forth in the offering circular dated 11 Juiy 2005, in each case
dated 8 September 2005 and (iv) a supplemental offering circular relating to an increase of the
programme limit to Euro 70,000,000,000 dated 21 November 2005 (together, the “Offering
Circular’), which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive
(Directive 2003/71/EC) (the “Prospectus Directive”). This document constitutes the Final Terms
of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must
_be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the
Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Offering
Circular. The Notas will be issued on the terms of these Final Terms read together with the Offering
Circular. The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms
which, when read together with the Offering Circular, contains all information that is material in the
context of the issue of the Notes. The Offering Circular is available for viewing at, and copies may
be obtained from, Rabobank Nederland at Croeselaan 18, 3521 CB Utrecht, the Netherands, and
the principal office in England of the Arranger and of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg and
Amsterdam, ‘

1 Issuer: Cobperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-
Boerenleenbank B.A. {(Rabobank Nederiand)
2 ()  Series Number: 1539A
(i)  Tranche Number: 2
3 Specified Currency or Currencies: Japanese Yen (“JPY")
4 Aggregate Nominal Amount:
() Series: JPY 75,000,000,000
(i)  Tranche: JPY 25,000,000,000

(to be consolidated and form a single seriss with
the JPY 50,000,000,000 0.80 per cent. Fixed
Rate Notes 2006 due 2011 issued on 3
February 2006 on exchange of the temporary
Global Notes for the permanent Global Note,
which is expected to be no less than 40 days
after the Issue Date subject to certification of
non-U.S. beneficial ownership)

8 Issue Price: 97.128 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount of the Notes plus 96 days' accrued
interest from and including 3 February 2008 to
but excluding 9 May 2006

6 Specified Denominations: JPY 1,000,000

. A06252733




10

1"
12

13
14

16

(i) Issue Date:

(i) Interest Commencement Date
(if different from the Issue
Date):

Maturity Date:

Domestic Note: (if Domestic Note,
there will be no gross-up for
withholding tax)

Interest Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of Interest or
Redemption/Payment Basis:

Put/Call Options:
0]
(i)

Status of the Notes:

Date approval for issuance of
Notes obtained:

Method of distribution:

9 May 2006
3 February 2006

3 February 2011
No

0.80 per cent. Fixed Rate
{further particulars specified below)

Redemption at par
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Senior

Not Applicable

Syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

16

17
18
19
20

Fixed Rate Note Provisions

{ Rate of Interest:

(i) interest Payment Dates:

(iii) Fixed Coupon Amounts:

(iv) Broken Amount:

V) Day Count Fraction (Condition
a)):

(vi) Determination Dates
(Condition 1(a)):

(vil}y  Other terms relating to the

methed of calculating interest
for Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Provisions
Zero Coupon Note Pravisions
index Linked interest Note Provisions

Equity Linked Interest Note Provisicns

Applicable

0.80 per cent. per annum payable énnually in
arear

3 February in each year commencing 3
February 2007 and ending on the Maturity Date

JPY 8,000 per JPY 1,000,000 in nominal
amount

Not Applicable
30E/360

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

ADB252733




21 Dual Currency Note Provisions
PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION
22 Call Option

23 Put Option

24 Final Redemption Amount (all Notes
except Index Linked Redemption
Notes) of each Note

25 Final Redemption Amount (Equity
Linked Redemption Notes):

26 Final Redemption Amount (index
Linked Redemption Notes):

27 Early Redemption Amount

(i) Early Redemption Amount(s)
of each Note payable on
redemption for taxation
reasons (Condition 7(c)) or an
event of default (Condition 13)
and’or the method of
calculating the same (if
required or if different from
that set out in the Conditions):

{ii} Redemption for taxation
reasons permitted on days
other than interest Payment
Dates {Condition 7(c)):

Unmatured Coupons to
become void upen early
redemption (Bearer Notes
only) (Condition 10(f)):

Early Redemption Amount of
each Note payable on
redemption pursuant to
Condition 7(g):

(iii)

(iv)

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

JPY 1,000,000 per Note of JPY 1,000,000
specified denomination

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Yes, as set out in the Conditions

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28 Form of Notes:

(i) Temporary or permanent
global Note/Certificate:

Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note which will be
exchangeable for a permanent Global Note
which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes in the
limited circumstances specified in the
permanent Global Note

Upon issue of the Temperary Global Note, the
temporary {SIN and Common Codes will be
those set out in paras 11(i)(a) and 11(ii)(a),

A06252733




(i) Applicable TEFRA exemption:

29 Financial Centres (Condition 8(h)) or
other special provisions relating to

respectively, of Part B of these Final Terms

Upon exchange of the temporary Global Note
for the permmanent Global Note, the Notes will be
consolidated with and form a single series with
the Issuer's JPY 50,000,000,000 0.80 per cent.
Notes 2006 due 2011 issued on 3 February
2006 and the ISIM and Common Codes will be
those set out in paragraphs 11(i)(b) and 11(ii}{b),
respectively, of Part B to these Final Terms

D Rules
Tokyo, TARGET

payment dates:
30 Talons for future Coupons or Receipts No
to be attached to Definitive Notes
(and date on which such Talons
mature):
31 Details relating to Partly Paid Notes: Not Applicable
amount of each payment comprising
the Isgue Prica and date on which
each payment is to be made and
consequences (if any) of failure to
pay, including any right of the Issuer
to forfeit the Notes and interest due
on late payment;
32 Details relating to Instalment Notes: Not Applicable
33 Redenomination, renominalisation Not Applicable
and reconventioning provisions:
34 Consolidation provisions: Not Applicable
35 Other terms or special conditions: So long as Bearer Notes are represented by a
permanent Global Note and the permanent
Global Note is held on behalf of Euroclear,
Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other clearing
system, notwithstanding Condition 17, notices to
Noteholders may be given by delivery of the
relevant notice to that clearing system for
communication by it to entitled accountholders.
Any notice thus delivered to that clearing system
shall be deemed to have been given to the
Noteholders on the day on which that notice is
delivered to the clearing system.
DISTRIBUTION
38 (i) If syndicated, names of Daiwa Securities SMBC Europe Limited
Managers: 5 King William Street
London EC4N 7AX
United Kingdom
A06252733
4




(i) Stabilising Manager (if any):

(i} Dealers’ Commission;

37 If non-syndicated, name and address

' of Dealer:

38 Additional selling restrictions:

39 Subscription period;

GENERAL

40 Additional steps that may only be
taken following approval by an
Extraordinary Resolution in
accordance with Condition 12(a):

41 The aggregate principal amount of
Notes issued has been translated into
Euro at the rate of JPY0.007011,
producing a sum of (for Notes not
denominated in Euro):

42 In the case of Notes listed on Eurolist

by Euronext Amsterdam N.V.:

UBS Limited

1 Finsbury Avenue
London EC2M 2PP
United Kingdom

Daiwa Securities SMBC Europe Limited

A combined management and underwriting
commission of 0.10 per cent. of the Aggregate
Nominal Amount ’

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Euro 175,275,000

Not Applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue
of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 70,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note
Programme of Rabobank Nederland.
RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accep! fesponsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

Signed on beh if of the Issuer:

Duly

authorised

A068252733




PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

1 LISTING
{i) Listing:

{ii) Admission to Trading:

(iii) Estimate of total expenses related
to admission to trading:

2 RATING
Rating:

3 NOTIFICATION

Luxembourg

Application has been made for the Notes to
be admitted to trading on the Official List of
the Regulated Market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange with effect from 9 May
2006.

The Notes are to be consolidated and form
a single series with the JPY 50,000,000,000
0.80 per cent. Fixed Rate Notes 2006 due
2011 issued on 3 February 2006 which are
listed and admitted io trading on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Euro 435

The Notes have been rated Aaa, AAA and
AA+ by Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
(“Moody’'s™), Standard & Poor’s Ratings
Services (*Standard & Poor’s™), and Fitch
Ratings Ltd. (*Fitch”), respectively.

As defined by Moody's an Aaa rating means
that the Notes are judged to be of the
highest quality, with minima! credit risk. As
defined by Fitch an AA+ rating means that
the Notes are judged to be of a very high
credit quality and denotes expectations of
low credit risk. It indicates a very strong
capacity for payment of financial
commitments and is not significantly
vulnerabie to foreseeable events. As defined
by Standard & Poor's, an AAA rating means
that the Notes has the highest rating
assigned by Standard & Poor's and that the
lssuer's capacity to meet its financial
commitment on the obligation is extremely
strong.

The Netherands Authority for the Financial Markets (Autorifeit Financiéle Markten) has
provided the Commission de surveillance du secteur financier in Luxembourg with a
certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance

AQB252733



with the Prospectus Directive. It has not been necessary to comply with any additional
passporting or publication requirements in connection with the offering of the Notes,

4 INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE OFFER
Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular, so far as the Issuer is awars, no person
involved in the offer of the Notes has an interest material to the offer.
] REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES
(i) Reasons for the offer: As per “Use of Proceeds” in the Offering Circular
(i) Estimated net proceeds JPY 24,309,833,333
(i) Estimated total expenses: JPY 25,000,000 (comprising of a combined
management and underwriting commission cnly)
6 YIELD
Indication of yield: 1.427 per cent. per annum
This is the yield-to-maturity and is calculated as
the rate of return anticipated on the Notes as if
they wili be held until the Maturity Date. The
calculation of the yield-to-maturity takes into
account the Issue Price, the Aggregate Nominal
Amount of the Notes, the Rate of interest and the
time to Maturity. It is also assumed that all
coupons are reinvested at the same rate,
The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the
basis of the Issue Price. Itis NOT an indication of
future yield.
7 HISTORIC INTEREST RATES
Not Applicable
8 PERFORMANCE OF INDEX/FORMULA, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF
INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING
THE UNDERLYING
Not Applicable
9 PERFORMANCE OF RATES OF EXCHANGE AND EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT
Not Applicable
10 PERFORMANCE OF UNDERLYING, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF
INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND INFORMATION CONCERNING THE
UNDERLYING
Not Applicable
11 OPERATIONAL INFORMATION
() (a) Temporary 1SIN Code: X80253457542
(b) ISIN Code: X50242515277
(i)  (a) Temporary Common Code; 025345754
(b) Common Code: 024251527
A06252733




(iif)
{iv)

v)
(vi)

Duly’authorised

Fondscode:

Any clearing system(s) other
than Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg
and the relevant number(s):

Delivery:

The Agents appointed in
respect of the Notes are:

! of the Issuer:

——

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Delivery against payment

Not Applicable

A06252733




Final Terms

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND)
(a codperatie formed under the Jaw of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A. (RABOBANK
INTERNATIONAL EQUITY DERIVATIVES)
(a codperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
(RABOBANK NEDERLAND) AUSTRALIA BRANCH
(Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655)
(a codperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A.
{(RABOBANK NEDERLAND) SINGAPORE BRANCH
{Singapore Company Registration Number FO3634W)
(a cotiperatie formed under the iaw of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

Euro 70,000,000,000
Global Medium-Term Note Programme
Due from seven days to perpetuity (the “Programme”)

SERIES NO: 1583A
TRANCHE NO: 1

JPY10,000,000,000 2.860 per cent. Fixed Rate Callable Notes due 11 May 2036

Issue Price: 100.00 per cent.

Credit Suisse

The date of these Final Terms is 9 May 2006.




PART A~ CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set
forth in the Offering Circular dated 11 July 2005, as supplemented by (i) a supplemental offering
circular relating to the terms and conditions of the notes set out in the offering circular dated 7
Qctober 2003; (ii} a supplemental offering circular relating to the terms and conditions of the notes
set out in the offering circular dated 15 October 2004; (i) a supplemental offering circular relating
to an addition to the risk factors set forth in the offering circular dated 11 July 2005, in each case
dated 8 September 2005; and (iv) a supplemental offering circular relating to an increase in the
programme limit to Euro 70,000,000,000 dated 21 November 2005 (together, the “Offering
Circular”) which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive
(Directive 2003/71/EC) (the “Prospectus Directive”). This document constitutes the Final Terms
of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must
be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular, as so supplemented. Full information on the
Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final
Terms and the Offering Circular. The Notes will be issued on the terms of these Final Terms read
together with the Offering Circular. Each Issuer accepts responsibility for the information confained
in these Final Terms which, when read together with the Offering Circular, contains all information
that Is material in the context of the issue of the Notes. The Offering Circular is available for
viewing at, and copies may be obtained from, Rabobank Nederland at Croeselaan 18, 3521 CB
Utrecht, the Netherlands and the principal office in England of the Arranger and of the Paying
Agent in Luxembourg and Amsterdam.

Issuer; Cotperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A.
(Rabobank Nederland)

()  Series Number: 1583A

(ii) Tranche Number: 1

Specified Currency or Japanese Yen (“JPY")

Currencies:

Aggregate Nominal Amount:

® Tranche: JPY10,000,000,000
(i) Series: JPY10,000,000,000
Issue Price: 100.00 per cent, of the Aggregate Nominal Amount
Specified Denominations: JPY500,000,000
(i) Issue Date: 11 May 2006
i) Interest Commencement  Not Applicable

Date (if different from the

Issue Date):
Maturity Date: 11 May 2036
Domestic Note: (if Domestic . No
Note, there will be no gross-up
for withholding tax)




10

11
12

13

14

15

Interest Basis: 2.860 per cent. Fixed Rate
(further particulars specified below)
Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par
Change of Interest or Not Applicable
Redemption/Payment Basis:
Put/Call Options: Issuer Call
(further particulars specified below)
] Status of the Notes: Senior
(i} Date approva! for Not Applicable
issuance of Notes
obtained:
Method of distribution: Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

16

17
18

19
20

21

' Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable
)} Rate of Interest: 2.860 per cent. per annum payable semi-annually in arrear
(i) Interest Payment Dates: 11 May and 11 November in each year, commencing on 11

November 2006 up to and including the Maturity Date
(i) Fixed Coupon Amount: JPY7,150,000 per JPY500,000,000 in nominal amount

(iv) Broken Amount: Not Applicable

(v) Day Count Fraction 30/360 unadjusted
{Condition 1(a)):

(vi) Determination Date(s) Not Applicable

(Condition 1(a}):

(vii) Other terms relating to Not Applicable
the method of calculating
interest for Fixed Rate
Notes:

Floating Rate Provisions Not Applicable

Zero Coupon Note Provisions  Not Applicable

Index Linked Interest Note Not Applicable
Provisions
Equity Linked Interest Note Not Applicable
Provisions
Dual Currency Note Provisions Not Applicable

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22

Call Option Applicable

0] Optional Redemption 11 May 2017
Date.




23
24

25

26

27

(ii)

(iii)

Optional Redemption
Amount(s) of each Note
and method, if any, of
calculation of  such
amount(s):

If redeemable in part:

Minimum nominal amount.

to be redeemed:

Maximum nominal

amount to be redeemed:

(iv}  Option Exercise Date(s):

) Description of any other
Issuer's option:

(vi} Notice period:

Put Option

Final Redemption Amount (all
Notes except Equity Linked

" Redemption Notes and Index

Linked Redemption Notes) of
Each Note

Final Redemption Amount
(Equity Linked Redemption

Notes)

Final Redemption Amount
(Index Linked Redemption

Notes)

Early Redemption Amount

0]

(ii)

Earty Redemption
Amount(s) of each Note
payable on redemption
for taxation reasons
{Condition 7(c)) or an
event of defauit
(Condition 13) and/or the
method of calculating the
same (if required or if
different from that set out
in the Conditions):

Redemption for taxation
reasons permitted on
days other than Interest
Payment Dates
(Condition 7(c)):

JPYS500,000,000 per Note of JPY500,000,000 specified
denomination

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

The Issuer shall give notice of its intention to redeem the Notes,
in whole but not in part, not less than thirty (30} Tokyo and Target
Business Days prior to the Optional Redemption Date

Not Applicable

JPY500,000,000 per Note of JPY500,000,000 specified
denomination

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

As set out in the Conditions

Yes




(iii) Unmatured Coupons to
become void upon early

redemption (Bearer
Notes only) (Condition
10(H):

(iv) Early Redemption

Amount of each Note
payable on redemption
pursuant to Condition
7{g):

Yes

Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28

29

30

£

32

33

Form of Notes

(i) Temporary or permanent
Global Note/Certificate:

(ii) Applicable TEFRA
exemption:

Financial Centre(s) (Condition
10(h)) or other special provisions
relating to payment dates:

Talons for future Coupons ar
Receipts 1o be attached to
Definitive Notes {and dates on
which such Talons mature):

Details relating to Partly Paid
Notes: amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and
date on which each payment is to
be made and consequences (if
any) of failure to pay, including
any right of the Issuer to forfeit
the Notes and interest due on
late payment:

Details relating to Instalment
Notes:

Redenomination,

Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note exchangeable for a permanent Global
Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes in the limited
circumstances specified in the permanent Giobal Note

D Rules

Tokyo and Target

The first sentence of Condition 10(h) shall be deemed to be
deleted and replaced with the following:

“if the due date for payment of any amount in respect of the
Notes or any Coupon is not a business day, the holder shall not
be entitled to payment until the next succeeding business day
unless that business day falls in the next calendar month in which
case the due date for payment will be the first preceding day that
is a business day. No adjustment will be made to the amount due
for payment as a resuit of the operation of this paragraph.”

No, unless-the permanent Global Note is exchanged for
Definitive Notes on or before 11 May 2023, in which case one
Talon per future Coupans will be attached to each Definitive
Note.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable




rengminalisation and
reconventioning provisions:

34 Consolidation provisions:

35 Other terms or special
conditions:

DISTRIBUTION

36 (i) If syndicated, names ang
addresses of Managers:

(i Stabilising Manager (if
any):
(il Dealers’ Commission;

37  if non-syndicated, name and
address of Dealer:

38 Additional selling restrictions:

Not Applicable

So long as Bearer Notes are represented by a permanent Global
Note and the permanent Global Note is held on behalf of
Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other clearing
system, notwithstanding Condition 17, notices to Noteholders
may be given by delivery of the relevant notice to that clearing
system for communication by it to entitled accountholders. Any
notice thus delivered to that clearing system shali be deemed to
have been given to the Noteholders on the day on which that
notice is delivered to the clearing system.

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
One Cabot Square

London E14 4QJ

United Kingdom

Japan

) The Specified Denominaton of the Notes
(JPY500,000,000) may not be subsequently divided into a lower
denomination.

2) From and after the Issue Date, the Issuer shall not create
and issue further notes, bonds or debentures where the resulting
aggregate number of notes, bonds or debentures would exceed
forty-nine (49).

For this purpose, the notes, bonds or debentures, whether newly
created and issued or existing that shall be Included in the
calculation of the aggregate number shall be those that (i) have
been issued and created within six months prior to the issue date
of such further notes, bonds or debentures; and (i) have the
same rate of interest and maturity date as the Notes, including
the Notes.

(3) The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening
meetings of the Noteholders to consider matters relating to the
Notes, including the modification by Extraordinary Resolution of
the Conditions. Notwithstanding those provisions or the
resolution of such Noteholders, neither of paragraphs (1} nor (2)
above may be modified except to the extent that any such
modifications are required or permitted by future changes in the




39 Subscription period:

GENERAL

40

41

42

Additional steps that may only be
taken foliowing approval by an
Extraordinary Resolution in
accordance with Condition 14(a):

The aggregate principal amount
of Notes issued has been
translated into Euro at the rate of
0.007011, preducing a sum of
(for Notes not denominated in

Euro):

In the case of Notes listed on
Eurolist by Euronext Amsterdam

N.V.:

laws and regulations governing placement restrictions imposed
on the Notes.

(4) The Notes have not been and will not be registered under
the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan (the "SEL"), and the
Notes may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in Japan
or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (including
Japanese corporations) or to others for re-offering or resale,
directly or indirectly, in Japan or to any resident of Japan, except
that the offer and sale of the Notes in Japan may be made only
through private placement sale in Japan in accordance with an
exemption available under the SEL and with all other applicable
taws and reguiations of Japan. In this clause, “a
resident/residents of Japan” shall have the meaning as defined
under the Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Law of Japan.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Euro 70,011,000

Not Applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue
of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 70,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note

Programme of Rabobank Nederland.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

Signed on behalf of the {ssuer:




PART B — OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING
{i) Listing:

(i) Admission to trading

(iii) Estimate of total expenses related
to admission to trading:

RATING
Rating:

NOTIFICATION

Luxembourg

Application has been made for the Notes to
be admitted to trading on the Regulated
Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
with effect from 11 May 2006.

Eur 9,600

The Notes have been rated Aaa by Moody's
Investors Services, Inc. (Moody’s), AAA by
Standard & Poor's Ratings Services
(Standard & Poor's) and AA+ by Fitch
Ratings Ltd. (Fitch).

As defined by Moody’s an Aaa rating means
that the Notes are judged to be of the
highest quality, with minimal credit risk. As
defined by Filch an AA+ rating means that
the Notes are judged to be of a very high
credit quality and denote expectations of low
credit risk. It indicates very strong capacity
for payment of financial commitments and is
not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable
events. As defined by Standard & Poor’s, an
AAA rating means that the Notes has the
highest rating assigned by Standard &
Poor’s and that the Issuer’s capacity to meet
its financial commitment on the obligaticn is
extremely strong.

The Netherlands Authorlty for the Financial Markets (Autoriteit Financiéle Markten) has
provided the Commission de surveillance du secteur financier in Luxembourg with a
certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up In accordance

with the Prospectus Directive.

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE
Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person
involved in the offer of the Notes has an interest material to the offer.

REASONS OF THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

Not Applicable




6 YIELD (Fixed Rate Notes only)

Indication of yield: 2.B80 per cent

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the
basis of the 1ssue Price. Itis NOT an indication of
future yield.

7 HISTORIC INTEREST RATES (Floating Rate Notes only)

Not Applicable
8 OPERATIONAL INFORMATION
(i) ISIN Code:
(i) Common Code:
iii) Fondscode:
{iv) Private Placement Number:

(v) Any clearing system(s) other than
Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg and the relevant
number(s):

{vi) Delivery:

(vil  Names and addresses of
additional or other Paying Agents
appointed in respect of the Notes
are:

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

o

By:

Duly aujht

X80253342561
025334256

Not Applicable
749770 E@ 8
Not Applicable

Delivery against payment

Not Applicable
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TRANCHE NO: 1

EUR 100,000,000 Floating Rate Notes 2006 due 29 June 2029

Issue Price: 100.00 per cent.

BNP PARIBAS

The date of these Final Terms is 3 May 2006.



PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth
in the Offering Circular dated 11 July 2005, as supplemented by (i} a supplemental offering circular
relating to the terms and conditions of the notes set out in the offering circular dated 7' October 2003,
(i} a supplemental offering circular relating to the terms and conditions of the notes set out in the
offering circular dated 15 October 2004, (iii) a supplemental offering circular relating to an addition to
the risk factors set forth in the offering circular dated 11 July 2005, in each case dated 8 September
2005 and (iv) a supplemental offering circular relating to the increase of the programme limit to Euro
70,000,000,000, dated 21 November 2005 (together, the “Offering Circular”), which constitutes a
base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the
“Prospectus Directive”). This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for
the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the
Offering Circular, as so supplemented. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only
available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Offering Circutar. The Notes
will be issued on the terms of these Final Terms read together with the Offering Circular. Each lssuer
accepts responsibility for ‘the information contained in these Final Terms which, when read together
with the Offering Circular, contains all information that is material in the context of the issue of the
Notes. The Offering Circular is available for viewing at, and copies may be obtained from, Rabobank
Nederland at Croeselaan 18, 3521 CB Utrecht, the Netherlands and the principal office in England of
the Arranger and of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg and Amsterdam.

1 Issuer: Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-
: Boerenleenbank B.A. (Rabobank
Nedertand) '
2 ()  Series Number: 1586A
(i) Tranche Number: 1
3 Specified Currency or Currencies: Euro ("EUR")
- 4 Aggregate Nominal Amount;
()  Tranche: EUR 100,000,000
(i)  Series: ' EUR 100,000,000
5 | [ssue Price: 100.00 per cent. of the Aggregate
Nominal Amount
6 Specified Denominations: EUR 50,000
7 (i) Issue Date: 5 May 2006

(i} Interest Commencement Date (if different Not Applicable
from the Issue Date):

8  Maturity Date: 29 June 2029
9 Domestic Note: (if Domestic Note, there willbe  No
no gross-up for withholding tax):
10 Interest Basis: 3 month EURIBOR + 0.01 per cent.
Floating Rate

(further particulars specified below)

11 Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par




12

13
14
15

Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment

Basis:

Put/Call Options:

Status of thea Notes:

Method of distribution:

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Senior

Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

16
17

Fixed Rate Note Provisions

Floating Rate Provisions

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
)

(v)
(vii)

{viii)

Interest Period(s):

Specified Interest Payment Dales:

Business Day Convention:

Business Centre(s) (Condition 1(a)):
Manner in which the Rate(s) of Interest
is/are to be determined:

Interest Period Date(s):

Party responsible for calculating the
Rate(s) of Interest and Interest Amount(s)
(if not the Calculation Agent):

Screen Rate Determination (Condition
1(a):

Relevant Time:

Interest Determination Date:

Primary Source for Floating Rate:
Relevant Screen Page:

Reference Banks (if Primary Source is
“Reference Banks”™):

Not Applicable
Applicable
Quarterly

The first interest Period wili run from and -
including 5 May 2006 to but excluding 29
June 2006 '

Subsequent interest periods will run from
and including each Specified Interest
Payment Date to but excluding the
subsequent Specified Interest Payment
Date

29 March, 29 June, 29 September and
29 December of each year from and
including 22 June 2006 to and including
29 June 2029

Modified Following Business Day
Convention

TARGET

Screen Rate Determination

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

11.00 a.m. Brussels time

Two TARGET Business Days prior to the
start of the relevant Interest Period

Relevant Screen Page
Reuters page ‘EURIBORO1’
Not Applicable




18
19
20
21

- Relevant Financial Centre:
- Benchmark:

-~ Representative Amount:

- Effective Date:

~  Specified Duration:

(ix) ISDA Determination (Condition 1{a)}:
(x) Margin(s}):

{xi) Minimum Rate of Interest:

(xii) Maximum Rate of Interest:

{(xiii)  Day Count Fraction (Condition 1(a}):

(xiv) Rate Multiplier:

(xv) Fall back provisions, rounding provisions,
denominator and any other terms relating

to the method of calculating interest on
Floating Rate Notes, if different from
these set out in the Conditions:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions

index Linked Interast Note Provisions

Equity Linked Interest Note Provisions

Duaj Currency Note Provisions

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22

23

24

25

26

27

" Call Option
Put Option

Final Redemption Amount (all Notes except
Equity Linked Redemption Notes and Index
Linked Redemption Notes) of Each Note

Final Redemption Amount (Equity Linked
Redemption Notes)

Final Redemption Amount (Index Linked
Redemption Notes)

Early Redemption Amount

(i) Early Redemption Amount(s) of each

Note payable on redemption for taxation
reasons (Condition 7 (c)) or an event of
default (Condition 13) and/or the method

of calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the

TARGET

EURIBOR

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

3 months (except for the short first
coupon which will be an interpolation
between 1 month EURIBOR and 2
month EURIBOR)

Not Applicable

0.01 per cent. per annum

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Actual / 360 {adjusted)

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
EUR 50,000 per note of EUR 50,000

specified denomination
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Applicable

Yes, as set out in the Conditions




GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28

29

30

31

32
33

34

Conditions):

(i) Redemption for taxation reasons

permitted on days other than Interest
Payment Dates (Condition 7 (c}):

(iii}) Unmatured Coupons to become void

upon early redemption (Bearer Notes
enly) (Condition 10(f)):

{iv) Early Redemption Amount of each Note

payable on redemption pursuant to
Condition 7(g):

Form of Notes:

(i) Temporary or permanent Global
Note/Certificate:

(ii) Applicable TEFRA exemption:

Financial Centre(s) (Condition 10(h)) or other
special provisions relating to payment dates:

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be
attached to Definitive Notes (and dates on

which such Talons mature});

Details relating to Partly Paid Notes: amount of
each payment comprising the Issue Price and

date on which each payment is to be made and
consequences (if any) of failure to pay, including

any right of the issuer to forfeit the Notes and
interest due on late payment:

Details relating to Instaiment Notes:

Redenomination, renominalisation and
reconventioning provisions:

Consolidation provisions:

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note exchangeable
for a permanent Global Note which is
exchangeable for Definitive Notes in the
limited circumstances specified in the
permanent Global Note

D Rules
TARGET

The first sentence of Condition 10(h)
shall be deemed to be deleted and
replaced with the following:

“If any date for payment in respect of any
Note is not a business day, the holder
shall not be entitied to payment until the
next following business day, unless it
wauld thereby fall into the next calendar
month, in which event such date for
payment shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding business day, nor
to any interest or other sum in respect of
such early or postponed payment”.

No

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable



LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

35 QOther terms or special conditions:

DISTRIBUTION

36 @ If syndicated,: names and addresses of
Managers:

(i) Stabllising Manager (if any):
(i} Dealer's Commission:

37 if non-syndicated, name and address of Dealer:

38 Additional selling restrictions:

39 Subscription Period

GENERAL

40 Additional steps that may only be taken following
approval by an Extraordinary Resolution in
accordance with Condition 14(a):

41 The aggregate principal amount of Notes issued
has been translated into Euro at the rate of Euro
producing a sum of (for Notes not denominated
in Euro):

42 In the case of Notes listed on Eurolist by

Euronext Amsterdam N.V.:

So long as Bearer Notes are represented
by a permanent Global Note and the
permanent Global Note is held on behalf
of Euraclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg
ar any other clearing system,
notwithstanding Condition 17, notices to
Noteholders may be given by delivery of

- the relevant notice to that clearing

system for communication by it to
entitled accountholders. Any notice thus
delivered to that clearing system shall be
deemed to have been given to the
Noteholders on the day on which that
notice is delivered to the clearing
system.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

None

BNP Paribas

10 Harewood Avenue

London NW1 6AA
United Kingdom

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue of
Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 70,000,000,000 Global Medium Terrn Note Programme .
of Rabobank Nederland.



RESPONSIBILITY
The issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

Signed on behalf /of e Issuer:

By:

Duly authorised




PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

1 LISTING
(i) Listing:

(i1} Admission to Trading:

(iii) Estimate of total expenses

related to admission to trading:

2 RATINGS
Rating:

3 NOTIFICATION

Luxembourg

Application has been made for the Notes to
be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange’s Regulated Market with
effect from the Issue Date.

EUR 9,600

The Notes have been rated Aaa, AA+ and
AAA by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
Fitch Ratings Ltd. and Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services respectively. As defined by
Moody's an Aaa rating means that the Notes
are judged to be of the highest quality, with
minimal credit risk. As defined by Fitch an
AA+ rating means that the Notes are judged
to be of a very high credit quality and denote
expectations of low credit risk. It indicates
very strong capacity for payment of financiat
commitments and is not significantly
vulnerable to foreseeable events. As defined
by Standard & Poor's, an AAA rating means
that the Notes has the highest rating
assigned by Standard & Poor’s and that the
Issuer's capacity to mest its financial
commitment on the obligation is extremely
strong.

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets, Autorifeit Financiéle Markten, |has provided its
equivalent competent authority in Luxembourg, Commission de Surveillance du Secfeur Financier,
with a certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance with

the Prospectus Directive.

4 INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE OFFER
Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person invoived in the

offer of the Notes has an interest material to the offer.

5 REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

Not Applicable

6 YIELD (Fixed Rate Notes Oniy)
Indication of yield:

Not Applicable



7 HISTORIC INTEREST RATES (Floating Rate Notes only)
Not Applicable
8 OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

(i) ISIN Code:
(ii) Common Code:
(iii) Fondscode:

{iv)  Any clearing system(s) other
than Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg and
the relevant number(s):

(v) Delivery:

{vi} Names and addresses of
additional or other Paying
Agents appointed in respect of
the Notes are:

Duly authorised

X50253618903
25361890

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Delivery against payment
Not Applicable



Rabobank




1999 1998 1997 1996
‘81,218 248,718 194,222 152,068
61,074 129,554 117,569 99,717
27527 114,826 08,307 79,854
139,800 124,100 83,700 32,800
11,217 10,381 9,708 8,791
13,007 11,817 11,113 10,280
13,650 12,660 11,947 10973
29,801 114,445 107,163 96,095
10,384 9,156 8573 7,688
10.0 10.3 10.4 106
105 (A 11 113
6,801 5832 5,280 4,375
4,826 4,099 3,730 2,921
350 340 254 381
100 0 0 0
1525 1,393 1,296 1,073
1,017 936 865 741
9.8% 8.6% 9.8% 9.3%
70.9% 70.3% 70.6% 66.8%
424 445 481 510
1,795 1,797 1,823 1,854
2,719 2,727 2,750 2,798
2,546 2,430 2,268 2,056
147 150 112 87
53,147 49,465 44 667 40,275
48,224 45,310 40927 36,828
80%
510 515 525 585
AAA AAA AAA AAA
Aaa Aaa Aaa Aaa

Total income by activity over 2005 |
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General: Due to consolidation effects, the sum of the figures relating to Group entities will not always correspond

with Rabobank Group totals. Changes in terms of percentages can vary as a result of rounding.

1) The first two columns corresponding to the years 2005 and 2004 are based on IFRS. The other columns
corresponding to the years 1996 up 1o and including 2004 are based on Dutch GAAP

2) The Tier | ratio and the BIS ratio for 2001 have been calculated taking into account the effect on equity of the
changed accounting policy for pensions with effect from 1 January 2002,

3) The SAM-rating is calculated every two years,
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Profile of Rabobank Group

Rabobank Group is a full-range financial
services provider operating on the basis of
co-operative principles. Its origins are in the
local loan co-operatives that were founded in
the Netherlands nearly 110 years ago by enter-
prising people who had virtually no access to
the capital market. The local Rabobanks that
evolved from this have a strong tradition in the
agricultural sector and in small and medium-
sized enterprises.

The Rabobank Group comprises 248 independent local co-opera-
tive Rabobanks in the Netherlands plus their central organisation
Rabobank Nederland and its subsidiaries. Rabobank serves more
than 9 million private individuals and corporate clients in the
Netherlands and a growing number abroad. It employs 50,988
staff and is represented in 38 countries.

The Rabobank Group has the highest credit rating (Triple A),
awarded by the well-known international rating agencies Moody's
and Standard & Poor’s. In terms of Tier | capital, the crganisation is
among the waorld’s fifteen largest financial institutions.

The local Rabobanks and their clients form Rabobank Group's co-

- operative core business. The banks are members and shareholders

of the supralocal co-operative organisation, Rabobank Nederland,
which advises the banks and supports their local services,
Rabobank Nederland also supervises, on behalf of the Dutch central
bank, the solvency, liquidity and administrative organisation of the
Jocal Rabobanks.

Rabobank Nederland further acts as an (international) wholesale
bank and as a bankers'bank to the Group and is the holding
company of a large number of specialised subsidiaries.

Rabobank Group combines the best of two worlds: the local involve-
ment and personal touch of the local Rabobanks with the expertise
and economies of scale of Rabobank Nederland and its subsidiaries.

Ambition

Rabobank Group's ambition is to be the largest, best and most
innovative all-finance service provider in the Netherlands. With
their co-operative structure and a current membership of more
than 1.5 million, the local Rabobanks are firmly rooted in society.
In the Netherlands, Rabobank may justifiably call itself committed,
near-you and a leader.

in the international environment, Rabobank Group’s ambition is to
be the best food & agri bank, with a strong presence in the world’s
major food & agriculture countries. For this purpose, the Group will
use the experience it has accumulated in the Netherlands over
many years.

In addition, the Group aspires to be the most sustainable bank
globally, as would befit its identity and position in society. in the
years ahead, Rabobank Group will further integrate corporate
social responsibility in its core activities.

Our values

Rabobank Group offers all the financial services needed by clients as
they participate in an economy-driven modern society. The Group
strives to ensure that its services are continually adjusted and
updated so that they always meet the needs of both private
individuals and businesses.

We believe that sustainable growth in prosperity and well being
requires careful nurturing of natural resources and the living environ-
ment. We aim to contribute to this development with our activities.
We respect the culture and traditions of the countries where we
operate, insofar as these do not conflict with our own objectives
and values.

In all our actions, we focus on our clients’ best interests. We create

customer value by:

- providing those financial services considered best and most
appropriate by our clients;

- ensuring continuity in the services provided with a view to the
long-term interests of the client;

- showing commitment to our clients and their environment, so
that we can contribute to achieving their ambitions.



HgUITS

2005 2004 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Volume of services (in EUR millions) :
Total assets 506,234 483574 475,089 403,305 374720 363,679 342,920
Private sector lending 278,095 248,958 252,99 235,425 212,323 197,262 179137
Due to customers 186,459 177482 192,123 172,571 171,632 172174 146,705
Assets managed and held in custody 224,200 223,400 195,000 184,000 168,000 194,400 166,100
Financial position and solvency (in EUR millions)
Equity 26,349 23,004 18,143 15,233 14,261 12,380 ° 12/458
Tier | capital 24,860 21,404 22621 18,660 17,202 15092 2 14,653
Qualifying capital 25,272 21,205 22,586 19,892 17414 15,542 2 15,093
Total risk-weighted assets 213,901 196,052 198,552 182,820 165,843 152,812 142,278
Solvency requirement 17,112 15,684 15,887 14,626 13,268 12,225 11,382
Tier | ratio 11.6 10.9 114 10.8 10.3 99? 10.3
BIS ratio 11.8 10.8 114 10.9 10.5 10.2 2 106
Profit and loss account (in EUR millions) :
Total income 9,363 9222 10,055 9018 8,518 8,388 7,714
Total expenses 6,164 6,177 6,732 6,243 5839 5,965 5459
Value adjustments 517 479 514 427 752 539 369
Addition to the fund for general banking risks 0 0 0 0 52
Operating profit before taxation 2,682 2,566 2,809 2,348 1827 1,884 1,834
Net profit 2,083 1,793 1536 1,370 1,222 1,178 1,166
Ratios “
Return on equity 9.1% 9.0% 10.1% 9.6% 9.9% 9.5% 10.4%
Efficiency ratio 65.8% 67.0% 67.0% 69.2% 68.5% 71.1% 70.8%
Nearby
Member banks 248 288 288 328 349 369 397
Offices:
- branches 1,249 1,299 1,299 1,378 1,516 1,648 1,727
- contact points 3,031 2,965 2,965 2,800 2,697 2,618 2,693
Cash dispensing machines 3,116 3,062 3,062 2,981 2979 2,889 2,676
Foreign offices 267 244 244 222 169 137 142
Employees :
- total number 50,988 56,324 56,324 57,055 58,096 58,120 55,098
- full-time equivalents 45,580 50,216 50,216 50,849 51,867 52173 49711
Employee satisfaction 81% 85% 85% 85% 84% 83% 82%
Client data ]
Members (x 1,000) 1,551 1,456 1,456 1,360 1,108 825 550
Membership/customer ratio 17.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.0% 13.2% 9.7% 61% ,
Rating |
Standard & Poor’s AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA
Moody’s Investor Service Aaa Aaa Aaa Aaa Aaa Aaa Aaa |
SAM-rating (corporate social responsibility) ? 80% 74% 64%
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Good performance in a challenging market

Chairman’s foreworg

Rabobank Group succeeded in attaining a very
satisfying result in 2005, despite global volatility
in the economic climate. Net profit rose by no
less than 16%. This was achieved in an often
highly challenging market, particularly in the
Netherlands, and is accordingly reason for
satisfaction. All business units contributed success-
fully to this result, in terms of both volumes and
income. The local Rabobanks performed well,
despite fierce competition in our home market
and the merger movements that required the
attention of many of the local Rabobanks.

The wholesale and international retail business
saw a limited increase in results. Our subsidiaries
Robeco, De Lage Landen, FGH Bank, Rabo
Vastgoed, Alex, Schretlen & Co and Obvion
reported substantial improvements in income, as
did our former insurance subsidiary Interpolis,
now merged with Achmea.

An eventful year

2005 was an eventful year in many respects. After the tsunami in late
2004, the global community was hit by still more natural disasters of
unimaginable extent. The effects of the terrible earthquake in Pakistan and
the havoc reaped by hurricane Katrina in the south of the United States
are still acutely felt. As for ourselves, we were deeply affected by the
unexpected death of our Supervisory Board member Wim Duisenberg.
We shall remember him as the first President of the European Central
Bank, in which capacity he gained world-wide esteem, and as a
nationally widely praised President of the Dutch Central Bank. We also
remember him as the deputy chairman of the Executive Board of
Rabobank Nederland who initiated, in the early 1980%, the build-up of
our international business. 2005 was also the year in which oil prices rose
to unprecedented levels. This had a negative effect on the world economy,
although the United States, Asia and various emerging countries saw a
favourable development nevertheless. Europe lagged behind again.

In the Netherlands, the ailing economy continued and the tentative
recovery that started in 2004 was not sustained in the year under
review. On the upside, the Amsterdam stock exchange - the AEX gained
25% - for the first time in many years joined the upward trend in stock

exchanges elsewhere in the world.

Market leadership in the Netherlands

In the year under review, we continued to take major steps forward

on the path towards all-finance market leadership in the Netherlands.
Undoubtedty, the most prominent move was the intensified collaboration
with Eureko/Achmea. The merger between Interpolis and Achmea has
created not only the largest insurance company in the Dutch market,




but herewith we increased our stake in Eureko to 37%. This new combi-
nation offers the prospect of attractive opportunities for organic growth
as a basis for strengthening our market leadership further. Another
example is the merger process at the local Rabobanks, which went
entirely according to schedule in the year under review. This move
towards a smaller number of larger local Rabobanks was initiated in
order to raise the quality and the professionalism of these banks and to
serve our clients even better. This is necessary for further strengthening
our position in the upper segments of the markets for corporates and
private individuals. The efforts towards that goal were intensified in the
year under review and met with a favourable market response.

An independent survey showed that in 2005, private individuals ranked
Rabobank as the best private bank after our own subsidiary Schretlen &
Co, which came in first place. in addition, entrepreneurs in the corporate
segment awarded Rabobank the title Bank of the Year for the second
time in three years.

The global food & agri bank with its roots in

the Netherlands

This is the profile we will be working on hard in the coming years, both
in our home market and in markets worldwide. From this perspective,
the strong growth in 2005 of our international retail banking business,
with its important focus on food & agri, gives us great satisfaction.

The intention expressed in 2005 to strengthen our position as a food &
agribank in the United States through a bid for Community Bank of
Central California has been realised. The acquisition was completed at
the beginning of 2006, We succeeded in strengthening our position
elsewhere in the western hemisphere besides the United States. In 2005,
a start was made with extending our agricultural financing activities in
Brazil. Regrettably, it transpired in early 2006 that, in Turkey, Sekerbank’s
largest shareholder had annulled an earlier agreement for the sale to
Rabobank of an equity interest of 36.5% in this bank. We have decided
not to resign ourselves to this unilateral withdrawal and legal steps were

in preparation at the time of writing.

“Our bank operates differently. Instead of dividends to external
shareholders, Rabobanks each year distribute part of our profit to
the communities in which they are firmly rooted and in which they
actively participate. We call this our ‘cooperative dividend:”

[ Bert Heemskerk




Operation Service

The move towards a smaller number of larger and more professional local
Rabobanks requires customised support from Rabobank Nederland.

In order to be able to respond better to the service needs of these
professionalised local Rabobanks, an organisational adjustment - named
Operation Service - was initiated at Rabobank Nederland in the autumn
of 2004, scheduled to be completed by the end of 2006. Goals under
Operation Service include a staff reduction of 1,200 FTEs. In the year
under review, the reduction in the number of FTEs under Operation
Service was 509, against 373 in 2004. The object of Operation Service is
to achieve better, more efficient and more transparent service for the
local Rabobanks by Rabobank Nederland, at lower net costs. The first
results are now becoming visible and in 2006, the costs charged on to
the local Rabobanks can be reduced further.

Higher customer satisfaction in the Year of Service

Early in the year under review, | used Operation Service, which had only
just been initiated at the time, to call on staff and management alike to
turn 2005 into the year of service across the board. Now, one year later,
Hind that there is still some room for improvernent in Rabobank
Nederland's service to the local Rabobanks. | am confident that the com-
pletion of Operation Service in the course of 2006 will contribute to this
improvement. However, my appeal equally concerned the service to our
clients. It pleases me very much therefore that a market survey showed
that customer satisfaction among private individuals increased from 7.3
to 7.4 in the year under review. Need|ess to say, this is an encouragement
to do even better in the future, The longer-term target is a customer
satisfaction of at least 7.5.

2006: the Year of Truth

If 2005 was the year of service, 2006 will be the year of truth for
Rabobank Group: the year in which a great deal of what was prepared
in past years should yield tangible, visible results. In all our Group
entities, we are very busy with reorganisations, mergers, restructuring,
reorientations and other internal alterations. Besides increased efficiency,
the main aim of each of these is even better service to our clients.

This has to be our chief challenge for 2006. It is a challenge that ties in
seamlessly with the solid foundation we have laid over the past years.
Thanks to the same commitment with which cur 50,988 employees and
managers made 2005 a successful year and thanks to the dedicated
efforts of the more than 3,000 directors and supervisors of our local
Rabobanks, we will succeed in harvesting what was sown. | thank our
employees, managers and local managers for their many dedicated
efforts on behalf of Rabobank Group during the year under review and
I'am grateful to the members of our local Rabobanks for the commit-
ment demonstrated by them. Their input and that of our other clients is
more than welcome if we are to remain what we are: a bank of and for

people, and a bank of and for society.

Positive outlook for 2006

My colleagues on the Executive Board and myself are positive about the
current year 2006. We see growing business activity across a broad front
and expect that the Dutch economy will perform better this year than
in 2005 and that Rabobank Group will be able to benefit,

Cooperative dividend

In conclusion: it is no secret that Rabobank differs from other banks. Our
bank operates differently. We are not a listed enterprise that considers
sharenolder value its highest goal. Instead of dividends to external
shareholders, Rabobank each year distributes part of its profit to the




communities in which it is firmly rooted and in which it actively partici-
pates. We call this our ‘cooperative dividend. Profit optimisation is our
goal, not profit maximisation, Each year, the local Rabobanks allocate
tens of millions of euros to numerous local initiatives. Increasingly, this
cooperative dividend is being spent on initiatives that aim to support
member and client groups in their development. Cooperative dividend,
then, is at the heart of this Report for 2005, Pulsating through all its
chapters, you will find a selection of examples showing how the local
Rabobanks translate our cooperative dividend into practice.

I hope you will read it with pleasure!

Bert Heemskerk

Chairman of the Executive Board of Rabobank Nederland
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Report of the

Supervisory Board of
Rabobank Nederlang

Introduction

The Supervisory Board of Rabobank Nederland supervises the policy of
the Executive Board of Rabobank Nederland and the general conduct of
affairs at Rabobank Group and its affiliated entities. In addition, the
Supervisory Board advises the Executive Board. Lastly, the Supervisory
Board is responsible for the appointment and remuneration of the

members of the Executive Board.

In Mr W.F. Duisenberg, who passed away on 31 July 2005, the
Supervisory Board has lost a dedicated and exceptionally
competent member. His track record as Dutch Minister of
Finance, President of the Dutch Central Bank and first
President of the European Central Bank and his knowledge
of both the national and the international financial system
commanded a great deal of respect. The Supervisory Board
will remember with deep gratitude Mr Duisenberg’s valuable
contribution to the Board's performance of its duties.

Membership of the Supervisory Board

A profile has been drawn up for the Supervisory Board, defining the
criteria for the Board's membership, expertise and composition.
The profile was last updated by the General Meeting of Rabobank
Nederland held on 16 June 2005.

On 16 June 2005, the General Meeting appointed Mr PEM. Overmars

as a new member of the Supervisory Board. This appointment, which
became effective on 15 November 2005, ensued from the strategic
collaboration between Rabobank Nederland and Eureko/Achmea which
included an agreement on the mutual appointment of additional mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board. Consequently, Eureko/Achmea is now

C
Supervisory Board

Lens Koopmans (L.)

Chairman

Antoon Vermeer (AJ.AM)) Deputy Chairman

Sjoerd Eisma (S.E.) Secretary
Leo Berndsen (L.J.M.) Member
Bernard Bijvoet (B.) Member
Teun Boon (T.) Member
Marinus Minderhoud (M.) Member
Paul Overmars (PF.M.) Member
Hans van Rossum (JAAAM.) Member
Herman Scheffer (H.C.) Member
Martin Tielen (M.JM.) Member
Aad Veenman (AW.) Member
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represented in Rabobank Nederland by a second member of the
Supervisory Board, in addition to Mr AHCM. Walravens. Also on 16 June
2005 and after due consideration, the General Meeting reappointed

Mr Koopmans as Chairman and Mr Berndsen and Mr Eisma as members

of the Supervisory Board.

Corporate governance

Corporate governance at Rabobank Nederland is discussed in the
chapter 'Corporate Governance’ The way in which Rabobank Group
intends to comply with the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, in light
of its cooperative structure, was discussed extensively at the General




Meeting on 16 June 2005. A detailed explanation of the application of
the Dutch Corporate Governance Code can be found on the Rabobank
Group website. See also www.rabobankgroep.nl, under Rabobank Group.

Report on the Supervisory Board's activities in 2005

To support it in the proper performance of its duties, the Supervisory
Board regularly requests information on banking and non-banking
issues. Thus, there is a focused investment in the expertise of the Board’s
members, In this context, the Board paid specific attention in 2005 to
activities aimed at being ‘in control’ the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code and the transition to the new IFRS accounting policies.

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board has at least contact on a
monthly basis with the Chairman of the Executive Board and holds
monthly meetings with the internal auditor. In addition, the Chairman
of the Supervisory Board, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the
external auditor and the internal auditor meet at least four times a year.

The Supervisory Board met eight times in 2005. Not one member was
repeatedly absent from these meetings.

The Supervisory Board's own performance

The Supervisory Board considered, without the Executive Board being
present, its own performance in terms both of its performance as a
collective body and that of its individual members. The matters reviewed
in this context included members' attendance at Board meetings and the
extent to which the Supervisory Board complied with the profile referred
to above concerning its composition and required competencies. The aim
of this assessment is to improve the Supervisory Board's effectiveness

where possible. The outcomes of these reviews were included in the
proposals for reappointment and gave rise to initiatives to improve the
Board's expertise.

Performance of supervisory role

The Supervisory Board assessed, without the Executive Board being
present, the performance of the Executive Board and its individual
members and arrived at conclusions on that basis. There were no
changes in the composition of the Executive Board in 2005.

Consistent with its duties as defined by law and the Articles of
Association, the Supervisory Board supervised the general conduct of
affairs within Rabobank Group and at Rabobank Nederland in particular.
The Supervisory Board focused its activities chiefly on risk development,
risk management and the business performance of the individual busi-
ness units. Written reports on these subjects were discussed periodically
in the meetings of the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board.
The Supervisory Board also regularly served as a sounding board for the
Executive Board.

The Supervisory Board approved the operational and financial targets set
for Rabobank Nederland by the Executive Board, the strategy that should
result in the achievement of the targets and the preconditions applied
in the strategy. In this connection, discussions were held on the strategy
and the risks associated with the business of Rabobank Nederland.
Other topics were the outcome of the Executive Board's assessment of
the design and operation of the internal risk management and control
systems and any significant changes therein. The Audit Committee did
important preparatory work to facilitate this.




The following subjects were given special attention in 2005.

Financial statements 2004

This review included a detailed discussion with the Executive Board of
the management letter, including the management response, and the
report of the auditors, in the presence of both the internal auditor and
the external auditors. The Audit Committee did intensive preparatory

work to facilitate the review of the 2004 financial statements.

Budget 2006

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the budget for 2006 was
discussed and approved by the Supervisory Board. Again, the Audit
Committee provided important input for this purpose.

Strategic developments

The Supervisory Board approved the strategic choice to position
Rabobank as the global food & agri bank with its roots in the
Netherlands. The longer-term commercial targets both at home and
abroad were discussed extensively in this context, as were the financial
implications of the plans and the required supporting policy measures
pertinent to the strategy, for instance in the area of human resources.

The Supervisory Board regularly considered proposals for participating
interests and acquisitions by Rabobank Nederland and its subsidiaries.
In the international environment, such developments mostly took place
in the context of the international retail banking strategy. Besides the
commercial and financial aspects, the management of proposed partici-
pating interests or acquisitions and their alignment with the draft
Strategic Framework received due attention. A recurring strategic topic
was the envisaged strengthening of the collaboration with Eureko/
Achmea, which is being carefully pursued by the Executive Board and is
the subject of intensive consultation with the Supervisory Board.

Corporate governance

The Supervisory Board devoted a great deal of attention to the imple-
mentation of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code. In this context, a
decision was made to adjust the regulations of the various management
bodies and their committees.

Accommaodation of Rabobank Nederland
The Supervisory Board approved the investment for Rabobank
Nederland’s new headquarters in Utrecht.

Committees of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board has established five committees from among

its members. Their duties are to advise the Supervisory Board and to
prepare the Supervisory Board's decision-making. The Supervisory Board's
resolutions are based in part on advice supplied by the committees.
The membership of the committees at 31 December 2005 is presented

on the following page.

Reports of the committees of the Supervisory Board

The Audit Committee prepares the Supervisory Board's decision-making
on financial issues, including the policy on credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk and operational risk. The Audit Committee met six times in 2005.
The main subjects of discussion were the transition to IFRS, the 2004
financial statements and the management letter, including the manage-
ment response. The financial performance during the year and the
budget for 2006 were discussed with the Executive Board. The Audit
Committee, consistent with its terms of reference, further considered
the internal audit plan and the external accountant’s independence.
Lastly, it was resolved that the Audit Committee is to perform preparatory
work to test the ICT policy to allow the Supervisory Board's to properly
fulfil its supervisory role.

The Cooperative Issues Committee met four times in 2005. Major issues
discussed included the proposals by the Executive Board relating to the
member benefit system and the cooperative dividend. The committee
also considered the Member Banks Policy Framework for 2006.

In the year under review, issues dealt with by the Appointment
Committee included (re)appointments to the Supervisory Board and
succession issues at Rabobank Nederland. The Remuneration Committee
focused, among other things, on the evaluation of the remuneration
policy concerning the Executive Board. Both committees met four times
in 2005,

Due to lack of necessity, the Appeals Committee did not meet in the

year under review.




Proposal to the General Meeting

In compliance with the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association
of Rabobank Nederland, the Supervisory Board has reviewed the annual
report and the financial statements for 2005. This review included a dis-
cussion with the external auditors. Partly on the basis of the unqualified
auditors'report issued by Ernst & Young Accountants, the Supervisory
Board proposes that the General Meeting of Rabobank Nederland adopt
the financial statements for 2005 and appropriate the profit for the year
as proposed.

C

Committee and duties

Committee members

Audit committee
Preparatory work for the Supervisory Board's decision-making on financial issues
and ICT

M. Minderhoud

chairman

L.JM. Berndsen

permanent member
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AW.Veenman

rotating member

AJAM. Vermeer

rotating member

Cooperative Issues Committee

Preparatory work for the Supervisory Board's decision-making on intended poli-
cies of the Executive Board concerning the cooperative structure of the local
Rabobanks and of Rabobank Nederland

AJAM. Vermeer

chairman

L. Koopmans permanent member
PFM. Overmars permanent member
M.JM. Tielen permanent member
T. Boon rotating member
B. Bijvoet rotating member

J.AAM. van Rossum

rotating member

H.C. Scheffer

rotating member

AH.C.M, Walravens

rotating member

Appointment Committee L. Koopmans chairman
Preparatory work for the Supervisory Board's decision-making on the compositi- P.F.M. Overmars member
on of and (re)appointments to the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board H.C. Scheffer member
AW.Veenman member
AJAM. Vermeer member
AH.CM. Walravens member
Remuneration Committee A.H.CM. Walravens chairman
Preparatory work for the Supervisory Board’s decision-making on the remunera- L. Koopmans member
tion of the members of the Executive Board PF.M. Overmars member
H.C. Scheffer member
AW.Veenman member
AJAM. Vermeer member
Appeals Committee S.E. Eisma chairman
Advisory body of appeal in disputes between local Rabobanks or between one or  J A.AM. van Rossum member
more local Rabobanks and Rabobank Nederland M.J.M. Tielen member
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Learning package initiative by member council of
Rabobank ‘s Hertogenbosch en Omstreken

‘Wijsneus' teaches children to
deal with money

A number of people on the member council of Rabobank s-Hertogentosch and surroundings, together with Fontys
Teacher Training College and KPC Group, an educational advice group, are developing a learning package for children in
group 8, the highest form in elementary schools. In a few hours'time, Wijsneus enzo teaches them in a playful manner
to deal with money.




Strategy: Piotting a
course into the future

Autonomous growth - that is the success formula
underlying Rabobank's development. In the course
of nearly 110 years, it has grown from a collection
of small, cooperative rural banks into the largest
all-finance concern in the Netherlands, the
world’s leading food & agri bank and a globally
respected Triple A player. Likewise, sustained
autonomous growth is a leading factor in the
strategic course that Rabobank Group aims to
steer in the coming years.

In the Central Delegates Assembly (CKV) held on 22 March 2006 - the
‘parliament’ of the local Rabobanks - the exchange of ideas on the
strategic direction, which had been initiated in 2005, was concluded
with the finalisation of the Strategic Framework for 2005-2010. Besides
autonomous growth, this framework is founded on the following
indisputable principles:

Rabobank is and remains Dutch, with its dominant market position

in agri, among private individuals and in small and medium-sized
enterprises;

- Rabobank is and remains a cooperative; exceptions may be made for
Group subsidiaries;

Rabobank remains Triple A worthy;
- Rabobank remains independent. A complete sale is not an option.
in any merger with any other party, Rabobank will accept a majority

interest only.

Three growth areas

The new strategic framework profiles Rabobank as ‘the global food &

agri bank with its roots in the Netherlands'and in doing so distinguishes

three growth areas:

- Growth in the Dutch all-finance market, in particular through further
collaboration with Eureko/Achmea and through further strengthening
of Rabobank’s position in the top end of the private and corporate
markets:

- Continued expansion abroad as a leading international food & agri bank;

- Further growth of and synergy between the Group subsidiaries.

Strategy in the Netherlands - Market leader
in all-finance

Market leadership in all-finance in the Netherlands remains the chief
goal. In addition to the mass market for banking services to private indi-
viduals, small and medium-sized enterprises and the agricultural sector,
there are attractive opportunities for growth in the top end of the priva-
te and corporate markets, where Rabobank is in second position alrea-
dy. Equally rich in perspective are the ‘segments of the future’ - young
people and entrepreneurs from ethnic minorities - as well as the urban
areas and a number of product markets. Here, insurance, consumer
credits, investment and real estate financing are the spearheads.

Leverage distribution strength as a’'near-you bank’
Rabobank will leverage its distribution strength as the ‘near-you bank' of
the Netherlands, not just physically but also, and increasingly, virtually.
Using differentiated market strategies, it will respond to differences in
client segments, geographicat differences and distinct labels and distri-
bution channels. The bank’s answer to the growing competition on the
‘near-you'aspect lies in expansion of the number of client interface
points. By further expansion of the virtual bank, clients experience of

Rabobank as 'near-you'and personal must likewise be maintained.
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Successful merger between Interpolis and Achmea

The successful merger between Interpolis and Achmea has resulted in
the largest insurer of the Netherlands. This gave Rabobank a 32% interest
in Eureko, Achmea’s parent company, resulting in a total interest of 37%.
The combination creates attractive opportunities for organic growth, for
example by a broader product range, a larger number of Rabobank
clients with an insurance at Interpolis and by further implementation

of the multidistribution strategy. Work is continuing to extend the colla-
boration with Eureko/Achmea.

International strategy

International growth is necessary to support SME and corporate clients,
for they are increasing their operations on the global stage. This would
have the added advantages of easier access to the international capital
markets and enhancing Rabobank’s continued attractiveness as an
employer. The corporate bank Rabobank International aéims to be the
world’s leading food & agri bank. This ambition dovetails seamlessly
with Rabobank’s cooperative origins as the pre-eminent financier of the
Dutch agricultural sector and the enormous amount of expertise it has
developed.

Rabobank’s international operations can be divided into five categories:
- International retail banking

Here, Rabobank focuses on three growth markets. Topping the priority
list are traditionally agricultural countries with a stable climate and a
structurally attractive agricultural secter, such as the United States,
Australia and Canada. Second on the list are countries in Central, Eastern
and Southeastern Europe with a growing agricultural sector, such as
Poland and Turkey. Then follow the rapidly emerging countries with a
large agricultural sector, such as Brazil, Ching, India and Indonesia.
Projects in these countries are small-scale, in which the financial interest

is relatively limited.

- Support of Dutch clients abroad

In order to maintain its market leadership among clients with inter-
national operations, Rabobank will in the coming years work towards
strengthening the expertise and selling power of local advisers and
account managers, improving its product management and intensifying

the relationship management with partner banks abroad.

- International wholesale operations

In future years, and more than has been the case in the past, the inter-
national office network will focus its wholesale operations on Dutch
wholesale clients, besides the international food & agri clients. The primary
geographical focus is on Europe and the countries where Rabobank
International is developing retail operations.

- Professional market activities

Rabobank cherishes its Triple A rating and will continue to use it for a
selected number of profitable product/market combinations in the
professional financial markets. In view of the greater volatility of
professional markets, the target for the future is to realise around 50%

of international profits from international retail operations.

- Rabobank Development Programme (RDP)

Complementary to the successful activities of the Rabobank Foundation,
which started 30 years ago, the Rabobank Development Programme
{RDP) was established. The RDP's aim is to help a number of banks in
developing countries grow into successful ‘Rabobanks. During the next
few years, its activities will be focused on five countries, including China
and a number of countries in East Africa.




Strategy of the subsidiaries

Rabobank Group's Dutch subsidiaries play an important part in achieving
the Group'’s market leadership ambitions. In five years from now, they
should have virtually doubled their net profit and have achieved leading

market positions.

Robeco

Robeco's repositioning, which includes reaching a position among the
most profitable investment funds, has yielded its first results, In addition,
Robeco aims at higher sales volumes via Rabobank's local private banking

units and further development of third-party distribution.

De Lage Landen

In the Netherlands, De Lage Landen supports the local Rabobanks in the
area of small and medium-sized enterprises. Internationally, the object is
new collaboration in vendor lease and complementary products to use

cross-selling opportunities. Growth will also come from the distribution

of lease products via Rababank International and expansion of De Lage

Landen’s own network in Eastern Europe and Asia.

A single real estate division

Rabobank Group's real estate activities - Rabo Vastgoed {project develop-
ment) and FGH Bank (real estate financing) have been combined into a
single real estate division, enabling Rabobank to offer clients a product
that integrates all real estate disciplines. Close collaboration with the local
Rabobanks could then result in substantial growth of the real estate
business, including new market segments such as inner-city redevelop-

ment and complex financing structures in commercial real estate.

Organisational and financial implications

Rabobank Group’s strategic ambitions have been embedded in a
cooperative, high-quality and sustainability-driven organisation.

Strengthening the cooperative identity

The cooperative is and remains Rabobank's cornerstone. The local
cooperative Rabobanks and their central cooperative Rabobank
Nederland, which is also the holding company of the Group’s subsidiaries,
are and will continue to be managed in accordance with the cooperative
model. Over the past years, Rabobank has succeeded in strengthening

its cooperative identity and one of the results has been a large number
of new members of the local Rabobanks. Further development of active
member engagement is crucial to a permanent license to operate of
the local cooperative. In the coming years, the cooperative's distinct
character will be emphasised further, both internally and externally.

High-quality policy for HRM

The guality of our people is of paramount importance to the strategy.
The priority in HRM policy is to secure the required calibre of talented,
highly educated staff and managers.

Sustainability

Rabobank aims at building on its leading position in sustainability and
corporate social responsibility (CSR). It is working towards more CSR
criteria in all banking operations, more sustainable financial products
such as green financing and green investments, and more deeply
embedding sustainable development in its operations.

Ambitious financial targets

Rabobank Group maintains the following financial targets:
- Annual net profit growth of at least 12.0%;

- Tier I ratio at least 10.0 per annum;

- Return on equity of at least 10.0% per annum.

Itis along these strategic lines that Rabobank Group believes it can
provide optimum services to its clients both at home and abroad while
maintaining its sound financial ratios and remaining a good and attractive
employer. Thus, Rabobank Group can advantageously position itself for
the possible consolidation cycle in the European financial sector in the

medium-long term.




and outlook

With 16% profit growth, Rabobank Group perfor-
med well in 2005. Partly as a result of the issue of
new Member Certificates, the Tier | ratio rose to
11.6 (10.9). Return on equity was 9.1 (9.0)%.

Key financial targets

Rabobank Group aims at realising customer value, with financial stability
and employee value as preconditions. The precondition for financial
stability will be realised by pursuing the steady development of three
financial ratios: net profit growth, Tier | ratio and return on equity.
Rabobank Group has the following long-term targets for these ratios:

- Annual net profit growth at least 12.0%;

- Tier | ratio at least 10.0 per annum;

- Return on equity of at least 10.0% per annum.

Net profit up 16%

Net profit was EUR 290 million higher, at EUR 2,083 (1,793) million, a rise
of 16% and comfortably exceeding the long-term target. The growth of
net profit went hand in hand with an improvement of the efficiency
ratio and a lower tax burden.

Tier | ratio well above target

In the year under review, the Tier | ratio, which provides an insight into
the solvency position, increased from 10.9 to 11.6. This is well above the
target of 10.0. The Tier | ratio expresses the relationship between core
capital and total risk-weighted assets. Core capital increased by EUR 3.5
billion to EUR 24.9 billion in 2005. The Tier | ratio rose due to the addition
of net profit to reserves and the issue of EUR 2.0 billion in Member
Certificates. This issue was partly offset by a EUR 650 million redemption
of Trust Preferred Securities. Total risk-weighted assets were 9% higher at
EUR 213.9 billion.

Inancial targets

Return on equity 9.1%

In 2005, return on equity on an IFRS basis was 9.1%. This is below the
long-term target of 10.0%. In 2004, return on equity on a Dutch GAAP
basis was 10.1% but on an IFRS basis, it was 9.0%. In 2005, return on
equity therefore improved by 0.1 percentage points to 9.1%. Although the
long-term target of 10.0% was based on Dutch GAAP, Rabobank intends
to hold on to its target return on equity of 10.0%, even under IFRS.

Outlook

The recovery of the Dutch economy, which commenced in the second
half of 2005, is expected to continue and gather momentum in 2006.
Domestic spending, such as private consumption and corporate invest-
ments, will show a healthy increase in 2006. Exports are likewise set to
increase, in line with the growth recovery that has started elsewhere in
Europe as well. Because of the Europe-wide economic upturn and the
slightly higher rate of inflation, a slight rise in both the short-term and
the long-term interest rates is foreseen for 2006. Rabobank expects that,
viewed in a historical perspective, the interest rate in the Eurozone will
remain relatively low. The domestic banking operations could benefit
from the economic growth, precisely because the sectors with a more
domestic focus are now also contributing to the upturn. It is anticipated
however, that the fierce competition between banks in key market
segments such as small and medium-sized enterprises and the market
for mortgage loans, added to the continued low interest rate, will cause
interest margins to remain under pressure in 2006.

Worldwide, Rabobank expects a favourable economic trend for 2006,
with continuing, although somewhat lower growth in the United States
and China and moderate recovery of growth in Europe. These conditions
will present good opportunities for Rabobank Group to expand its inter-
national operations, particularly in leasing, wholesale and international
retail operations. By means of organic growth and selective (minor)
acquisitions, Rabobank will further expand its operations abroad.




Customer value ===

Rabobank attaches great value to having and
keeping satisfied customers. That is why one of its
core objectives is to create the highest possible
customer value. Customer value is reflected in the
degree of customer satisfaction and customer
loyalty. Rabobank is critical of itself and is keen to
learn from clients what it does well and what
could be improved. Customer satisfaction and
customer loyalty are measured through market
surveys and compared with those for competing
banks. In 2005, a new telephone survey method
showed that customer satisfaction among private
individuals had increased from 7.3 to 7.4.

The longer-term target for customer satisfaction
is at least 7.5.

Rabobank organises annual surveys of customer satisfaction and loyalty
among thousands of private and corporate clients of the local Rabobanks,
Robeco, Alex and - until recently - Interpolis. Up to and including 2004,
the survey was held via the Internet. In 2004, a new tefephone survey
method was started in parallel for the local Rabobanks.

The survey target is to gain insight into and to monitor customer
satisfaction and loyalty. The feedback received from clients is essential
for continued improvement of the services,

1 Based on the previous Internet survey method, customer
satisfaction in 2004 was 7.7, against a target of at least 7.5.

Target

- Graeto the highist po

Customer loyalty

The survey shows that customer loyalty is high and that client identifi-
cation with their own local Rabobank is strong. The loyalty rating for
private individuals remained high at 88% (89%), as did the rating for SME
clients, which was 70% (75%). Rabobank's score in the agricultural sector
is traditionally high. In 2005, customer loyalty averaged 86% (82%).

Customer satisfaction among private individuals

The survey also shows Rabobank’s high score for customer satisfaction.
In 2005, customer satisfaction among private individuals rose from 7.3

to 7.4. For the longer term, the target of an average minimum score of
7.5 is maintained. Under the previous survey method, the target score

was 7.5 as well.

The percentage of (highly) satisfied clients among private individuals
was 90% in 2005, against 89% in 2004. Compared with the competition,
the availability by telephone, staff expertise, quick access to the right
person and the quality of Internet banking were particularly valued.
Nevertheless, clients wish better information on the opening hours of the
local Rabobanks and greater transparency in product costs and charges.

In 2005, as many as 90% of clients of Rabobank Private Banking were
{highly) satisfied with the servicing. This was a significant 4-percentage
point increase on 2004. A survey by Incompany, in which Rabobank and
its subsidiary Schretlen & Co ended on top, confirmed the fact that
Rabobank is on the right track in this segment.

The specialised subsidiaries within Rabobank Group traditionally perform
well in comparison with their closest competitors. At 8.2, Alex showed
strong improvement compared with last year's already high rating of
7.8. Robeco Direct’s customer satisfaction was slightly lower at 7.3 (7.5).
The benchmerk for both is at 7.5.




Customer satisfaction among corporate clients

The percentage of (highly) satisfied corporate clients rose from 78% in
2004 to 80% in 2005. A breakdown by SME and the agricultural sector is
as follows. Rabobank’s score for (highly) satisfied clients in the critical
SME sector remains high at 75% {76% in 2004). Customer satisfaction
among agricultural clients showed a strong increase, from 86% in 2004
10 93% in 2005.

Brand values

Rabobank wants to be seen as a bank that is near the client, committed
and leading. These are Rabobank’s brand values. These values are
measured using a brand value monitor, in which private individuals and
businesses (both clients and non-clients) are asked with which of the
five large banks they most associate these brand values. In 2005,
Rabobank scored highest on all three aspects among both private
individuals and businesses. Rabobank may therefore justifiably be called
the most committed and leading bank near-you. The following table
shows the percentage of survey participants stating that the three
characteristics best applied to Rabobank.

Complaints management

Sound complaints management is essential to an organisation that
focuses on excellent service 1o its clients. Nonetheless, instances may
occur where a client is dissatisfied with a particular product or service.
And it is precisely such circumstances that enable the bank to show
what service means. Taking complaints seriously and respecting the

client’s feelings opens the way to reaching a solution together.

Question: with which of the five large banks do you most
associate the following characteristics?
[ 1

Brand values

2005 2004
Rabobank Rabobank
% ranking % ranking
Private individuals
Near-you 54 1 56 1
Committed 43 1 44 1
Leading 41 1 42 1
Businesses
Near-you 58 1 60 1
Committed 46 1 47 1

Leading 44 1 44 1

It is important to be clear about the complaints handling process, i.e.
what the client is entitled to expect and what the bank is doing about
his/her complaint. Serious investigations can then reveal what the pro-
blem really is and where a solution could be found. Finding a solution
together strengthens both the relationship and mutual appreciation.
The local Rabobank is the client’s first point of contact. If the client and
the bank are unable to find a solution together or if the solution is not
satisfactory to the client, he/she can submit the complaint to the
Complaints Service of Rabobank Nederland.

In 2005, the Complaints Service received 2,906 (3,246) complaints.
Having shown increases for many years, the number of complaints
showed a slight decrease for the first time. Likewise, the Disputes
Committee for the Banking Industry reported a decrease in the number
of appeal cases. In the year under review, the bank focused strongly on
service and customer satisfaction. In addition, clients are becoming
familiar with new farms of service, for example Internet banking.
Increasingly, information on banking services is accessible via the
Internet. Clear information reduces the number of misunderstandings.
The Complaints Service expressly involves the local Rabobanks in
complaints handling. More than one third of complaints submitted to the
Complaints Service was subsequently still dealt with in the first line, i.e.
at the local Rabobanks, with the Complaints Service providing advice
where necessary or desired. The Complaints Service sends monthly
reports on the data recorded by it to the departments involved and
submits relevant improvement proposals based on an analysis of the

complaints.

The top 5 of subjects giving rise to complaints in 2005 was as follows:

1. Disputed withdrawals made with bankcards stolen or lost in the
Netherlands (266);

2.Electronic banking (237);

3.Protests against entries in the incident register (122);

4.Payments processing (87);

5.Penalty interests for premature mortgage redemptions (84).

Source: Millward Brown Centrum research agency




Membership policy

The focus of Rabobank’s membership policy is on
strengthening member engagement at the local
Rabobanks and ensuring members’ control and
influence. Rabobank intends to keep the coopera-
tive idea alive, i.e. being in the midst of the local
community and being ‘near-you and committed
To that end, an increasing number of local
Rabobanks are establishing member councils. At
the end of 2005, fifty banks had a member council
and in 2006, this number should be between 80
and 100. Thanks to the member councils,
members’ control and influence will be anchored
more firmly than ever in Rabobank. Targets for
the coming years include further expansion and
intensification of the personal bond between the
bank and its members and further optimisation
of members’ control. In addition, there will be
stronger focus on the cooperative dividend, i.e.
support of community initiatives in the society in
which a local Rabobank operates.

Initially, membership policy focused on recruitment of more and more
committed members. Membership has grown considerably since 2000:
from 550,000 to mare than 1.5 million in 2005. In 2004, the membership
policy focus was shifted to achieving greater real members'control.
After all, members are clients who promote and monitor Rabobank’s
achieving its ambition to be a bank of and for clients and the community.
Defining members’control and influence further is one of the member-
ship policy’s main targets.

Staff, management and directors will be emphatically required to
demonstrate their cooperative disposition. One of the core duties of
the boards and the management of the local Rabobanks is to embed
the cooperative principles in the day-to-day operations of the bank’s
staff and management. Corporate social responsibility is another

important aspect in this context.

Member participation

In order to participate in the activities of their local Rabobank, members
can be elected board members, members of the member council or
members of the Supervisory Board. In addition, they can participate in
member panels and sounding-board groups on banking and social
issues such as distribution policy, support of community projects, the
development of banking services, customer segmentation or the further
profiling of membership. On a local level, the cooperative message will
increasingly be communicated directly to members and clients via local
Internet sites and informative regional newsletters. The aim is to get
more people actively engaged in the local Rabobanks and their com-

munity activities.

More control: the member councils

The upscaling at the local Rabobanks through mutual mergers is aimed
primarity at a more professional approach of the top end of the market.
This upscaling also involves risks. The move to a smaller number of larger
local Rabobanks could cause pressure on the traditional direct bond
with the local community. For that reason, a growing number of
merged local Rabobanks have put a lot of effort into the introduction of
member councils. A member council is an elected cross-section of the
member and client base and could, in the case of a large bank, consist
of over fifty members from many layers and professions in the local
community. The member council has assumed the majority of the
powers of the general meeting of members and meets more cften
during the year. The member councils’ powers include the appointment
of Supervisory Board members and the finalisation of the financial state-




Targets

ments. Obviously, the member council and the board also discuss other
topics, such as the bank’s strategic direction, the branch policy and the
service to clients. In addition, the member council is involved in the
selection of - and the grants from the Cooperative fund to - local com-
munity projects and forms of cooperative dividend.

Cooperative dividend

Rabobank's cooperative origins are based on the belief that collaboration
and bundling of forces yield better results than operating individually.
That is why Rabobank returns some of its profits - in the form of coope-
rative dividend - to the communities in which it operates. Each year,
local Rabobanks invest tens of millions of eurcs in the improvement of
their local economic, social and cultural environment without demanding
any direct compensation in return. Projects include weekend schools
for underprivileged young people and all kinds of sports events and
cultural manifestations. On a national level, self-help, self-organisation
and innovating entrepreneurship are stimulated through the Rabobank
Foundation, the Projects fund and the Herman Wijffels Innovation
award. Increasingly, funds for self-nelp and self-organisation are imple-
mented on a local level as well. Thus, Rabobank demonstrates that it
takes its core values of being near-you' and ‘committed’ seriously.

Member loyalty programme

The cooperative dividend benefiting the local community can be seen
as a collective member benefit. Its added value to the individual mem-
bers is that they get the opportunity to exercise maximum control and
influence within their local Rabobank on its allocation. Over the past
few years, extensive research has been done as to whether members
should be offered, via a member benefit system, individual benefits
besides the collective benefit. During 2005, the local Rabobanks discussed
this subject in more detail. Eventually it was decided in December 2005
to opt for recognition of major clients by means of special banking and
non-banking offers, for example in the areas of mortgages and insurance.
These special offers will be announced via the U’ member magazine,
among others,

Member bank of the year

In the year under review, the ‘Member bank of the year' competition
was organised for the second time. In 2004, members’ control was its
central theme and the title was ‘Learning from members. The theme for
2005 was ‘Near-you through collaboration’ Rabobank Geldrop & Heeze-
Leende was selected as the winner from among three nominated local
Rabobanks. The bank guided groups of start-ups on their way to a
successful enterprise. Each month, a task force comprising employees
and clients established which activities would be undertaken. Former
entrepreneurs acted as a sounding board for the start-ups and advised
them. Also involved in the project were successful entrepreneurs, fellow
start-ups, the Chamber of Commerce and Industry and the

Entrepreneurs’ Association.

Membership policy in the future

The local Rabobanks are working hard on further defining the member-
ship policy. Embedding members’ control and influence and mativating
truly engaged members are at the core of this. More and more member
councils will be installed that will act as committed sounding boards

to beoards of directors and management. In addition, the diversity of ini-
tiatives in the area of cooperative dividend will be made more visible by
raising members” awareness of these initiatives. An important condition
for this is that the cooperative principles of the local Ralbobanks are
embedded deeper in the competencies, attitude and behaviours of staff,
managers and boards of directors.




The pecple

at Rabobank

People make Rabobank. They have done so for
almost 110 years. They do so now and the future
will be no different. The world is rapidly changing
and Rabobank Group is anticipating this.
Changing customer requirements, technological
progress, the pursuit of a sustainable society,
internationalisation and, above all, heightened
competition are having far-reaching consequences
for the bank and its staff. Distribution channels

as well as marketing and branch formulas must
continually be adjusted to external developments.
The market demands heightened professionalism.
This is made possible by upscaling the local
Rabobanks through mutual mergers, but also
requires tailored support from Rabobank
Nederland. Operation Service enables Rabobank
Nederland to meet those changing service needs.
At the same time, Rabobank has made no secret
of its strong ambition for international growth
and in the coming years, Rabobank’s human
resources policy will focus on enhancement of
management quality, inflow in the top end of the
market and an international orientation.

The policy framework entitled ‘People make the bank’ describes the
most important requirements that Rabobank staff must fulfil, now and
in the future: customer focus, team players and focus on results.
Moreover, expertise is essential. Rabobank Group has high ambitions
that require broadly educated employees and managers, flexibility,
accountability and long-term employability.

Local Rabobanks: larger and more professional

Under the 'Vision 2005+ policy statement, an upscaling process for the
local Rabobanks was started some years ago. In 2005, there were 31
mutual mergers, involving 71 banks. Around thirty mergers are planned
for 2006, involving more than 75 banks. At 31 December 2005, the
number of local Rabobanks was 248. For the end of 20086, this is expected
to be around 200, for the merger wave is to continue this year. This has
far-reaching consequences for the work environment at local Rabobanks
as well as for their management. Stronger professionalisation is required
because many specialist jobs in Rabobank Nederland will be transferred
to the local Rabobanks.

Operation Service

Through Operation Service, Rabobank Nederland is realising a new
organisation structure that ties in seamlessly with the new structure of
the local Rabobanks, insofar as they have been enlarged as a result of
the upscaling exercise, For these banks, Operation Service will result not
only in better-tailored, transparent support but also in lower costs.

In 2005, the majority of local Rabobanks indicated that they appreciated
the changes made in the services.
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Natural turnover

Operation Service aims at a FTEs reduction of 1,200. This will be achieved
by natural turnover, by not extending temporary contracts, by termina-
ting contracts with third parties and early retirement. In 2005, there was
an outflow of 509 FTEs under Operation Service. Arrangements for sur-
plus staff and possibilities for relocation were made in close consultation
with the staff representative bodies.

Rabobank Group workforce reduced

Rabobank Group's workforce declined by a total of 5,336 staff in 2005 to
50,988. Adjusted for Interpolis, the number of staff increased by 487,
mainly due to growth abroad. Job positions were lost particularly at
local Rabbobanks and at Rabobank Nederland, due mainly to the further
implementation of current efficiency programmes, growing digitalisation
and the associated popularity of electronic banking and the local mergers.
At Rabobank Nederland, positions were eliminated under Operation
Service. At the same time, new positions were created as a result of new
activities and because duties performed at the local Rabobanks were
transferred to Rabobank Nederland. On balance, the number of employ-
ees at Rabobank Nederland declined more than 100 in 2005 to 5,695.

Inflow of new staff

In order to ensure continuous renewal, over 3,000 new employees
joined Rabobank. There was an inflow of better educated staff into all
Group entities. For top talents among graduates, two trainee program-
mes have been started with arcund twenty participants each.

Mirror of society

Rabobank aims to be a proper mirror of society. Diversity in its people
and their cultures makes it easier to respond to the expectations of
modern customers and the changes in society. In recent years, there has
been a greater focus on the recruitment of non-indigenous staff.
Numerous activities are developed in that context in the large cities in
particular, partly in view of Rabobank’s target to gain market share in

urban areas as well. At present, 8.7% of all Rabobank staff are non-indi-
genous. For a number of years, the bank has been actively seeking
opportunities to appoint more women in senior functions, and success-
fully so: at present, 109% of senior management are women, against 4%
in 2000.

The new Collective Labour Agreement 2005-2007

fn mid-2005, a new Collective Labour Agreement (CLA) was concluded
with the trade unions for the period 2005-2007. It anticipates numerous
changes in conditions of employrment that staff will face as from 2006.
These changes are the consequences of new legislation on early retire-
ment, (pre)pension, life-span leave, a new disablility policy, the introduc-
tion of the new basic health care insurance and changing tax rules for
death benefits. Many of these changes came into effect on 1 January
2006. The consequences of this new legislation have been incorporated
in the new CLA, including not only repair measures but, in particular,
also taking another step towards further renewal of the employment
conditions package. In this respect, Rabobank has a leading position on
several scores, for example with the introduction of a personal budget
and by offering more pension plan options. This renewal renders staff
more accountable for the composition of their employment conditions
package and for the consequences of their choices. This dovetails with
the development envisaged by Rabobank: to give employees (greater)
control over their own future.

A sustainable relationship, not a job for life

Rabobank’s human resources policy is based on a long-term, sustained
and sustainable relationship with employees. The bank expects them to
successfully and enthusiastically commit themselves and all their talents
10 the bank and its clients. Mobility is an important factor in maintaining
a vigorous organisation. Consequently, an effort is being made to
promote the flow of staff between different Group entities and local
Rabobanks, partly in response to the changing demand from the local
Rabobanks. The upscaling has resulted in a need for more demanding




management positions. In addition, more highly educated commercial
staff and business management specialists are required.

Promotion opportunities abound for employees who have proved
themselves successful. If an employee at some point does not completely
fit his/her job description but his/her talents are valuable to the bank at
a lower job and salary level, then demotion is possible. If there is no
suitable job in the organisation, the employee concerned can count on
ample support in finding new opportunities outside the organisation.
In exchange for the efforts of its staff, Rabobank invests substantially in
coaching and training and it rewards good efforts with an excellent
salary and generous fringe benefits.

Performance Management

In 2005, a new remuneration and assessment system was started, entitled
Performance Management. This system stimulates result-driven
(co-)operation by agreeing clear and measurable targets, which are linked
to both fixed and variable remuneration. At the beginning of 2005,
targets for 2005 were agreed with all employees individually. At various
points during the year, staff and their line managers reviewed the agree-
ments. The first remuneration based on the new system will follow in
2006. Several entities within Rabobank Group, such as Robeco and Alex,
use some form of performance assessment and variable remuneration.

Investing in employability

A personal development plan is important, especially in these times of
many change projects and mergers. Both employers and employees
have a mutual interest in the broadest staff employability possible.

In order to implement this aspect in further detail, 2 development plan
is drawn up in consultation between the employee and his/her line
manager that is tailored to the individual. Practical tools are available to
both staff and managers for the purpose of drawing up this perscnal
development plan (PDP).

In 2005, 62% of staff at Rabobank Nederland and the local Rabobanks had
a PDP, against 72% in 2004. This reduction was due mainly to the imple-
mentation of Performance Management, following which a distinction

was made between development activities with a 1-year planning
horizon and those with a horizon of 2-5 years. Due to the practicability
of the new material, an increase of the percentage of staff with a PDP is
expected for 2006.

The importance of learning

in its training offer, Rabobank distinguishes between functional, career
oriented and leadership training courses. Over the past years, the
emphasis has shifted from pure knowledge transfer to improving the
quality of management and increasing the commercial effectiveness.

[n the coming years, the Financial Services Act will determine which
knowledge should be available in client services. Rabobank is ready for
this new legislation.

In 2005, staff members attended 94,500 (80,000) training courses,
involving an amount of EUR 68.7 (69.0) million, equal to 2.6% (2.7%) of
the total wage bill.

Employees increasingly study via the Internet. After a spectacular growth
in 2004, the number of e-learners increased further in 2005. In all, 77,500
(55,000) training courses were offered via the Internet and 25,000
(34,000) digital exams were taken. Employees all over the world are now
using the e-learning programmes that were first developed by
Rabobank International in 2004.

Trainees at Rabobank Group

Rabobank is keen to offer promising students traineeship opportunities
to experience how challenging working for Rabobank Group can be.

In 2005, 937 students were offered traineeship contracts at Rabobank
Group: 801 of them performed their traineeships at a local Rabobank
and the remaining 136 at Rabobank Nederland.

More than half of the trainees at an organisational level attend higher
vocational training (59% of the women and 50% of the men).

Locking at the traineeship contracts at Rabolbank Nederland, the level
of education shows an upward shift to academic levels: 75% of the men
are in academic education, while for the wornen it is 56%.

Most trainees are indigenous; 13% are from ethnic minorities.




Employees satisfied with working at Rabobank

General satisfaction with working conditions was maintained at a high
level in 2005. The Periodic Identity and Working Conditions Opinion Poll
showed that 81% (2004: 85%) of all employees (fully) agreed with the
statement all things considered, | am satisfied to be working as an
employee at Rabobank’ Considering the many changes within
Rabobank Nederland and the tumultuous developments at the local
Rabobanks, this is a very pleasing result indeed. Rabobank's performance
on this aspect is significantly better than the external benchmark of 40
large enterprises (75%) and the benchmark of enterprises in the financial
sector (72%). High satisfaction with working conditions is also reflected
in the low absenteeism due to illness, which declined further in 2005,
from 3.8% to 3.7%.

More information on staff is to be found in the Annual Sustainability Report:—!

www.rabobankgroup.nl/sustainability

—

Breakdown of staff numbers at Rabobank Group

Netherlands Abroad Total 2005 Total 2004

Domestic retail banking 33,797 - 33,797 33,855
Wholesale banking and international retail banking 1,345 4,644 5,989 5,575
Asset management and investment 1,430 532 1,962 2,028
Leasing 891 2,252 3,143 2,844
Real estate 336 - 336 302
Insurance - - - 5,823
Support units and Other 5,761 5,761 5,897
Rabobank Group 43,560 7,428 50,988 56,324
Absenteeism due to illness 3.7% 3.8%
Employee satisfaction 81.0% 85.0%
68.7 69.0

Training investments (EUR million)




Rabobank Tilburg supports the ‘Broke’ Foundation

Supporting people in
financial straits

The Tilburg Institute for Social Work (IMW) supports people who are experiencing problems. For example, the Stichting
Blut (Broke Foundation’), which is part of IMW, helps people in financial straits manage their budgets. They get two
accounts at Rabobank Titburg: one for paying their fixed charges, the other for their living expenses.




“My colleagues find it a breeze to visit clients

at home on a Rabobank bike”

obels themdean upthegamownts.




Coffee and cocoa trade flows
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This World Map has been published in line with Rabobank’s long-term commitment to the international food and agribusiness.

| It is one of a series of publications undertaken by the global department of Food & Agribusiness Research and Advisory.




Our core activities

the whole is greater than the sum of the parts

Rabobank Group is a financial service The activities of these units comprise:
provider founded on cooperative principles - wholesale banking - both in the
and pursues an all-finance concept. Netherlands and throughout the rest of
The domestic retail business of the local the world - with particular focus on the
Rabobanks is at the core of this. The concept  (international) food & agri sector;
is complemented by the specialist know- - international retail banking;
ledge and activities of other Group units. - asset management and investment;

- leasing;

- real estate;

- insurance.

Thanks to the close collaboration between
the Group units there is a high degree of
synergy within Rabobank Group: in other
words, the whole is greater than the sum
of the parts.




Core activiti®es Local Rabobanks and Obvion

Domestic retail banking

2005 was not an easy year for the domestic

retail banking operations. The dominant market
positions in the small and medium-sized enter-
prises sector, the agricultural sector, savings and
mortgages were maintained. Market share in
mortgages, particularly, declined slightly due to
fierce competition, which also led to slightly lower
margins. Net profit was 35% higher, at EUR 1,024
million, due in part to non-recurring results.

Market and clients

The tentative economic recovery which started in the Netherlands in 2004
did not regain its momentum until the second half of 2005. The growth
in world economy levelled off slightly, so that Dutch exports declined.
Purchasing power likewise declined and consumer confidence remained
low. As a result, the Dutch economy showed only marginal growth.
Financial services were characterised by fierce competition in the mort-
gages market in 2005, which put margins under further pressure. Many
clients took advantage of the historically low interest rates, thereby
raising activities in the mortgages market to an unprecedented level.

In 2005, a record amount of EUR 113 billion in new mortgages and
mortgage switches was achieved in the Netherlands, a rise of 24%
compared with 2004.

Total lending by the domestic retail banking operations was 9% higher,
at EUR 200.7 (183.6) billion, with private individuals accounting for 70%,
the trade, industry and services sector for 19% and the agricultural sector
for 11%. Also in 2005, major steps were made in insurance in collaboration

with Eureko, resulting in a broader product range for the client.

More client interface points

The bank near-you'- that is what the local Rabobanks wish to be and to
remain for their clients. The number of physical client interface points
rose by 2% in 2005 to 3,031. Due to mergers, the number of local
Rabobanks fell from 288 to 248. The number of branches declined by 50
10 1,249. The reduction was however more than offset by an increase in
the number of other interface points, many of which are within
healthcare institutions and homes for the elderly.

The new branch policy, which was presented in 2004, was implemented
further in the year under review. The branches operate under a range of
different concepts, so that clients can obtain specialist or more standard
advice, depending on their needs.

fn August 2005, Rabobank was the first bank to introduce mobile ATMs
for use at fairs, concerts, sports events and the like, The increase in the
use of direct channels of the past years continued in 2005. With approxi-
mately 2.2 million unique visitors each month, the Rabobank website is
one of Europe’s busiest bank sites. Rabobank stimulates the use of the
virtual channels, for example by organising training courses for the elderly.

Private clients

Half of all the households in the Netherlands use the banking services
of the local Rabobanks. These banks offer a comprehensive package of
financial services 1o private clients that is tailored to their needs. In the
past years, a great deal has been invested in realising a shift from pro-
duct segmentation to client segmentation. This shift has been executed
successfully, as attested for example by a customer satisfaction survey
by Incompany among consumers in the professional services sector.
The service is highly appreciated by private banking clients of the local
Rabobanks (capital or income > EUR 80,000). In the survey, Rabobank
was second only to its own subsidiary Schretlen & Co, and the local
Rabobanks left all the other reputable private banks well behind.
Similarly, customer satisfaction among private clients generally increased
from 7.3 in 2004 to 7.4 in 2005.
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In the year under review, private lending grew by 11% to 141.7 (128.0)
billion. The increase was mainly in mortgage loans, which grew by
EUR 14 billion to EUR 137.8 billion.

Fierce competition in the mortgages market

The enormous growth in the mortgages market confronting the local
Rabobanks in the year under review went hand in hand with unprece-
dented competition. There was significant growth of 14% but because
this was outstripped by the market'’s growth rate, market share declined
from 20.6% to 18.9%. Obvion, the joint venture between Rabobank and
ABP pension fund that sells mortgages via the broker channel, saw a
decline of its market share by 0.5 percentage points to 4.1%. The com-
bined market share of the local Rabobanks and Obvion was 23.0%
(25.2%) in 2005.

The growth in the mortgages market was realised mainly from mortgage
switches. Many clients took advantage of the historically low interest
rates and switched their mortgages to a lower rate. In 2004, this was
done frequently against a short-term fixed-interest rate but because of
the risks involved if interest rates rise, clients were stimulated in the year
under review to fix the interest rate for a longer period. Consequently,
new 20, 25 and 30-year interest rate periods were introduced, with
campaigns offering clients higher discounts if they were prepared to fix
their interest rates for a longer period. Likewise, in the final months of
2005 an identical rate was used for mortgages with fixed interest rate
periods of 6 to 11 years inclusive.

Rising market share in savings

The Dutch savings market grew by 5% to EUR 209 billion in 2005, with
the greater part realised in Internet savings. In the final months of the
year, fixed-term deposits fell because of the release of save-as-you-earn
accounts. In 2005, Rabobank Group's market share in savings rose by 0.8
percentage points to 39.4%, with the local Rabobanks accounting for
37.1% and Robeco Group's savings bank Roparco for 2.3%.

At year-end, Rabobank Group’s total savings amounted to EUR 86.2
(78.3) billion, the greater part of which, EUR 77.7 (71
to the local Rabobanks.

.9) billion is entrusted

Corporate clients

Collaboration in the corporate segment pays off. In the 2005 edition of
Rabobank’s Figures & Trends publication, in which it analyses 75 branches,
collaboration was the central element. Around a quarter of all enterprises
participate in some sort of collaborative venture. By combining forces,
cost benefits can be realised and improvements in an enterprise’s own
products and services range can be achieved.

In serving their corporate clients, the local Rabobanks work together
closely with the account managers and product specialists of Rabobank
Nederland Corporate Clients (RNCC), Rabobank International and De
Lage Landen. This produces a good mix of local knowledge and product
expertise. That this collaboration pays off is evident from the title ‘Bank
of the Year'that Rabobank was awarded by corporate clients for the
quality of its professional services.

Corporate lending was EUR 3.5 billion higher in 2005, at EUR 59.1 billion.
This is a rise of 6%. The percentage of (highly) satisfied clients was also
higher, rising from 78% in 2004 to 80% in 2005.

Small and medium-sized enterprises

A number of SME sectors (small and medium-sized enterprises) suffered
from unfavourable market conditions over the past years. SMEs with
their main focus abroad benefited from still-expanding exports but
those focusing on domestic consumers went through a difficult time,
For them, 2005 was another tough year, mainly because of a lack of
consumer confidence, declining purchasing power and price wars in
several sectors. In addition, there was a decline in customer loyalty.
Nevertheless, most SMEs adjusted to this economic situation by optimi-
sing their internal processes and staff numbers. That there are sufficient
opportunities even in a difficult market is demonstrated by the fact that




75,000 start-up enterprises were recorded last year, particularly in pro-
fessional services. The number of SMEs grew by 3.6% in 2005 to 690,000.
The number of clients at the local Rabobanks also increased, but the
increase was outstripped by the growth in the number of SMEs.

Market share among SMEs

Last year, the local Rabobanks were the clear market leader in the SME
segment. As reported in a market survey by TNS NIPO, their market
share declined slightly in 2005, by 2 percentage points, due to increased
competition. However, at 38% it remains solid. The expectations are that
due to the renewed focus of competing banks on small and medium-
sized enterprises, the local Rabobanks will have to do their utmost in
coming years to maintain their market share. The competition was felt
particularly keenly in the construction and the wholesaling sectors.

iDEAL: easier and safer payments via the Internet

The number of payments via the Internet has shown strong growth in
recent years. In order to guarantee security and to replace payments by
giro collection forms and single direct debit mandates, banks have
opted for a new payments standard. In collaboration with other large
banks, the new payments standard IDEAL has been introduced on the
Internet. iDEAL is an important innovation for corporate clients in the
retail segment that is developing strongly. It is anticipated that this new
standard will cause consumers to buy more via the Internet. An impor-
tant benefit to corporate clients is the guarantee that payments are
received in time. This also applies to charity foundations, which use
IDEAL for the same reason.

Investing in entrepreneurship

At the end of 2005, Rabobank launched a new advertising campaign for
corporates. Its message is: Rabobank invests in entrepreneurship.
Rabobank's vision is that success in the longer term rather than short-
term profit is key. Forward-looking and continually adjusting enterprises
stand a better chance of healthy and sustained development. By offering
a comprehensive service package and extra financial support, the local
Rabobanks aim at giving these entrepreneurs an opportunity to realise
their ambitions. In addition, Rabobank invests in creative entrepreneurs
via (innovative) funds and business prizes such as the Herman Wijffels

Innovation Award.

Focus on start-ups

The number of start-up businesses grew in 2005, in spite of the unfa-
vourable economic conditions. Almost half of these start-ups set up
business in the large cities, Starting up an enterprise successfully is no
easy thing, and a helping hand is always welcome. Rabobank is pleased
to lend that helping hand, not only financially, for example by means of
micro-credits and its springboard mortgage, but also by opening up its
network. Rabobank Amsterdam, together with District Southeast
(Stadsdeel Zuidoost) and the Municipality of Amsterdam, has established
a micro-credit fund for the District Southeast. Small businesses from this
district often are not eligible for regular financing because they are
considered a risk group. With the aid of this fund, they can obtain small
loans with a maximum term of 5 years. Various local Rabobanks have
meanwhile joined this initiative.

The Rabobank branch in Geldrop & Heeze-Leende helps start-ups by
organising regular meetings and workshops where they meet experien-
ced (former) entrepreneurs. The exchange of knowledge, contacts and
experience gives start-ups a greater chance of success. The response to
this start-up network is very positive and earned Rabobank Geldrop &
Heeze-Leende the title of Member Bank of the year 2005.

Lending up 5%

In the year under review, lending in the trade, industry and services
sector grew by 5% to EUR 375 (35.6) billion. The increase in lending to
the transport, healthcare, recreation and real estate sectors was higher
than average, whereas lending to wholesaling and construction enter-
prises declined. Due to customers grew slightly, partly as a result of a

prudent investment policy.

Food & agri sector

Rabobank is originally a bank of and for farmers and horticulturists and
the food & agri sector remains of great importance to Rabobank. This
sector comprises primary agriculture and horticulture as well as the
associated supply and processing industries. Currently, there is a consoli-
dation cycle in the food & agri sector that is leading to an increased scale
of operations and extensive automation. In the primary sector, large-
scale and highly specialised businesses will account for an ever-growing
part of food and flower production. The supply and processing elements
in the chain are experiencing the same trend.




For the local Rabobanks, this means that the number of food & agri
clients will continue to decline but that average financing per enterprise
will grow. A noticeable trend is that besides the more standard services,
demand for risk-bearing products and hedge instruments is increasing.
Sale & leaseback constructions are becoming household words in glass
house horticulture and pig farming, as are interest rate derivatives.

The bank is increasingly and more urgently requested to respond to and
participate in assessing various developmenits. Business relocations and
large investments ('spronginvesteringen’) are increasing in number.

The growing volatility in revenues requires tailor-made products.

It is anticipated that many agriculturists will end their business activities
in the next few years. In order to retain these clients for Rabobank, we are
working closely with Private Banking. The young agriculturists that are
taking over businesses are another group that is important for the bank
and the sector. Rabobank is the main sponsor of the Nederlands Agrarisch
Jongeren Kontakt (Dutch Agricultural Young People’s Association).

The Rabo Land Value Plan has been developed for young clients with a
sound strategy for the future and for clients wishing to phase out their
activities. Under this form of financing, agricultural entrepreneurs with
land of their own can get redemption-free loans secured by the land.

Food & agri expertise

In order to keep abreast of developments in the agricultural sector,
Rabobank Nederland has a special Food & Agri department where all
expertise has been bundled. Clients, local Rabobanks and Rabobank’s
international network can benefit from this knowledge centre. Its know-
ledge is shared by means of, for example, presentations and studies on
diverse subjects. Trade flows are illustrated in the Flower Map, which
was presented at the Hortifair. The study for the Dutch dairy farming
sector, entitled Between Passion and Pressure, was a central element at
many seminars throughout the country. Another example is the analysis
of the effects of the sugar regime revision. Via presentations in various
European countries, clients have been informed of the conseguences
of this revision.

Naturally, bird fiu also received a great deal of attention. A risk analysis
showed which risks clients - but also the local Rabobanks themselves -
may be exposed to should bird flu spread in the Netherlands and which
options are at hand to minimise those risks.

In addition, the knowledge centre investigates opportunities for growth.
For example, it carried out a study of the biofuels market, which has
enormous potential. Besides offering farmers very promising opportuni-
ties, it requires significant financing and the knowledge centre informs
and advises clients on this.

Stable market share in agricultural sector

Despite increased competitive pressures, particularly in horticulture,
market share in the agricultural sector remained virtually stable in 2005,
at 83% (84%). Besides market share, the customer satisfaction among
agricultural clients was also surveyed. Customer satisfaction in the food
& agri sector rose substantially in 2005, with the percentage of clients
stating they were ‘highly satisfied’ with Rabobank rising from 86 to 93.

Innovation is also important in the agricultural sector

For the agricultural sector tog, it is important to continually seek innova-
tion in products, services, processes and sustainability. Almost three-
quarters of agricultural businesses are working on optimisation of their
business processes and more than half wish to improve their products
and services. External factors play a part as well. Due to the recent
strong rise in energy prices, glass house horticulturists in particular are
compelled to find solutions leading to lower energy consumption.
Not surprisingly, this sector is considered the most innovative, Good
examples are the Greenhouse as a Source of Energy and The Closed
Greenhouse, which are initiatives with close involvemnent of the
Rabobank. In livestock production, the rise in energy prices and the
need to store more manure has focused the attention on fermenting
installations. Co-fermentation of manure together with other organic
matter is ready for practical use in livestock production.

Targeting agricultural entrepreneurs aiming to invest in innovation,
sustainability and increased scale of operations, Rabobank introduced
the Rabo Growth & Innovation Loan in 2005. This loan of up to EUR 1.5
million offers farmers a financing solution if capital intensive investments




do not provide sufficient certainty. The loans are guaranteed by the
Rabobanks Guarantee Fund Foundation, which has been established to
stimulate business activities among members of the local Rabobanks.

Lending to food & agri up 8%

Lending to the food & agri sector showed relatively strong growth and
was 8% higher, at EUR 21.5 (20.0) billion. The primary agricultural sector
accounted for the greater part of this increase, growing by 15% to

EUR 17.8 (15.4) billion. Growth was seen particularly in services to the
arable farming, dairy production and glass house horticulture sectors.
These sectors seem to enjoy great interest on the part of other providers
of financial services as well. The other sectors were virtually unchanged.
Lending to the pig-farming segment declined slightly. During the past
year, the local Rabobanks succeeded in growing their number of larger
loans owing to a more specialised focus on the larger businesses in
these sectors as well as the excellent collaboration between various
specialisations within the Rabobank Groep. It is becoming increasingly
clear that Rabobank is succeeding in producing tailor-made offers for
large business expansions while making optimum use of innovative
solutions. The sale & lease back construction is an example that enables

entrepreneurs to achieve significant benefits.

Financial results

Net profit up 35%

Net profit of the domestic retail banking operations was 35% higher, at
EUR 1,024 million. Income was EUR 258 million higher, at EUR 5,431
million, a rise of 5%. The greater part of income, 77%, comprises interest
income. This item rose by 6% to EUR 4,176 (3,949) million. The growth in
interest income therefore lagged behind growth in lending and savings.
Largely due to the narrow margins resulting from the levelling-out of
the yield curve and increased competition on the mortgage market, the
growth in net interest income was unable to keep pace with the growth
in lending and savings. With many private and business borrowers
taking advantage of the low mortgage interest rates last year to refinance

on more favourable terms, interest income benefited from one-off
payments of penalty interest. In order to neutralise part of this effect,
derivative contracts linked to the mortgage loans were likewise repaid
prematurely, which resulted in losses. As a result of these two effects
interest income showed a net increase. Interest income for 2004 includes
a non-recurring charge on the investment portfolio.

Commission income was up 4% at EUR 1,205 (1,156) million, reflecting
the improved stock market climate which generated higher commission
income from securities. Commission income from funds transfer and

insurance was also higher.

Lower expenses

Total expenses were 1% lower at EUR 3,735 (3,754) million, reflecting a
decrease in other operating expenses. Staff costs rose 8% to EUR 1,990
{1,836) million, due to higher pension expenses, regular salary adjust-
ments and increased expenditure on temporary staff The number of
internal FTEs decreased marginally to 28,909 in 2005. Other operating
expenses were EUR 173 million lower at EUR 1,745 million, due 10 a
decrease (9%) in expenses charged by Rabobank Nederland to the
affiliated banks and lower depreciation.

The efficiency ratio (total expenses/total income) improved in 2005 from
72.6% to 68.8%.

Risk-related costs down

Value adjustments were EUR 72 million lower at EUR 175 million, Risk-
related costs amounted to 14 basis points of the average risk-weighted
assets. This is 7 basis points lower than in 2004, in line with the improve-
ment in the foan portfolio, which consists predominantly of personal

lending.

The operating result before tax increased 30% to EUR 1,521 (1,172)
million. Adjusting for the non-recurring results referred to above, the
increase amounted to 13%.




Ambitions and outlocok for 2006

Customer satisfaction is an important spearhead for 2006. The local
Rabobanks will show that despite their upscaling through mutual
mergers, the high quality of service provision will be maintained.

The number of client interface points will continue to grow and the
possibilities for virtual banking will be expanded. The service focus will
likewise be strengthened further, especially by listening to clients and
providing advice at the times when it is important to the client. In addi-
tion, the local Rabobanks aim at maintaining and if possible expanding,
their dominant market share and at strengthening their position at the
top of the private and corporate markets and in the large cities.

For 2006, it is anticipated that the interest margin will decline further.
Total income, the greater part of which is interest income, will be under
pressure as a result.

For more information

www.rabobank.com

Results (in EUR millions) 2005 2004 change
Interest 4,176 3,949 6%
Fees and commission 1,205 1,156 4%
Other income 50 68 -26%
Total income 5,431 5173 5%
Staff costs 1,990 1,836 8%
Other operating expenses 1,745 1,918 -9%
Total expenses 3,735 3,754 -1%
Gross profit 1,696 1,419 20%
Value adjustments 175 247 -29%
Operating profit before taxation 1,521 1,172 30%
Net profit 1,024 757 35%
Risk-related costs (in basis points) 14 21 -33%
Balance sheet (in EUR billions) 31-Dec-05 31-Dec-04

Total assets 219.8 201.5 9%
Private sector lending 200.7 183.6 9%
Savings 777 719 8%
Total risk-weighted items 132.8 124.9 6%
FTEs 28,909 28,970 0%
Market share

Mortgages 23% 25%
Agricultural sector 83% 84%

Trade, industry and services 38% 40%

Savings 39% 39%




Core activities international wholesale and retail banking focused on food & agri

Wholesale banking and international

retail banking

In 2005, the wholesale banking operations and the
international retail banking operations realised a
3% increase of net profit, to EUR 573 (555) million.
This was achieved in a highly competitive market
characterised by pressure on margins. Global
Financial Markets performed well overall. in mid-
2005, this entity integrated the Equities and
Equity Derivatives activities of Rabo Securities in
its operations. 2005 was a moderately good year
for Corporate Finance, partly as a result of the
changed focus of Structured Finance. In the same
period, Gilde Investment Management was sold
to its existing management.

The acquisition of the Community Bank of Central California, which was
announced in 2005, was finalised in early 2006. Also in 2005, a start was
made on expanding the agricultural activities in Brazil. The strategic
collaboration with the Turkish Sekerbank, which was announced in late
2004, fell through in early 2006. Rabobank's intention had been to
acquire a majority interest in order to strengthen its international retail
operations. However, early in 2006 Sekerbank’s pension fund - its largest
shareholder - decided against the sale of the shares to Rabobank.

Market and clients

The world economy showed healthy growth in 2005, as it did the year
before. Positive contributions came from the United States and Asia,
with Europe lagging behind again. In Europe, the rise of the short-term
interest rate in 2005 went hand in hand with a decline in the long-term
interest rate, as a result of which the yield curve levelled off slightly.

in the United States this curve levelled off as well due to the steep rise in
the short-term interest rate. Excess global liquidity resulted in increased
competition and tighter margins, the effects of which were felt particu-
larly keenly in lending and in the activities of Global Financial Markets.

20% increase in lending

Total private sector lending rose by EUR 9.2 billion to EUR 54.2 (45.0)
billion. A strong contribution to the increase came from the American
region, where lending rose by more than 30%, largely as a result of the
stronger US dollar.
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Lending to the agricultural sector grew by EUR 7.0 billion in 2005, to
EUR 23.1
Lending to the trade, industry and services sector increased by 7% to
EUR 28.5 (26.6) billion

There was strong growth in lending in the United States. At the end of
2005, the United States accounted for 27% of lending, Europe for 50%,
Australia and New Zealand for 18% and Asia for 5%.

(16.1) billion. This sector now accounts for 43% of total lending.

‘Wholesale banking operations

The wholesale banking operations focus their service mainly on the
food and agri business and on telecommunications, the media and
Internet. The wholesale operations comprise Rabobank International,
Rabobank Nederland Corporate Clients and Rabobank Participaties.

Rabobank International

Rabobank international (Rl) global operations are divided across various
regions. Last year, Rl strengthened its position in Asia by opening offices
in South Korea and Malaysia. Each region is responsible for its own
lending and trade financing products. Besides this division by regions,
Rl distinguishes a number of global product groups, including Global
Financial Markets, Corporate Finance and Corporate Advisory.

Global Financial Markets

Global Financial Market (GFM) operates in the international financial
markets. The Equities and Equity Derivative operations of Rabo Securities
have been part of GFM since July 2005, The main activities within GFM are

Lending by region at year-end 2005
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Position Management, Structuring, Equities, Equity Derivatives and Sales.
Position Management manages market and credit risk for these products
on behalf of Rabobank Group and its clients. it trades in money market
products - including the day-to-day management of the Group's
liquidity - currency products, bonds and derivative products. One of
Pasition Management’s innovative products is the weather derivative.
Weather derivatives offer protection against the financial consequences
of specific weather scenarios. In 2005, GFM closed a successful trans-
action of this type in South Africa. Another recently launched activity is
the trade in CO, emission rights.

Structuring provides capital market solutions by securitising and/or
restructuring specific risks or cash flows of businesses or financial
institutions. In 2005, it successfully placed a perpetual Van Lanschot
Bankiers bond with institutional investors. GFM was both the arranger
and the bookmaker in the placement of this Tier 1 capital.

Equities (operating under the trade name Rabo Securities) is responsible
for the research, trade and purchase and sales of Benelux shares on
behalf of institutional investors. These activities are closely aligned with
the corporate market ambitions of Corporate Advisory and Rabobank
Nederland Corporate Clients in the areas of advising, mergers and
acguisitions and share issues.

In 2005, Equity Derivatives introduced various successful products, such
as the Rabo Performance Clicker quarantee product and the Rabo Yield
Booster. These products were placed with retail investors through local
Rabobanks as well as third-party banks.

GFM expanded its sales activities last year considerably in order to
strengthen its relationships with both wholesale and retail clients.

Lending by sector at year-end 2005
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Corporate Finance

By structuring tailor-made products, Corporate Finance supports the
operations of businesses and financial institutions. These products are
aimed, for instance, at balance sheet optimisation and cash flow
management and are supplemental to standard lending. From this
perspective, Corporate Finance works together closely with other
subsidiaries and with the local Rabobanks. The products of Corporate
Finance are delivered by three product groups: Structured Finance,
Leveraged Finance and Project Finance.

Structured Finance offers tailor-made products aimed at both the asset
and the liability side of the balance sheet. In 2005, Structured Finance
opted for a stronger focus on tailor-made products for clients of Rabobank
Nederland Corporate Clients and the local Rabobanks. As a result, the
transactions were reduced in size.

Leveraged Finance is internationally involved in financing investment
companies' acquisitions with a purchasing price exceeding EUR 50 million.
On an internationa! level, it is a major player in the agricultural market,
but it operates in ather sectors as well. In 2005, its portfolio grew as a
result of transactions with Tetley Tea, Betafence and DSM Bakery
Ingredients.

Project Finance focuses on financing that centres on sustainable and
socially responsible business operations. In 2005, Project Finance
developed a product for the green-labelled glass house horticulture,
which enables horticulturists to avail themselves of government

investment subsidies.

Corporate Advisory

Corporate Advisory is the Dutch specialist in capital market transactions,
mergers and acquisitions and transaction-driven advice to public and
private enterprises, government authorities and private equity investors.
Its services include initial public offerings, share placements and mer-
gers and acquisitions.

In 2005, closer collaboration with Rabobank Nederland Corporate
Clients resulted in numerous placements led by Corporate Advisory.
Examples include Getronics, USG and Fugro.

Rabobank Nederland Corporate Clients

Apart from serving its own client group, which consists of the large
Dutch corporates, Rabobank Nederland Corporate Clients (RNCC) also
supports the local Rabobanks in serving the corporate market. In that
context, RNCC works closely with ‘product supplier’ Rababank
International. As from 1 January 2006, RNCC also meets clients'needs
for products in the area of financial logistics. The Financial Logistics
department supports clients in such fields as cash flow, liquidity and
risk managernent.

Due in part to RNCC’s active support, the local Rabobanks succeeded in
consolidating their leading position in the primary agricultural sector in
the face of fierce competition. RNCC plays an important pioneering role
in terms of corporate social responsibility, as evident from its promotion
of investments in ‘green’ glass houses, among other things.

Over the past years, Rabobank succeeded in further strengthening its
position in the Dutch corporate market. This has resulted in greater
involvernent in large national transactions.

Thanks to the efforts by the local Rabobanks and RNCC, Rabobank was
awarded the title of Bank of the Year in 2005.

Participating interests

The activities of Participations comprise Rabo Participaties and invest-
ments in the Gilde funds. Rabo Participaties invests in participating
interests, aiming for participation in decision-making in the enterprises
concerned rather than actual control. One of the participating interests
acquired last year was a 49% interest in I[HC Holland Merwede, a leading
dredger builder. Rabo Participaties works closely with the local
Rabobanks and Rabobank Nederland Corporate Clients, Half of the
transactions are passed on via the network of local Rabobanks.

Gilde is a leading private equity investor and specialises in buy-out
investments. In August 2005, Rabobank sold its subsidiary Gilde
Investment Management to the current management. The sale did not

affect Rabobank's participating interests in the Gilde funds.

International retail banking operations
Rabobank’s international retail strategy involves the acquisition of or
participation in smaller banks - in economically promising countries -

with strong positions outside the major cities among private individuals,




small and medium-sized businesses and in the agricultural sector,
Rabobank Group's international retail operations are subdivided in agri
country banking operations and universal country banking operations.
Agri country banking focuses largely on the food and agri market.
Universal country banking has a much wider focus, which includes
small and medium-sized businesses and private individuals besides
food and agri.

Agri country banking

The primary focus of Rabobank’s international food & agri operations
is on Australia, New Zealand and the United States. In Brazil, the agri
country banking operations were expanded considerably in 2005.

Australia and New Zealand

The clients in this region are served from 46 branch offices in Australia
and 28 in New Zealand. In terms of market share, Rabobank is second in
the Australian rural segment and third in New Zealand. Over the past
vears, there has been a consolidation cycle in the agriculture sector that
went hand in hand with rising prices of agricultural land, causing the
lending amount per client to rise. The overall result was strong growth
in rural lending in 2005. This development has proved very attractive to
the financial sector, as reflected in the strong growth in competition in
this segment in the past few years. Last year, the range of financial advi-
sory services offered was expanded and range of life insurance products
was broadened in collaboration with the Future Life insurance company.

United States and bid for shares of Community Bank of

Central California

In October 2005, Rabobank Group made a bid for the shares in
Community Bank of Central California (CBCC). CBCC's branch network
complements that of Rabobank North America (NA). The acquisition
was finalised in early 2006.

In the United States, the year 2005 was characterised by improvement of
services to clients, growth in the number of clients and further integration
of the various business units and further improvement of collaboration
between them. The merger of Rabo AgriFinance and Rabo AgServices
into Rabo AgriFinance was part of this. Also, the name of Valley
independent Bank was changed to Rabobank NA.

[n 2005, Rabobank in the United States obtained the designation
National Bank. This enables Rabobank NA to offerbretai\ products outside
California and to give optimum support to the commercial operations
of Rabo AgriFinance - which operates mainly outside California.

Rabo Agrifinance’s main activity is to grant business and mortgage
loans to the top end of the agricultural segment, while Rabobank NA

offers a broad range of services to retail clients.

Activities in Brazil expanded

Rabobank has operated in Brazil since 1995 and has developed a pro-
found knowledge of the food and agri sector and has built up a strong
brand name. In the year under review, Rabobank expanded its activities
in this country further by opening new offices focused on serving the
larger agricultural enterprises, Its product range includes financing,
deposits and currency, and commodity derivatives.

Universal country banking

Rabobank’s universal country banking operations are in Ireland and
Poland. The banks in these countries focus on the distribution of all-
round banking products to farmers, small and medium-sized businesses
and private individuals in rural areas. Universal country banking started
in 2002 with the acquisition of ACCBank in Ireland. A next step followed
at the end of 2004, with the acquisition of a 35% interest in Bank
Gospodarki Zywno$ciowej (BGZ) in Poland. Rabobank attaches great
value to speedy integration of the new universal banking operations in
its existing operational and financial structure, with due regard for their
own identity in the local markets. In addition, the exchange of know-
ledge receives a great deal of attention.

ACCBank Ireland

From its inception, ACCBank has had close links with the agricultural
sector. In addition, the bank focuses on small and medium-sized busi-
nesses and on private services in Ireland. The range of services provided
to small and medium-sized businesses includes real estate financing,
leasing, deposits, investments and financial planning.

Since its acquisition by Rabobank, lending by ACCBank rose from

EUR 2.7 billion at 31 December 2002 to more than EUR 6.5 billion at the
end of 2005.




Rabobank Group acquired a 35% interest in BGZ

With the acguisition of a 35% interest in the Polish Bank BGZ in 2004,
Rabobank made its first major step towards Eastern Europe.

BGZ is the most important bank in the Polish agricultural and food-
processing sector. In view of its agricultural background, BGZ offers
Rabobank excellent perspectives for further expansion of its country
banking operations.

BGZ has a market share of around 3% in Poland. A rationalisation of the
bank’s management and policies was carried out last year. Important
board positions have been strengthened. The new management team at
once implemented a rigorous risk management structure that conforms
1o Rabobank standards. The new strategy focuses primarily on maintai-
ning BGZ's leading position in the food and agri sector. Another aim is
strong expansion of the operations for retail and small and medium-

sized businesses.

Direct Banking

The growing use of the Internet across the world has made Internet
banking an increasingly important distribution channel for Rabobank.
Internet banking makes it possible to offer savings products, investment
funds and loans on a widely dispersed basis. Owing to its strong tradition
and knowledge in this area, Rabobank maintained its high ranking
among Europe’s best Internet banks.

Rabobank started direct banking in Belgium in 2002, Last year, it launched
Internet banking operations in Ireland. In Belgium and Ireland, more than
50,000 clients now use the bank’s Internet banking services. Early in 2006,
Rabobank opened its Internet bank in New Zealand.

Financial results

Increase in net profit

In a challenging market, Rabobank succeeded in achieving a 3% growth
of net profit, to EUR 573 (555) million, in international wholesale and
retail banking in 2005. The efficiency ratio improved from 60.0% to
57.4%. In addition, the tax burden decreased. Net profit was affected by

an increase of the item value adjustments.

Total income was down 2% at EUR 2,226 (2,261) million, mainly due

to fewer major exits by Gilde funds compared with 2004 and the
consolidation of a number of Gilde participaties.

Income was higher at Global Financial Markets, thanks to the issue of
structured products such as the Rabo Performance Clicker and the Asset
Backed RentePlus Obligatie. Corporate Finance reported lower income
in 2005, but in international retail operations, the growth in lending more
than outweighed the effects of narrower margins and income in 2005
was higher. Over 20% of total income is now generated by retail banking.

Income by region in 2005
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The food & agri sector accounted for 26% of total income and 55% of
total income was generated in Europe, 29% in North and South America
and the remainder in Asia, Australia and New Zealand.

Total expenses decreased 6% to EUR 1,277 (1,357) million. The increase
in the number of FTEs from 5,499 to 5,960 had only a limited effect on
staff costs, because it occurred mainly in the closing months of 2005.
Other operating expenses were lower, due to the deconsolidation of a
number of equity investments by Gilde funds.

Value adjustments increased last year from EUR 119 million to EUR 259
million. Risk-related costs amounted to 56 (30) basis points of the risk-
weighted assets. Risk-related costs were low in 2004 from a historical
perspective, but were slightly above the long-term average in 2005, due
to the formation of several new provisions for non-domestic operations.

Ambitions and ocutlock for 2006

Despite increased competition, Global Financial Markets expects to be
able to achieve healthy continued growth in 2006. As a result of the
change in focus of Structured Finance, the growth of Corporate Finance
should level off in 2006.

Rabobank will be opening a number of new branch offices in Australia
and New Zealand in 2006. in the United States, the operations of
Community Bank of Central California will be integrated in the existing
retail operations in California.

in Poland, BGZ will grow strongly in the markets for both private
individuals and small and medium-sized businesses. No substantial
contribution from BGZ to Rabobank Group's results is expected as yet
for the short term.

For more information J

www.rabobank com and www.rabosecurities.ni

L Bl
Results {in EUR millions) 2005 2004 change
Interest 1,415 1,374 3%
Fees and commission 511 342 49%
Other income 301 545 -45%
Total income 2,226 2,261 -2%
Staff costs 760 749 1%
Other operating expenses 517 608 -15%
Total expenses 1,277 1,357 -6%
Gross profit 950 204 5%
Value adjustments 259 119 118%
Operating profit before taxation 690 785 -12%
Net profit 573 555 3%
Risk-related costs (in basis points) 56 30 81%
Balance sheet (in EUR billions) 31-Dec-05 31-Dec-04

Total assets 368.4 3340 10%
Private sector lending 54.2 45.0 20%
Total risk-weighted items 53.1 40.0 33%
FTEs 5,960 5,499 8%

]




Mentally handicapped work with materials provided by Rabobank Amerstreek

Handicraft in The Stable

The Drimmelen Art Circle Foundation has converted the former children’s farm of a home for the mentally
handicapped into a handicraft centre named The Stable. For a nominal fee, amateur artists can paint, draw
and model at The Stable. On Thursday evenings, The Stable is reserved for the home's residents. Rabobank
Amerstreek provided funds to buy tools such as studio easels and turntables.




“The residents look forward each week

to their evening”
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Core activities robeco Group, Schretlen & Co, Alex, International Private Banking & Trust

Asset management and investment

Rabobank’s asset management activities achieved
their ambitions and targets for 2005 by a wide
margin, with net profit increasing by 26% to

EUR 174 million. The significant improvement in
the investment climate for equities translated into
a strong rise in share prices, yielding excellent
investment results. The relative performance of the
Robeco funds against the benchmark also contri-
buted to the increase. According to Morningstar
rating agency, the overall performance of the
funds amounted to 3.19 stars, against a target of 3.
The inflow of new assets was disappointing,
however. Effectenbank Stroeve was sold in the
year under review. As a result of the merger of
Interpolis with Achmea, the assets managed by
Interpolis are no longer part of the assets managed
and held in custody by Rabobank Group.

Market and clients

Both in the Netherlands and in the Eurozone, there was a spectacular
recovery of the stock exchanges, with share price gains of more than
20%. Contributing factors included a weaker US dollar, higher corporate
profits than expected and a lower long-term interest rate. The United
States stock exchanges lagged behind and showed only a moderate
increase in 2005, after several years of growth. The absolute champion
in 2005 was the Japanese stock exchange, which grew by 40%. Investor
confidence in Japan likewise grew, economic recovery continued and
the competitive position improved due to the weaker Yen. Bond and
real estate products also showed a positive result for the year on balance.

[n the year under review, Effectenbank Stroeve was sold to Kredietbank
Luxembourgeoise because there was too much overlap in its activities
with those of the local Rabobanks and other Group entities.

Market approach

Rabobank Group focuses on both private and institutional investors.
Private individuals with an invested capital or income of EUR 80,000 or
more are served by Rabobank Private Banking. Alex accommodates
active, independent investors, who, alternatively, may use the Rabo site
or order line, Robeco Direct enables investments to be made in funds
and structured products as well as in individual shares. Schretlen & Co
accommodates the top segment (EUR 500,000 and more), while Robeco
focuses on large institutional investors. Smaller institutions, such as
housing corporations, religious societies, foundations and associations




Strategy and targets
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that need specialist service can turn to Schretlen & Co's institutions desk,

Rabobank Group is active abroad as well. Besides offering Robeco pro-
ducts through third parties, Robeco also has a number of subsidiaries in
the United States. The Swiss Bank Sarasin & Cie, in which Rabobank
holds a 28% interest, serves international private banking clients.

Assets managed and held in custody

The assets managed and held in custody by Rabobank Group were

EUR 224 (223) billion at 31 December 2005, EUR 68 (83) billion of which
comes from the bank’s own investment portfolio and EUR 156 (140)
billion is managed on behalf of clients. The decline in the Group's own
investment portfolio is largely due to the deconsolidation of interpolis.
Assets managed by Effectenbank Stroeve and Interpolis, and not placed
with Robeco, are no longer included in client assets. The increase in
assets managed was the result of EUR 18 billion in investment returns,
more than EUR 3 billion due to the stronger US dollar, nearly EUR 5 billion
from the inflow of new assets and an outflow of around EUR 8 billion
from the sale of Effectenbank Stroeve and the merger of Interpolis with
Achmea. The remainder relates to other movements, including payments

of dividends and interest. The inflow of new assets in the United States

was relatively limited and was due in particular to the departure of an
investment team, Performance in Europe was much better. In the fourth
quarter, Robeco was awarded a new EUR 1 billion mandate by the
French civil-service pension fund.

The greater part, 46%, of assets managed for clients has been invested
in shares, 35% in fixed-interest funds, 11% in alternative products such
as private equity, hedge funds and structured products and 8% in other
funds.

Significant increase in the number of orders in second half of 2005
In the Netherlands, the number of orders handled by Rabobank Group
for securities and in-house funds rose by 9% in 2005 to 6.1 (5.6) million.
The increase is partly due to the significant stock exchange recovery in
the second half of the year. In the first half of 2005, there was a 10%
decline, whereas the number of orders handled rose by 32% in the
second half of the year. The biggest increase was in orders for securities,
which grew 15%. The number of orders handled for in-house funds
remained stable. Although there are signs that investor confidence is

returning, it is as yet too early to speak of a lasting recovery.

Changes in assets managed and held in custody for clients
in EUR billion
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Robeco Group ,

In 2005, assets managed and held in custody by Robeco Group grew by
almost 18% to EUR 131.6 (111.8) billion. Institutional clients account for
around half of these assets.

Harbor Capital Advisors (United States) achieved remarkably good
results in 2005, with both an excellent performance and a large inflow
of new assets. Robeco Investment Management in New York was unable
to follow suit and consequently, Robeco Group’s total inflow of new
assets was slightly disappointing. The net inflow of new assets in 2005
was EUR 1.7 billion.

Over the past years, Robeco Group has built an excellent reputation for
offering structured products, hedge funds and private equity funds to
private individuals. There is great interest in this type of product, with
strong competition as a result. Nevertheless, Robeco Group successfully
placed a few new products, with assets invested growing by 21% to
EUR 17 bilion.

More capital through third-party distribution

Securing capital through third parties was successful in 2005. The Robeco
funds benefited from the fact that more and more financial institutions
in the Netherlands are offering third-party funds. Robeco Group also
sells its funds abroad. In countries such as Belgium, Spain and Germany,
assets managed no less than doubled and showed similar strong growth
in Switzerland. Fixed-interest funds particularly were in great demand
abroad. In 2005, Robeco Group opened an office in Japan in order to
include the Japanese market in its services.

Excellent performance of investment funds

Robeco Group's funds had an excellent year. After a number of less
prosperous years, flagship funds Robeco and Rolinco handsomely out-
performed the benchmark. Over a three-year period, 65% of the assets
managed by Robeco Group outperformed the benchmark. This was
well above the target of 60%.

Assets managed and held in custody for Rabobank Group
clients at year-end 2005 by investment type
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The Morningstar rating agency compares funds in terms of returns, risks
and costs over a 36-month period and awards stars. The better the
result the more stars are awarded to a fund. Four or five stars mean that
a fund is among the 32.5% of best performing funds, with three stars
being the median. in 2005, the Robeco Group funds achieved a higher
rating than the median: an average of 3.19 stars, against 2.96 in 2004.
The handsome increase was mainly due to the equity funds. Their average
rating increased from 2.75 in 2004 to 3.07 stars in 2005. Fixed-interest
funds, which again performed well, rose from 3.48 to 3.52 stars. Robeco
Divirente and Robeco Euro Bonds Dividend, which were awarded the
maximum of 5 stars, excelled among the fixed-interest funds.

Investors’ bank Alex

Alex had a very good year and realised excellent benefits from the stock
exchange recovery. The number of orders handled rose by 15% to 2.2
(1.9) million. Assets held in custody grew strongly, by 43% to EUR 3.3
(2.3) billion, far outpacing the AEX.

At 31 December 2005, the total number of clients was 83,700, a rise of
5%. In 2005, Alex succeeded in retaining its leading position in the
market for private individuals in both the stock and the options exchange.
Indeed, its market share on the Amsterdam options exchange grew
from 21.1% in 2004 to 23.6% in 2005.

In the year under review, Alex introduced Alex Assist, a digital investment
advisor for private individuals with a capital upwards of EUR 25,000

Alex is alone in offering individual digital portfolio advice on more than
500 Dutch and European shares funds. This innovation won Afex the ICT
Innovation Award 2005. in 2005, Alex was included in the list of 250
Superbrands of the Netherlands.

Schretlen & Co
Of all people purchasing private banking products in the Netherlands,
Schretlen & Co's clients were the ones most satisfied with the service.




Second came the private banking service of the focal Rabobanks. This is
the cutcome of a survey held by Incompany magazine among clients of
business service providers. Schretlen & Co's top position was mainly due
to such aspects as expertise, contacts' reliability and accuracy, which
were given high scores.

Assets managed by Schretlen & Co rose by almost EUR 1 billion to

EUR 6.5 billion. In addition, its number of clients grew again.

Financial results

Higher income at unchanged operating expenses

Net profit grew by 26% to EUR 174 (138) million in 2005. The greatly
improved result was the product of 10% growth in income and stable
expenses. Higher fees and commission revenues, which rose 17% to
EUR 600 (512) million, were responsible for the entire income growth
of EUR 718 (653) million. The improved investment climate in the
Netherlands, especially in the second half of the year, generated higher
management and custody fees. Placing fees were also higher, thanks to

the successful placing of several new products.

Total expenses turned out at EUR 468 (466) million. The staff costs were
EUR 2 million higher at EUR 278 miillion. Higher pension expenses and
regular salary increases were largely offset by the sale of Effectenbank
Stroeve in mid-year, which reduced the number of FTEs by 5% to 1,798,
Discounting this disposal, the number of FTEs showed little change in
2005. Other operating expenses were stable in 2005, at EUR 190 million.

Operating profit before taxation was 34% higher at EUR 250 (186) million.

Ambitions and cutlook for 2006

While the economic outlook is relatively favourable, significant share price
increases similar to those in 2005 are not to be expected for Europe and
Japan. In 2006, the focus abroad will be on the expansion of third-party
distribution. Targets for the Netherlands include retaining the position as
the best private bank and realising another outperformance for the
investment funds. Alex aims at further strengthening its leadership in
the market for private individuals in 2006.

Eor more information

www.robeco.com

[ 1
Results (in EUR millions) 2005 2004 change
Interest 61 72 ~15%
Fees and commission 600 512 17%
Other income 57 69 ~17%
Total income 718 653 10%
Staff costs 278 276 1%
Other operating expenses 190 190 0%
Total expenses 468 466 0%
Gross profit 250 187 34%
Value adjustments - 1
Operating profit before taxation 250 186 34%
Net profit 174 138 26%
Number of orders in the Netherlands 6.1 5.6 9%
(in millions)

31-Dec-05 31-Dec-04
Assets managed and held in custody
(in EUR biltions) 224 223 0%
For clients ] 156 140 1%
Investment portfolio 68 83 -18%
FTEs 1,798 1,886 -5%




Core activities e Lage Landen

Leasing

De Lage Landen again performed well last year,
with growth in both income and portfolio value.
Thanks to its stable growth in the past years,

De Lage Landen is now one of the biggest
leasing businesses in Europe and the United
States of America.

Market and clients

The lease industry recovered in 2005. While the United States lease market
showed limited growth, recovery in Europe was strong and the market
in Asia also improved. The increases in short-term interest rates in the
United States and fierce competition resulted in tightening margins in

this region.

Growth in the lease portfolio

De Lage Landen’s portfolio grew by 19% in 2005 to EUR 15.4 (12.9) billion,
aided by the stronger US dollar. Adjusted for the dollar effect, growth
would have been 10%, which still far exceeds the growth in the global

lease market,

Lease portfolio by region at year-end 2005
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Due to the expansion in recent years in North and South America,
combined with a stronger US dollar, the lease portfolio in this region is
now for the first time fractionally larger than in Europe. Of the lease
portfolio, North and South America now account for 49%, Europe for
49% and Aslia, Australia and New Zealand for 2%.

Internationally, De Lage Landen focuses on the sectors food & agri,
health care, office equipment, IT, telecommunication, materials handling
& construction equipment, trucks & trailers and bank outsourcing.

The food & agri and materials handling & construction equipment
sectors in particular showed significant growth.

In the Netherlands, the company offers a wide range of lease and trade
financing products, including equipment lease, car and commercial
vehicle leases, ICT lease and trade financing.

Europe

In Europe, the lease portfolic grew by 7% to EUR 7.5 (7.0) billion in the
year under review. In terms of global sales volumes, De Lage Landen is
third in Europe.

De Lage Landen already operates in Poland and opportunities for
expansion in Central and Eastern Europe will be reviewed this year.

Lease portfolio by sector at year-end 2005
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The strongest growth in the portfolic was in car lease, materials handling
& construction equipment, food & agri and healthcare. De Lage Landen
already has a prominent position in healthcare in the United States.

Last year, this activity was started in Europe as well. The portfolio in this
sector showed strong growth. A number of large transactions were
concluded with the National Health Service in the United Kingdom.

In the year under review, the collaboration in Europe with Komatsu was
expanded. Komatsu is among the world's largest producers and suppliers
of heavy equipment e.g. for civil engineering and earthmoving purposes.
New clients with which a vendor programme has been started include
Mitsubishi Caterpillar Forklift Europe and Nucletron. Since the acquisition
of Telia Finans in 2004, the Scandinavian activities have shown healthy
growth.

Heliview research agency has surveyed the performance of car lease
businesses in the Netherlands. Translease, De Lage Landen’s car lease
subsidiary, came out on top with an overall score of 7.5, Translease was
one of the first companies to include hybrid cars in its range. Translease
further expanded its car leasing activities with the acquisition of a 66.5%
interest in Prisma Car Lease. Also, an agreement was concluded under
which De Lage Landen will eventually acquire the remaining 33.5% of
Prisma’s equity.

America

Due in part to the stronger dollar, the activities in the United States grew
by 31% to EUR 7.6 (5.8) billion. The health care and food & agriculture
sectors had an excellent year and the activities in Canada and Brazil sho-
wed strong growth as well. As a result of its expansion in recent years,
De Lage Landen is now 6th in the United States in terms of sales volu-
me. This Rabobank subsidiary is the largest foreign lease business in the
United States.

In the year under review, a number of new clients with international
operations were added to the portfolio, including high-profile enterprises
such as Hyundai, Panasonic and Sony. The collaboration with AGCO,
which specialises in the production and distribution of agricultural
equipment, continues to be successful. After a few years’ absence in
Argenting, De Lage Landen decided to relaunch its activities in that
country, again together with AGCO. In the US, a new public finance
business unit was started in 2005, It offers various lease products to
central, federal and local authorities.

Asia

The portfolio in Asia grew from around EUR 150 million to more than
EUR 250 million. De Lage Landen expanded its activities in 2005 with a
branch office in Japan. In China, the permits to undertake leasing
activities have been obtained. The first office was opened in Shanghai in
January 2005.




Financial results

Net profit up 16%

De Lage Landen’s net profit for 2005 was EUR 178 (154) million, a rise of
16%. Revenues were up 12% at EUR 719 (641) million, mainly due to
higher interest income. Despite a slight narrowing of the interest margin
in 2005, net interest income recorded healthy growth of 12%, rising to
EUR 514 (458) million.

Total expenses were EUR 29 million higher at EUR 392 million, largely as
a consequence of higher staff costs. The other operating expenses
increased a little to EUR 148 (145) million. The staff costs were up 12% at
EUR 244 miltion, the combined effect of 11% growth in the number of
FTEs and regular salary increases.

Value adjustments, which are a measure of the risk-related costs,
increased by EUR 6 million to EUR 92 million, which equates to 65 basis

points of the average lease portfotio.

Operating profit before taxation rose by 22% to EUR 235 (192) million.

Ambitions and outlook for 2006

De Lage Landen expects the pressure on margins to increase further in
2006. Despite this, its aim is to grow the portfolio by at least 10% and to
improve its result by 10 to 15%. In the Netherlands, De Lage Landen
intends to move into consumer credit. In collaboration with the local
Rabobanks, a new marketing operation will be introduced. In addition,
consumer products under new brand labels will be offered in other
channels {direct and point-of-sale),

Internationally, De Lage Landen intends to launch activities in China,
which will require substantial investment, and it is studying possibilities

to launch activities in Eastern Europe.

uor more information

www.delagelanden.com
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Results (in EUR millions) 2005 2004 change
Interest 514 458 12%
Fees and commission a7 36 31%
Other income 158 147 7%
Total income 719 641 12%
Staff costs 244 218 12%
Other operating expenses 148 145 2%
Total expenses 392 363 8%
Gross profit 327 278 18%
Value adjustments 92 86 7%
Operating profit before taxation 235 192 22%
Net profit 178 154 16%
Risk-related costs (in basis points) 65 68 -5%
31-Dec-05 31-Dec-04
Lease portfolio (in EUR biltions) 15.4 129 19%
Europe 7.5 7.0 7%
America 7.6 5.8 31%
Rest of the world 0.3 0.1 68%
FTEs 3,045 2,749 11%

!




Core activities rcHBankand Rabo Vastgoed
Real estate

The real estate division within Rabobank was
created in 2005 and made good progress right
from the start. The collaboration between the
various real estate entities and the local Rabobanks
bore fruitimmediately. Due in part to this good
collaboration, FGH Bank’s loan portfolio grew and
Rabo Vastgoed obtained several very attractive
project orders. As a result, net profit increased by
22% to EUR 78 million.

Market and clients

The housing market in the Netherlands continued its positive develop-
ment. Due in part to the continuing very low interest rate, demand for
owner-occupied houses remained strong, the price level rose and the
number of sales transactions again increased. In addition, the production
of new houses increased after a decline in previous years.

The Dutch commercial real estate market has had a few difficult years.

In 2005, the trend seemed to show some reversal, although the recovery
is still considered fragile. Supply in the office market remained roughly
unchanged in 2005 and occupancy grew slightly, so that the increase of
many years in the vacancy rate seems to have been put to a halt. The
retail market seems the most stable sector within the commercial real
estate market. The vacancy rate, although increasing, remains relatively
fow. Rent levels in this segment are holding up reasonably well because
new shop formulas are entering the Dutch market and existing formulas
are seeking opportunities for expansion and upscaling.

Demand for real estate investment remains high. However, the market is
unable to meet the demand for quality and demand is exceeding supply.

Strategy and targets
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Competition in the market for real estate financing grew strongly in
the year under review. This resulted in lower margins and a decline in
customer loyalty.

New real estate division

The real estate division announced in 2004 was further defined in 2005.
FGH Bank makes up the financing arm and Rabo Vastgoed the develop-
ment arm. The starting points are a single centre of expertise, knowledge
sharing and optimum collaboration. Optimum interaction with the local
Rabobanks will be vital and should enable significant growth in real
estate projects and financing.

Increasing synergy

The intensive collaboration between FGH Bank, Rabo Vastgoed and
other Rabobank entities is beginning to pay off. The local Rabobanks
involve FGH Bank in larger financing applications at an early stage, so
that 15-20% of FGH Bank’s new financing now comes from this channel.




Through the local Rabobanks, Rabo Vastgoed regularly comes into contact
with parties for real estate projects. Subseguently, the owner-occupied
houses from these projects are financed largely by the local Rabobanks.
FGH Bank collaborates with asset manager Schretlen & Co and with the
local Rabobanks in the placement of real estate partnerships and limited
partnerships (CVs).

FGH Bank

FGH Bank specialises in financing commercial real estate. With its nation-
wide office network, the bank focuses on institutional and private inves-
tors in commercial real estate and on building enterprises and project
developers. Through its subsidiary ‘De Nederlandse Hypotheekbank'and
local intermediaries, FGH Bank focuses on real estate financing for small
business use (mainly shops and industrial space).

FGH Bank had an excellent year. After 2004, the bank realised yet anather
record production which reached EUR 2.7 billion. As a result, FGH Bank’s
loan portfolio grew by 16% to EUR 7.8 (6.7) billion. The repayments in the
year amounted to EUR 1.4 billion, which was relatively high compared
with previous years. This was mainly due to the increased competition,
which resulted in a higher number of loan switches. Investment financing
makes up approximately 71% of the loan portfolio.

Of the remainder of the loan portfolio, 10% relates to property for own
business use, 6% to 'vitpond'financing (sale of rented property to sitting
tenants), 7% to building and land financing and 6% to other lending
(housing and trade financing).

FGH Bank also offers other services besides real estate financing.
Clients can turn to FGH Vastgoed Expertise for advice, portfolio analysis,
market research and plan assessments as well as for commercial real
estate appraisals. Appraisal orders have shown particularly strong
growth over the past years.

Breakdown by financing type at year-end 2005
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FGH Asset Management acquires Dutch real estate and manages real
estate funds and real estate properties. Interest in real estate funds (CV's)
was again high in 2005. High-quality properties are in short supply,
however, and this calls for prudence. Due in part to the strict selection
of properties, the returns achieved on real estate CVs have so far been in
line with budgeted returns or higher. 1t is also in the clients' interest, that
FGH Asset Management wishes to maintain its high quality criteria for

these investment constructions,

Rabo Vastgoed

Rabo Vastgoed is among the largest housing developers in the
Netherlands. In addition, it increasingly participates in inner-city redeve-
lopment and in the development of shopping centres. Rabo Vastgoed
has shown significant growth in the past years. In order to stay close to
the client, five new business units operating in the regional markets
were created in the year under review. Rabo Vastgoed develops projects
with respect for the surrounding environment, in which people and
corporate social responsibility are key issues.

The land portfolio grew by 210 hectares to 2,000 (1,790) hectares in
2005. This portfolio has a potential for 32,000 houses and 721.000 m?
of industrial space. The number of houses sold was 1,767 (1,144),
corresponding to a market share of more than 5% for owner-occupied
housing projects. The order portfolio, which comprises approved and
current projects in the areas of housing and industrial space, increased
by 7% to EUR 3.8 (3.6) billion. The rise is due mainly to increased
demand from housing projects. The industrial properties portfolio
showed a decline because Rabo Vastgoed operates very prudently in
the difficult office market.

To Rabo Vastgoed, growth in the redevelopment of town centres is an
important new activity. In 2005, the first larger projects were started.
Agreement was reached with the municipality of The Hague on the
redevelopment of the Binckhorst area, which with its 125 hectares has
potential for around 6,000 houses and 15.000 m? of commercial real

estate.




In Amsterdam, Rabo Vastgoed together with housing corporations
created the Stedenfonds. This fund of EUR 275 miltion, with 85%
participation by institutional investors, offers the opportunity for direct
investment in middle-segment rented houses developed by Rabo
Vastgoed in selected areas in Amsterdam.

The City Campus MAX to be built by Rabo Vastgoed in Utrecht will con-
tribute to the flowthrough in student accommodation. Cost-conscious
design allows Rabo Vastgoed to offer affordable and independent
accommodation to students. City Campus MAX will comprise around
1,000 homes plus additional facilities such as a launderette and sports
facilities. Construction is to begin in 2006 and project delivery is expected
for the end of 2008.

Financial results

Net profit up 22%

The real estate activities realised a net profit of EUR 78 (64) million in
2005, a rise of 22%. The strong growth achieved by the Real Estate
Division last year translated into higher income and higher expenses.
Income rose 19% to EUR 150 (126) million and net interest income was
EUR 20 million higher at EUR 96 million, reflecting the vigorous growth
in the loan portfolio. The interest margin showed little change, thanks
partly to the higher level of redemptions and related penalty interest
payments by clients. Other income, which includes lease and rental
income and project results, was 8% higher at EUR 54 (50) million.

Total expenses rose 28% to EUR 41 (32) million. Due to the growth in
the number of FTEs and higher pension expenses, staff costs increased
by EUR 5 million to EUR 25 million. Other operating expenses increased
by EUR 4 million to EUR 16 million as a result of the strong organic
growth realised by the real estate division, Investments were raised last
year, particularly in the back office.

Operating profit before taxation grew by 15% to EUR 108 (94) miltion.

Ambitions and outlook for 2006

The outlook for the housing market is positive, although there is a

risk that interest rates will rise and this might affect price levels and
flowthrough. Rabobank Group expects that 2006 will be a difficult year
for the commercial real estate market. The predicted economic growth
will not be strong enough to absorb the present overcapacity in the
office market.

The focus in the development market will mainly be on inner city
redevelopment and growth in the Randstad area, i.e. the mid-west of
the country.

Margins for real estate financing will remain under pressure. The aim is
to offset this by means of further growth. Cautious steps will also be
taken in the establishment of complex financing structures.

[ ]
Results {(in EUR millions) 2005 2004 change
Interest 96 76 26%
Other income 54 50 8%
Total income 150 126 19%
Staff costs 25 20 25%
QOther operating expenses 16 12 33%
Total expenses ' 41 32 28%
Gross profit 109 94 16%
Value adjustments 1 -
Operating profit before taxation 108 94 15%
Net profit 78 . 64 22%
Other data 31-Dec-05 31-Dec-04
Loans portfolio (in EUR billions) 7.8 6.7 16%
Land portfolio (in hectares) 2,000 1,790 12%
14%

FTEs 331 291




nsurance

Rabobank Group’s insurance operations saw
considerable changes in 2005. Without question,
the biggest change was the merger between
Interpolis and Achmea. Since Rabobank Group
has a 37% interest in Eureko and no longer has a
direct stake in Interpolis, its financial reporting no
longer includes the Insurance business unit.

In addition, the distribution policy of the local
Rabobanks for insurance products was adjusted.

Collaboration with Eureko extended

In the year under review, a new step was made in the collaboration with
Eureko. By way of a merger of Interpolis and Achmea, Rabobank Group
increased its existing 5% holding in Eureko to 37% in 2005. This merger
created the largest insurance company in the Netherlands. Eureko is
strong in life and non-life insurance and particularly in healthcare
insurance, which is a market segment that Rabobank has wanted to

strengthen its focus on for some time.

In the Netherlands, Rabobank Group aims at market leadership in
all-finance. In this context, the merger between Interpolis and Achmea
would not at first sight seem the most logical step. Nothing is further
from the truth, however. As a result of the merger between Interpolis
met Achmea, Rabobank is no longer a producer of insurance products

but will instead specialise further as a distributor. The new and powerful
Achmea/Interpolis combination will be responsible for the development
of innovative insurance products, subsequently to be distributed by the
local Rabobanks. In this way, Rabobank can further strengthen its position
as one of the largest insurance brokers. In addition, opportunities will be
investigated for intensifying the collaboration with Eureko in coming
years, including the possibility of enlarging Rabobank’s stake in Eureko.

Distribution of insurance products

With their closely-knit network, the local Rabobanks service half of the
Dutch private individuals and corporate clients. The local Rabobanks are
therefore an excellent platform for efficient distribution of a multitude
of innovative insurance products. There are significant developments in
the market for these products, partly as a result of the decrease in
government involvement and greater individua! responsibility for old-age
pensions. Due to these developments, strong growth can be expected in
this sector in the next few years, with Interpolis and Achmea operating
as preferred suppliers. In addition, products from other insurers will be

included in the product range.

In 2005, the local Rabobanks, together with interpolis, introduced their
first health insurance policy. This introduction was highly successful.
During the first year, 50,000 insurance policies were sold, corresponding
to 110,000 insured clients. The local Rabobanks, together with Achmea,
also introduced a collective health insurance policy especially for
members, offering them an attractive discount.
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Consumers

The local Rabobanks distinguish two client types in the consumer market:
private banking clients (invested capital or income > EUR 80,000) and
private individuals. The latter require standard products with operational
excellence - fast, easy and good service - as an important distinguishing
factor. Private banking clients have more specific needs, where quality
and special expertise play an important part. The local Rabobanks adjust
their distribution policy in order to be able to respond to clients' specific
individual requirements. For example, clients can buy standard insurance
products via the Internet or by telephone, whereas they can turn to the
insurance advisers at the local Rabobanks for more complex, personal
finance related products. An impaortant target for the coming years is to
increase the percentage of clients with several insurance policies in their
package. Currently, over 25% of private banking clients have taken out
more than one insurance policy via the focal Rabobanks. Among private
clients, this is 12%.

Market leader in corporate insurance

in 2005, Rabobank was the largest corporate insurance broker (excluding
pensions), with a market share of 11%. Compared with competing large
banks, its market share is as high as 59%. Nevertheless, Rabobank sees
ample scope for further substantial growth in the corporate market, e.q.
combining banking and insurance products further. For that reason, a
policy for the corporate insurance market was developed in 2005, resul-
ting in measures in the areas of product range, sales support, back office
processes and IT. In addition, initiatives were developed with the aim of
achieving a better market position in the field of pensions as well.
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Corporate social responsibility training module for China

No sustainable planet without
a sustainable China

In the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, more than 175 enterprises worldwide are addressing
corporate social responsibility, Within the Young Managers Programme, a project is developed each year by a group
of young managers. Tanja Kliphuis participated in the development of a sustainable entrepreneurship training

programme for Chinese businesses and students.




Organisation and
risk management

For financial institutions such as Rabobank, Rabobank Group's corporate governance
trust is the foundation of the relationship  structure is based on these fundamental

with clients, supervisory authorities and principles. A prudent risk policy, resulting
other stakeholders. This trust is ensured in a modest risk profile, is at the core of risk
not only by good management of the management.

business and adequate risk control but
also by an open culture and transparent
accountability, both internally and
externally, in respect of policies and
supervision.
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Rabobank Group Corporate Governance

Over the past decade, Rabobank Group has paid a
great deal of attention to its corporate governance.
The desire for optimum implementation of
corporate governance within Rabobank Group
naturally implies that it closely follows the global
debate on this subject. As it is, financial institutions
such as Rabobank Group have been familiar for
years with many of the latest governance princi-
ples. After all, the financial sector has always been
subject to strict regulation because of its social
and economic role. Given its firm roots in Dutch
society and its prominence in the international
capital markets, Rabobank Group endorses the
principles of the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code. However, Rabobank Group is not directly
subject to this code, as its structure is based on
cooperative principles and it is not listed on the
stock exchange. Nevertheless, it will apply the
majority of the code’s elements.

Cross-guarantee system

Rabobank Group consists of the local Rabobanks, their central organisation
Rabobank Nederland and its subsidiaries and other affiliated entities.
Through their mutual financial association, various legal entities within
Rabobank Group together make up a single organisation. An internal
liability relationship exists between these legal entities, as referred to in
Section 12 of the Act on the Supervision of the Credit System 1992
(Wet toezicht kredietwezen 1992). This relationship is formalised in an
internal ‘cross-guarantee’ system, which stipulates that if a participating
institution has insufficient funds to meet its obligations towards its
creditors, the other participants must supplement that institution's
funds in order to enable it to fulfil those obligations.

Corporate governance at Rabcbank
Nederland

Executive Board

The Executive Board is responsible for the management of Rabobank
Nederland and its affiliated entities. This includes responsibility for the
achievement of the objectives of Rabobank Group as a whole, its strate-
gic policy, its results, the synergy within the Group, compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations, the management of business risks and
the financing of Rabobank Group. The Executive Board reports on all
these aspects to the Supervisory Board, the Central Delegates Assembly
(the organisation’s ‘parliament; which is authorised to take decisions on
behalf of the local Rabobanks) and the General Meeting of Rabobank
Nederland, which is formed by the members, i.e. the local Rabobanks,




The management of Rabobank Group is also based on the interrelation-
ship between risk, return and reserves. The supervisory authorities - the
Dutch Central Bank and the Netherlands Authority for the Financial
Markets - have formulated standards for financial institutions. The
standards of the Dutch Central Bank are laid down for example in the
Regulation on Organisation and Control, which forms the framework for
the organisation and control of Rabobank Group’s activities. In addition,
the supervision on the conduct of the Dutch financial markets exercised

by the Authority for the Financial Markets also applies to Rabobank Group.

The members of the Executive Board are appointed by the Supervisory
Board for a 5-year period but their contracts of employment are for an
indefinite period. They may be dismissed and suspended by the
Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board determines the remuneration
of the members of the Executive Board and reports on this to the
Committee on Confidential Matters of the Central Delegates Assembly.
The principles of the remuneration policy for the Executive Board, as
recommended by the Supervisory Board, are established by the Central
Delegates Assembly. Finally, the Supervisory Board periodicatly assesses

and follows up on the Executive Board’s performance.

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board performs the supervisory role within Rabobank
Nederland. This means that the Supervisory Board supervises the policy
pursued by the Executive Board and the general conduct of affairs of
Rabobank Nederland and its affiliated entities. As part of this task, the
achievement of the Group's objectives, the strategy, business risks, the
design and operation of the internal risk management and control
systems, the financial reporting process and compliance with laws and
regulations are discussed at length and tested regularly. In addition, the
Supervisory Board advises the Executive Board. In the performance of
their duties, the members of the Supervisory Board act in the interests
of Rabobank Nederland and its affiliated entities. Certain key Executive
Board decisions are subject to prior approval by the Supervisory Board.
Examples include decisions on strategic collaboration with third parties,
major investments and acquisitions, as well as the annual adoption of
policy plans and the budget.

The members of the Supervisory Board are appointed by the General
Meeting on the recommendation of the Supervisory Board. The inde-
pendence of the individual members is an important consideration in
this respect. The Committee on Confidential Matters of the Central
Delegates Assemnbly determines the remuneration of the members of
the Supervisory Board and has a say in the profile of the members of

the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board annually assesses its own performance, in terms
both of the collective body’s performance and that of its individual
members, Initiatives are developed regularly in order to keep the mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board up-to-date on developments in the insti-
tutional and legal environment in which the bank operates and on risk
management systems, The Supervisory Board has five committees: the
Cooperative Issues Committee, the Audit Committee, the Appointment
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Appeals Committee.

Central Delegates Assembly

The local Rabobanks are members (and shareholders) of Rabobank
Nederland. Influence and control of the local Rabobanks are exercised
via direct and indirect representation on two bodies, the Central
Delegates Assembly and the General Meeting.

The local Rabobanks are organised geographically in 20 regions. The
Boards of the Regional Delegates Assemblies form the Central Delegates
Assembly, which has 120 members. Through the representation of the
local management and supervisory bodies in the Regional Delegates
Assemblies, the members/clients of the local Rabobanks are represented
in the Central Delegates Assembly.

The powers of the Central Delegates Assembly include the establishment
of rules that all local Rabobanks must comply with. The Central Delegates
Assembly also approves the annual plan and the budget of Rabobank
Nederland insofar as this concerns the business of the local Rabobanks.
The outcome can influence Rabobank Nederland’s policy. Furthermore,
the Central Delegates Assembly has substantive discussions which
mainly concern the business of the local Rabobanks. These discussions
are held not only as part of the Central Delegates Assembly’s specific




duties and powers, but also with the aim of encouraging commitment
and consensus between the {ocal Rabobanks and Rabobank Nederland,

Consequently, the manner in which Rabobank Nederland accounts for
its policy to its members is more extensive than the account rendered
by a typical listed public company to its shareholders. Because of the
special relationship between Rabobank Nederland and its members, the
Central Delegates Assemnbly enjoys virtually full attendance.

In order to operate effectively, the Central Delegates Assembly has
appointed committees, which are charged with special duties. They are:
the Committee on Confidential Matters (advises on appointments and
assesses the Supervisory Board's application of the remuneration palicy),
the Central Delegates Assembly Co-ordination Committee (draws up
the agenda of the Central Delegates Assembly and subjects items for
the agenda to formality compliance tests) and the Committee on
Urgent Matters (acts on behalf of the Central Delegates Assembly in
urgent cases).

General Meeting

The General Meeting is the body through which all local Rabobanks, as
members of Rabobank Nederland, can exercise direct control. The
General Meeting deals with important issues, such as the adoption of the
financial statements, granting discharge, amendments to the Articles of
Association and regulations, and the appointment of members of the
Supervisory Board. The Central Delegates Assembly issues advice prior
to the General Meeting on all the items on the agenda, by which time
the local Rabobanks and Rabobank Nederland have already discussed
these subjects in detail. The local Rabobanks have voting rights in the
General Meeting in proportion to their balance sheet total. Because of
the special relationship between Rabobank Nederland and its members,
the General Meeting also enjoys virtually full attendance.

Employee influence
In 2005, a new employee representative body was created: the Group
Staff Council of Member Banks (GOR AB), which acts as a discussion

partner to the Manager on collective influence issues that concern all

local Rabobanks. The creation of the GOR AB does not affect the position
of Rabobank Nederland’s Works Council or the existing Works Councils of
the local Rabobanks. As a result, they continue to act in full as employee
representative bodies within the meaning of the Works Councils Act,

Corporate governance at the local
Rabcbanks

Only banks that have a cooperative structure and whose Articles of
Association have been approved by Rabobank Nederland can be mem-
bers of Rabobank Nederland. In turn, the local Rabobanks have members
as well, who are local clients. The local Rabobanks have strictly defined
rights and obligations towards Rabobank Nederland and each other.

On behalf of the Dutch Central Bank, Rabobank Nederland supervises
the local Rabobanks on solvency, liquidity and accounting information
systems.

Management and supervision

Since June 2004, two govemance models are possible for the local
Rabobanks. The introduction of a second governance model - the
executive model - besides the existing partnership model was prompted
at the time by the wish to respond to internal and external changes, for
example, the local scaling up, which was well on the way by then, a
changing market, and increasing legislation and regulations. Both
governance models focus on ensuring effective management as well as
professional and independent supervision. They will continue to exist

alongside each other in the coming years as equally valid alternatives.

In this context, adequate assurance of effective member influence and
control is likewise essential in order to ensure that the governance of
the local Rabobanks continues to be carried out both adequately and
professionally in the future, but also in a way that benefits their coope-
rative character. The members of all the focal Rabobanks have important
powers, for instance to adopt the financial statements, to amend the
Articles of Association, to appoint members of the Supervisory Board
and to grant discharge from liability. In addition, account is rendered to
the members in respect of the bank’s management and supervision,




Partnership model

In the partnership model, the Board of each local Rabobank consists of
persons elected by the members from their ranks, plus a managing
director who is appointed by the Supervisory Board {(formerly the Board
of Supervisors). The managing director is primarily concerned with the
day-to-day management of the bank’s operations. The Supervisory Board
supervises the management. This model was refocused in 2004, as part
of which the roles and responsibilities of the appointed and elected
managers were redefined, the provision of information was improved
and the supervisory role of the Supervisory Board was strengthened.
Banks using the partnership model may install @ members' council if
they wish,

Executive model

In the executive model, each local Rabobank has a Board of Directors
comprising several persons appointed by the Supervisory Board, which
operates under the supervision of the Supervisory Board. In this mode|,
nc managers are elected by the members from their ranks, as is the
case in the partnership model. In order to firmly and permanently
embed member influence and control in the structure, banks using the
executive model institute a members’ council, which is a delegation of
all members elected by the members from their ranks. The members’
council assumes the bulk of the powers of the General Meeting and
furthermore promotes and structures member control and engagement.
The General Meeting continues to exist, but decides only on major
issues that impact the bank's continued existence.

Transparency

An important precondition for good corporate governance at Rabobank
Group is an open culture with clear accountability for the management
and supervision. Without proper transparency, Rabobank Nederland
cannot render account to the local Rabobanks on its management and
supervision, nor can this be assessed,

Investor relations

Besides good communication with its members, Rabobank Nederland
also attaches great importance to good communication with its other
stakeholders. The investor relations unit informs investors on develop-

ments at Rabobank Group via a dedicated website and an electronic

newsletter. This unit is also responsible for supplying and explaining all
relevant information requested by investors. in addition, institutional
investors and other providers of professional funds are informed, through
presentations or face-to-face, about the financial developments at

Rabobank Group.

Communication with the local Rabobanks

A closed Internet connection created specifically for the local Rabobanks
gives them swift access to useful information and fosters a high level of
commitment to Rabobank Nederland.

Corporate governance information on the Internet
Rabobank Group has placed information on its corporate governance
and activities on its public Internet site, including a full explanation of
deviations from the Dutch Corporate Governance Code. While Rabobank
Group endorses the Code’s principles and implements the majority of
its elements, it does not implement a number of principles and best
practice provisions on account of its cooperative structure.

Risk management

The management of Rabobank Group is based on its strategic principles
and, by extension, on the interrelationship between risk, return and
reserves. Both the Dutch Central Bank and the bank itself have formulated
standards concerning Rabobank’s organisation and control. The standards
of the Dutch Central Bank are laid down for example in the Regulation
on Organisation and Control, which forms the framework for the
organisation and control of Rabobank Group’s activities. For further
information, please refer to the relevant sections in this Annual Report
and the chapter on Risk management in particular. In view of the above,
the Executive Board believes that Rabobank Group's internal risk
management and control systems meet the relevant requirements and
are adequate and effective. A project was started in 2005 in arder to
comply with the international standard for in-control statements on
financial reporting, Sarbanes Oxley (SOX), as well. The aim is to be 'SOX
compliant’at the end of 2006,

Dor more information j
www.rabobank.com/corporategovernance




Risk management

Banking means deliberately taking well-considered

risks. Rabobank Group pursues a prudent risk
policy which entails a modest risk profile. This is
confirmed by the initial calculations of the out-
comes based on the Basel Il accord. In addition to
the external capital adequacy requirements as
formulated in the Basel Il accord, the internal
capital adequacy requirement, ‘economic capital;
is the principal indicator in terms of risk manage-
ment and capital allocation. In 2005 Rabobank
Group again made substantial progress with the
implementation of a comprehensive internal
framework for economic capital.

Risk management organisation

Risk management takes place at various levels within the organisation.
Under the supervision of the Supervisory Board and advised by the
Balance sheet and Risk Management Committee Rabobank Group

(BRMC-RG), the Executive Board determines the risk strategy, policy prin-

ciples and limits. The Supervisory Board regularly reviews the exposure
of Rabobank Group's activities and portfolio. The Chief Financial Officer,
whao is a member of the Executive Board, is responsible for the imple-
mentation of the risk policy within Rabobank Group and is chairman of
the BRMC-RG. Risk management at Rabobank Group is particularly
performed within the Group Risk Management and Credit Risk

Management directorates. Group Risk Management is responsible for the

policy regarding interest rate, liquidity, market, currency and operational
risk, as well as for credit risks at portfolio level. Credit Risk Management

Strategy
ana target

_ Embedding risk management &s an integral
_ part of the banking process as & whole.
lu lding on Economic Capital, Rebobank |
gwpﬂg@ﬂﬁgﬁ@km@
ﬁﬂ)@m further, E o
o Reloelbank Groep @ﬁm o qualifly fler
the mest advanced dofthe new

 caphel secord (Basel )

is responsible for credit risk management at the individual customer level.
In addition, independent risk control departments within the Group
entities monitor the risks that are relevant for the entity in question.

Principles of risk management

The primary objective of risk management is to protect Rabobank

Group's financial soundness. Risk management is based on the following

principles:

- Protecting the Group's financial soundness: Rabobank Group controls
risks in order to limit the impact of potential adverse events on both
its capital and its financial results. The risk appetite is required to be
proportional to the available and desired risk capital. An economic
capital framework has been developed to quantify this.

- Protecting the Group's reputation: reputation is essential for the proper
performance of a banker's profession and needs to be diligently
preserved.

- Risk transparency: for a good insight into the bank's positions, it is vital
to identify all risks. Risks must always be considered in order to be able
to make sound commercial decisions.

- Management responsibility: Rabobank Group's separate business
entities are individually responsible for their results as well as the risks
associated with their operations. A balance must be found between




risk and return, while of course duly observing the relevant risk limits
set by the Group.

- Independent risk control: this is the structured process of identifying,
measuring, monitoring and reporting risks. In order to ensure integrity,
the risk control departments operate independently of the commercial
activities.

An extensive system of limits and controls has been put in place within

Rabobank Group to manage all the different risks.

Economic capital

Basel Il regulations

The new Basel accord on capital adequacy (‘Basel lI') represents an inte-
grated framework for the supervision of banks and is founded on three
pillars. In pillar 1, minimum capital adequacy requirements are set for all
banks for credit risk, market risk and operational risk. Within each risk
category, banks can choose from a number of approaches, which vary
from simple to advanced. Moreover, regulatory bodies can set additional
capital requirements and quality standards for other risk categories.
Under the rules in pillar 2, the supervisory authority ensures that the
bank has identified, quantified and managed all other relevant risks. For
Rabobank Group, these are interest rate risk, country risk and business
risk. Pillar 3 addresses market discipling, requiring banks to publish risk

information with a view to stimulating market forces.

The Basel Il accord was used in 2005 by the European Commission as

a basis for preparing the Capital Requirement Directive (CRD). All EU
member states must have implemented this Directive in national legis-
lation by 1 January 2007. This will lead to a more sophisticated system
of risk weightings and hence to more risk-sensitive capital requirements
than under the current Basel | requirements, At the end of 2006,
Rabobank will start a two track approach, under which capital
adequacy requirements are calculated according to both the old and

the new regulations.

On certain conditions, banks are allowed to use their internal models to
determine the amount of capital to be held. Rabobank Group has deve-
loped sophisticated internal models for both credit risk and operational
risk, which comply with the guidelines of the supervisory authority.

The Directives for these sophisticated models will take effect in the EU
member states from 1 January 2008. Under the Basel Il regulations,
Rahobank Group's relatively low risk profile is reflected in much lower
capital requirements and hence a significantly improved solvency ratio.
This expectation is confirmed by the outcome of Rabobank’s preliminary
calculations, made in the context of the Quantitative Impact Study 5.
The results of this study, which was performed in many countries, will
be used by supervisory authorities to assess whether the Basel Il accord

does in fact generate the outcomes preferred by them,

Economic capital

Besides the supervisor's minimum capital requirements, Rabobank
applies an internal capital requirement: economic capital. Economic
capital is defined as the amount of capital to be held by the bank to
absorb any unexpected losses without becoming insolvent, based on a
one-year period and a confidence level set by Rabobank. Since Rabobank
Group wishes to retain its current highest rating (Triple A), it has elected
to apply a confidence level of 99.99%. Rabobank Group uses the most
advanced statistical methods to determine the amount of economic
capital required to be held.

Rabobank Group sets these high standards for itself because of the
importance it attaches to retaining the highest possible credit rating.
This rating means that rating agencies consider the probability of default
to be practically nil. Risk diversification also plays an important role in
the calculation of economic capital. Better diversification means less
economic capital is required, as there is a lower probability of unexpected
losses occurring simultaneously within different risk categories.
Rabobank Group’s total economic capital for 2005 has been calculated
at EUR 14.9 (13.0} billion, This increase was due partly to the growth in

Rabobank Group’s activities and partly to model improvements introdu-




ced in 2005. The level of economic capital is comfortably below that of
the available Tier [ capital (core capital) of EUR 24.9 billion. This large
capital buffer again confirms Rabobank Group’s solid position.

Allocation of economic capital

The concept of economic capital enables the bank to guantify, analyse
and subsequently manage the various risks that the bank is exposed to.
In relative terms, credit risk remains the largest risk category. A quarter
of the economic capital is necessary for operational risks and business
risks. [nterest rate risk and market risk together account for another
quarter of the economic capital. Insurance risk and country risk are
relatively small risks for Rabobank Group. At the end of 2005, Interpolis
merged with Achmea and in its place came a substantial minority inte-
rest in Eureko. The calculations of economic capital are still based on a
100% risk profile for Interpolis. In 2006, the way the risk profile of the
minority interest in Eureko is to be integrated in the economic capital
model will be reviewed. The greatest shift in 2005 was in both credit
and market risk. The share of credit risk increased as a result of the rela-
tive growth of the loan portfolic. The ratio was also altered by model
and data improvernents. Market risk was reduced by the sale of
Effectenbank Stroeve and Gilde Investment Management. In 2005,
economic capital for operational risk was calculated based on the most
advanced model for the first time,

Viewed by business unit, the domestic retail banking accounts for nearly
half of the economic capital required at Group level. The sale of
Effectenbank Stroeve and Gilde Investment Management caused the
share of the participating interests to decline. The increase in wholesale
banking and international retailbanking can be attributed to strong
autonomous growth.

Breakdown of economic capital by risk at year-end 2005
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RAROC: 14%

The RAROC (Risk Adjusted Return on Capital) is calculated by relating
the profit realised on a particular activity to the capital required for that
activity. RAROC (after tax) realised by Rabobank Group in 2005 was 14%.
In 2004, RAROC (after tax) was 14%.

Credit risk

Rabobank’s policy for accepting new clients is based on careful assess-
ment. Rabobank grants toans only if it expects that a client will fully
meet its payment commitments. Approval of larger financing applicati-
ons is decided on by committees. A structure consisting of various com-
mittee levels has been established, with the amount of the requested
financing as a determining factor for the committee level. The Executive
Board itself decides on the largest financing applications.

Once a loan has been granted, the bank monitors the extent to which
the client meets his commitments. Loans provided to corporate clients,
are being reviewed periodically by reference to new information to
underpin the expectation that the client will continue to be able to meet
its commitments. If commitments are not met, or if there are doubts as
to whether the client will meet his commitments, monitoring is given
a more permanent character. In most cases, the bank and the client
together will search extensively for possible solutions to the problems
that have arisen. In those circumstances, too, the bank continues to
demonstrate its commitment to the client and will widely deploy its
expertise in order to come to a solution that is satisfactory to both the
client and the bank.

A significant part of Rabobank's portfolio consists of mortgage loans
granted to private individuals, where the risk of losses is historically very
low. At 31 December 2005, Rabobank’s private sector fending amounted

Breakdown of economic capital by business units at year-end 2005
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to EUR 278.1 billion, EUR 1465 billion or 53% of which consisted of
financing to private individuals. Lending to corporate clients amounted
1o EUR 131.6 billion at year-end 2005 and is spread across a large num-

ber of sectors.

The loan portfolio is spread not only across numerous sectors but also
across numerous clients in a large number of countries. This creates a
strong and balanced spreading of risks, ensuring that the quality of the
financing portfolio does not significantly deteriorate if one or more

business sectors encounter difficulties or an economic slowdown occurs.

In its financing approval process Rabobank Group uses the Rabobank
Risk Rating, which reflects the counterparty’s probability or default (PD)
over a one-year period. This system comprises 25 ratings.

The accompanying table shows the loans as distributed across the
Rabobank Risk Rating. They concern loans to the larger small- and
medium sized entities, with an annual turnover exceeding EUR 10
million, large corporates, the public sector and financial institutions.

As the table illustrates, the centre of gravity in terms of the distribution
of loans across the Rabobank Risk Rating is in the category R11-R14,
This produces a loans-weighted average PD of 1.04%. For 3% of this
portfolio, the commitments are not being fully met and an adequate
provision has been taken for this part of the portfolio. It should be
noted that the data in this table indicate only the extent to which
Rabobank expects that clients can or cannot meet their commitments.
In many cases, the bank has obtained adequate collateral that can be
enforced if clients would no longer meet their commitments, ensuring
that the loan is eventually fully or partly repaid. It can be concluded that
Rabobank Group has a healthy loan portfolio.

As soon as ongoing monitoring or periodic reviews indicate a going-
concern threat to the business financed, an assessment is made
whether the client can be expected to continue meeting its payment
commitments according to the arrangement made and without doing
so from the proceeds from collateral provided. An adequate provision is
made if it is concluded that complete fulfiiment is unlikely, but also if
the arrears exceed 90 days or if a bankruptcy petition has been filed or a

C

Distribution of Rabobank Risk Rating

Rating PD (basis points)  Description Loans in % of total
2005
RO 0-0 No risk 0
R1 0-16 Exceptionally strong 4
R2-R4 16-45 Very strong 5
R5 - R7 45-12 Strong 12
R8-R10 12-40 Adequate 25
R11-R14 40-210 Acceptable 40
Vulnerable
commitments are
Private sector lending by sector at year-end 2005 RI5-R19  210- 1,600 being met 10
B Priveseinchvicals - S5% R20 1,600 - 10,000 Very weak 1
= Impaired loan
one Serviees commitments are
U Feed @agribudiness 179 D1-D4 10,000 not being met 3
Total 100




moratorium has been granted. This causes the loan to be written down
to the discounted realisable value of the available collateral and of any
other possibilities for recovery. These loans, for which & provision has
been taken, are impaired loans.

At 31 December 2005, the provision for loan losses was EUR 2,438 (2,103)
million, corresponding to 51% (52%) coverage. At 31 December 2005,
impaired loans amounted to EUR 4,814 (4,079) million. At 31 December
2005, impaired loans as a percentage of private lending amounted to
1.7% (1.6%).

Present calculations indicate that 48% of Rabobank Group's total
economic capital is required for credit risk. It is self-evident that this
should represent the greater part of economic capital, since lending is

Rabobank’s main activity.

Domestic retail banking accounts for 42% of total economic capital
required for credit risk, wholesale banking accounts for 47% and partici-
pating interests accounts for 11%. The various diversification effects
have been taken into account in determining this level. Differences in
the product range, such as mortgages, leasing and consumer credits, all
play a role. Also important is the fact that the loan portfolio is widely
spread across different client groups, such as private individuals, small
and medium-sized enterprises as well as multinationals.

RARQC plays an increasingly important part in the financing approval
process. Tools for calculating RARQC for each individual loan are now

being widely used. This supports a proper assessment of risk versus return.

r

Impaired loans
(in EUR millions)

2005 2004
Domestic retail banking 2,706 2,211
Wholesale and international 1,843 1,488
retail banking
Leasing 242 364
Other 23 16
4,814 4,079

Rabobank Group

The development in bad debt expenses can be expressed in basis
points of average private lending. At Group level, the average for the
period 2000 to 2004 was 24 basis points. This is on the basis of Dutch
financial reporting standards as applicable through 2004. International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are applied as from 2005. The bad
debt expenses were extremely low for wholesale banking and inter-
national retail banking operations in 2004. For 2005, they are more in
line with the longer-term historical average. The domestic retail banking
operations and leasing both showed & limited decline in the bad debt
expenses. Overall, the bad debt expenses for 2005 were 20 basis points
of average lending, reflecting the continued favourable risk profile of
Rabobank Group's loans portfolio.

Country risk

With respect to country risk, a distinction is made between transfer risk
and collective debtor risk. Transfer risk relates to the possibility of foreign
governments placing restrictions on funds transfers from debtors in that
country to creditors abroad. Collective debtor risk relates to the situation
in which a large number of debtors in a country cannot meet their
commitments for the same reason (e.g. war, political and social unrest,
natural disasters, but also government policy that does not succeed in
creating macro-economic and financial stability). Rabobank Group uses
a country limit system to manage the transfer risk and to monitor the
collective debtor risk for all countries. After careful review, relevant
countries get an internal country risk rating, after which transfer limits
and a general indicator are established.

Distribution of economic capital for credit risk at year-end 2005
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Transfer limits are determined according to the net transfer risk, which is
defined as total foans granted less loans granted in local currency less
guarantees and other collateral obtained to cover transfer risk and a
reduced weighting of specific products. The limits are allocated to the
offices, which are themselves responsible for day-to-day monitoring

of the loans granted by them and reporting on this to Group Risk
Management.

At group level, the country risk outstanding, including additional capital
requirement and provision for country risks, is reported every quarter to
the Balance sheet and Risk Management Committee Rabobank Group
and the Country Limit Committee. The calculation of the additional capital
requirement and the provision for country risk is made in accordance
with Dutch Central Bank guidelines and concerns high-risk countries.

The net transfer risk before provisions for non-OECD countries is usually
less than 1% of total assets.

Interest rate risk

Beside market risk in the trading environment, Rabobank is also exposed
10 a structural interest rate risk on its balance sheet. Interest rate risk
means that the bank’s financial result and economic value - given

its balance sheet structure - may decline as a result of unfavourable
developments in the money and the capital markets. Interest rate risk
results mainly from mismatches between maturities of loans and due to
customers. If interest rates increase, the rate for the liabilities, such as
savings, will be adjusted immediately, whereas the interest rate for the
assets on the balance sheet cannot be adjusted until later.

f

Bad debt expenses

in basis points of average private sector lending

2005 2004
Domestic retail banking 9 14
Wholesale banking and international
retail banking 52 21
Leasing 72 73

Rabobank Group 20 18

Many assets, such as mortgages, have longer fixed-interest terms and
the rate for these loans cannot be adjusted until the next interest rate

reset date.

The potential loss of financial results and value can be expressed in the
basis point sensitivity (BPV), the Equity at risk {(EatR) and the Income at
risk (1atR). These are the key indicators used in the management and
control of the interest rate risk at a central level.

BPV is the absolute loss of market value of equity at a parallel rise of the
interest rate curve by 1 basis point. In the year under review, the BPY
never exceeded EUR 20 million.

EatR indicates the percentage by which the market value of equity will
decline at a parallel rise of the interest rate curve by 1 percentage point.
Equity at Risk is an indication of the sensitivity of the market value of
equity to interest rate fluctuations. Equity at Risk is determined by the
absolute interest rate risk position on the one hand and the magnitude
of the buffer (the market value of equity) on the other. In the year under
review, Equity at Risk never exceeded 7.5%.

latR is the potential loss of interest income over the next 12 months,
within a 97.5% confidence interval, as a result of an interest rate increase
in the money and the capital markets. During 2005, the Income at Risk
did not exceed EUR 250 million.

Additionally, scenario analyses are performed and client behaviour and
interest rate movements are modelled. In savings modelling for example,
the replicating portfolio'is used. This is a method based on long-term
developments to imitate interest rates and client behaviour in relation

to the variable savings.

Long-term funding in 2005, by currency
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Finally, the economic capital and RAROC for interest rate risk are reported
at a group level. The economic capital to be held for interest rate risk is
based on market value losses resuiting from unexpected developments
in interest rates. The RAROC interest rate risk is the mismatch result in
proportion to the economic capital required by the interest rate risk.

Funding and liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that not all (re)payment commitments can be
met as well as the risk that increases in assets cannot be funded at
reasonable prices or not at all. This could happen if clients or other pro-
fessional counterparties suddenly withdraw more funding than expected,
which cannot be met by the bank's cash resources or by selling or
pledging on assets or by borrowing funds from third parties.

Methods to measure this risk include the CA/CL method (Core Asset /
Core Liabilities). This analysis is based on the cash flow schedule of all
assets and liabilities. Using various time periods, a quantification is made
of the assets (and unused facilities) and liabilities that will probably still
be or come on the balance sheet after assumed and closely defined
stress scenarios have occurred. These remaining assets and liabilities are
referred to as the core assets (CA) and core liabilities (CL) respectively.
The CA/CL ratio is the liquidity ratio. Given the highly conservative
weightings used, a ratio of below 1.2 is considered adequate. In the year

The supervisory authority also has extensive guidelines for measuring
and reporting the Group's liquidity position. The liquidity position of the
Group as a whole, measured according to the guidelines of the super-
visory authority, was more than adequate, with the available liquidity
exceeding the requirement by an average of 8%. Rababank Group's
comfortable liquidity position is reflected in the balance sheet by the
substantial asset items ‘Financial assets available for sale; Financial assets
held for trading'and 'Other financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss, together totalling EUR 105 billion. In principle, these assets
are directly available to create liguidity.

in addition, the bank monitors and reports on a daily basis which cash
flows are to be expected over the next 30 days and how much collateral
is available in which location. For unexpected crisis situations, detailed
contingency plans are in place formulating which procedures are to be

followed should a crisis situation occur.

Rabobank Group’s funding policy is to meet the funding requirements
of the Group entities at an acceptable cost. The policy is characterised
by diversification of funding sources and currencies, flexibility of funding
instruments and active investor relations. Rabobank Group has been
assigned the highest possible credit rating by leading rating agencies.
This top rating enables Rabobank Group to raise funds at a relatively

under review, this was the case for the scenarios used. low cost.
( ]
Risk in non-OESD countries
in EUR millions
In Latin In Asia/ % of balance
Regions In Europe  In Africa  America Pacific Total sheet total
Economic country risk {excl. derivatives) 1,199 282 5112 4,385 10,979 2.2
Risk-reducing components:
- sales in local currencies 3 2 1,851 1,106 2,962
- country risk borne by third parties 382 184 1,392 451 2,410
- less: reduced weighting of lower-risk
transactions 340 38 599 480 1,456
Net country risk before provisions 474 59 1,270 2,348 4,151 0.8
% of total
provisions
Total provisions for economic country risk 259 1 119 58 436 17.9

Y total assets, plus issued guarantees, suretyships and unused lines of credit




In 2005, over EUR 20 billion in long-term funding was raised in the inter-
national financial markets. A separate Investor Relations unit is in place
to provide full information to investors in Rabobank paper about the
bank’s risk profile and financial and strategic developments.

In order to limit the need for long-term funding, EUR 2 billion of
Rabohypotheekbank's centrally available mortgages portfolio was
securitised for liquidity purposes in 2005. The mortgages were sold to a
dedicated entity that finances them by the issue of bonds. These bonds
were subsequently bought by Rabobank and can be used as collateral
to raise funds, if needed. By converting mortgages into in marketable
paper, non-liquid assets have been converted into liquid assets.

Market risk

Market risk relates to changes in the value of the trading portfolio as a
result of price movements in the market. Price changes include prices of
interest rate products (interest rate), equities, currencies and certain
commeadities. The exposure is calculated and consolidated on a daily
basis and managed using a sophisticated system of limits and trading
controls. At a consolidated level, the exposure is expressed by the Value
at Risk. This measure, based on historic market developments, indicates
the maximum loss that Rabobank Group can suffer subject to a certain
confidence level and in 'normal’ market conditions. The level of the Value
at Risk reflects market developments and the positions taken by the
bank itself.

In order to understand the maximum potential risk as well, the effect

of certain extreme events (event risk’) on the value of the portfolios is
calculated. To this end, both actual scenarios, e.g. the stock market crash
of 1987, and hypothetical scenarios, e.g. an assumed steep rise of all
interest rates, are analysed. Sensitivity analyses are also used.

In 2005, the Value at Risk fluctuated between EUR 14 (11) million and
EUR 25 (22) million, with an average of EUR 19 (17) million. For 2005, this
means that, at a confidence level of 97.5%, losses on any one day would

not have exceeded EUR 25 million.

As the table shows, Value at Risk for the trading portfolios can be sub-
divided in a number of components. The value of the trading portfolios
is sensitive mainly to changes in interest rates, equity prices and credit
spreads. Since opposite positions of different books offset each other to
a certain degree, this results in a diversification benefit which reduces
the total risk. At 31 December 2005, the consolidated Value at Risk was
EUR 22.1 miillion. This is a relatively limited position, as is also evident
from the fact that only a smali part of total economic capital is held for
market risks from the trading activities.

Currency risk

Currency risk positions are taken in both trading and non-trading books.
As is the case for other market risks, the currency risk in the trading
books is controlled using Value at Risk limits. In the non-trading books,
there is only the translation risk on capital invested in foreign activities
and issues of Trust Preferred Securities not denominated in euros.

To monitor and control the translation risk, Rabobank Group uses an
interrelated two-track approach to protect the bank’s capital position
against currency exchange rate movements. On the one hand, the
hedging strategy hedges reserves invested in foreign currencies abroad,
while on the other it immunises the BIS ratio against the effects of cur-
rency exchange rate movements. The latter is done via the components
of the Tier I and Tier Il capital that do not form part of equity, in particular
Trust Preferred Securities. In 2003 and 2004, these were issued in selected
foreign currencies to ensure that the currency composition of the total

L _ ]
Risk type

Value at Risk at year-end 2005
in EUR millions

in EUR millions

At year-end 2005

250

Credit spread 19.2
Foreign currency 0.2
Equities 2.2
Interest rate 3.1
Diversification -2.6
Total Value at Risk 22.1




of Tier 1 and Tier Il capital corresponded with that of the risk-weighted
assets. This’natural hedge’' was realised by issuing the Trust Preferred
Securities Il {in 2003) and Ill {in 2004), which form part of the Tier | capital,
in US dollars (USD 3,250 million), Australian dollars (AUD 500

million) and pounds sterling (GBP 350 million).

Operational risk

fn the banking world, operational risk is classified as a non-financial risk.
It concerns the risk of losses resulting from failure of internal processes,
people or systems or from external events. The imminent adoption of the
Basel Il accord has focused the attention on transparency and control of
operational risk, as, starting 2008, banks must hold capital for operational
risks. If a bank has identified its operational risks and demonstrably
manages them effectively, it can be expected that fewer losses will occur
and that less capital is required to cover them. Rabobank has developed
a model to calculate the capital to be held for operational risks in such a
way that it is aligned with the current risk profile of Rabobank Group as
a whole as well as that of each individual business unit.

Specifically for operational risk management, Rabobank Group has stated
that it is targeting the highest ambition level in the Basel Il accord: the
Advanced Measurement Approach. Rabobank Group aims thereby to
demonstrate that it has risk management high on its agenda and that
its Triple A rating is more than deserved. The use of the Advanced
Measurement Approach makes Rabobank Group's control structure
more transparent and the co-ordination at Group level creates benefits
in the fields of knowledge building and sharing. The establishment, by
Group Risk Management, of policy frameworks and standards and align-
ment of the control organisation with these framewaorks contributes
substantially to Rabobank Group's ‘being in control'in the area of risk

management.
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Rabobank Utrecht-Nieuwegein helps people from Kanaleneiland
district find traineeship positions

Opportunities for students
from ethnic minorities

Like many of her fellow students, Warda el Markai, who is a student at a Regional Training Centre (ROC), was unable
to find herself a traineeship position. Rabobkank Utrecht-Nieuwegein decided to help. It granted Warda a traineeship
position plus a project: Traineeship opportunities for ‘Kanaleneilanders. The aim was to create traineeship positions

for ROC students at businesses in Kanaleneiland. Currently, over one hundred such positions have been realised.




Corporate socia
responsibility

Rabobank Group’s ambition is to remain a
corporate social responsibility (CSR) leader in
financial services. This is in support of customer
value, continuity, long-term profitability and the
risk profile and thereby in support of the triple A
rating. Ethical business practices, transparency
and accountability - these are Rabobank’s watch-
words. The annual CSR monitor shows that the
bank has succeeded in achieving the greater part
of its targets for 2005. Rabobank retained its
position as Europe’s most sustainable bank in the
sustainability rating of the Swiss Sustainable Asset
Management Group (SAM). In both 2006 and
2007, applying CSR will be central to Rabobank’s
core processes. To that end, each Group entity
has identified two CSR targets that relate to that
entity’s primary function. This is another important
step on the road to further integration of CSR
throughout the organisation.

Sustainability is embedded in Rabobank’s cooperative structure, which in
turn is closely linked with such principles as duty of care, inclusiveness,
openness and dialogue with society. Over the past one hundred years
and more, Rabobank has developed from a purely lending-oriented
cooperative to a customer-oriented cooperative, with customer value
and member engagement as central elements. Corporate social
responsibility is therefore a logical consequence of Rabobank’s core
values committed'and near-you.

Rabobank is the food & agri market leader in the Netherlands and
wishes to expand its activities in this market globally through organic
growth and selected acquisitions. This ambition obliges Rabobank, on
the basis of its cooperative philosophy, to place CSR high on its policy
agenda. Through CSR, Rabobank wants to contribute towards creating
long-term value for its clients, employees and investors as well as for
society and the environment in the broadest sense.

This includes staff compliance with CSR standards on items such as
respect, integrity and professionalism. It also includes the application of
sustainability criteria in the bank's own financial services and products
by implementing CSR standards in loan granting, propositions for
sustainable investment funds and payment and savings products, and
transparent product and delivery conditions. Also, staff must be offered
opportunities for professional development and social engagement.

In operational terms, the focus is on efficiency, lower environmental
impact, reduced energy consumption and paper use, sustainability in
building and responsible procurement.

Reputation risks and credit risks

Reputation management under CSR is performed by adequately, regu-
larly and proactively addressing issues that concern Rabobank's actions,
such as respect for human rights in enterprises financed by us.
Reputation management is also implemented by means of transparent
corporate governance, by operating in compliance with external quide-
lines and internal codes and by incorporating sustainability criteria in the
financial services. For example, CSR reviews are increasingly incorporated

in credit assessments.




Strategy and targets
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Triple P

Itis of great importance to Rabobank Group that its customers and other
stakeholders perceive corporate social responsibility as a visible and
distinguishing element of the bank’s image and actions. To institutional
investors, the CSR element is increasingly a determining factor in their
decisions to invest, with special focus on the ratings awarded to
Rabobank by the various agencies that issue ‘sustainability ratings.
Rabobank's good 'triple P rating' (people, planet, profit), makes it more
interesting for institutional investors to invest in Rabobank bonds.
Thus, Triple P has a direct link with its financial counterpart, i.e. the
Triple A rating.

CSR monitoring and reporting (GR! guidelines)

Within Rabobank, corporate social responsibility is made visible by
monitoring in all individual business units and in the local Rabobanks.
In this way, the envisaged transparency in non-financial performance is
realised. As a result, Rabobank Group’s Annual Responsibility and
Sustainability Report 2004 was the first to receive partial positive verifi-
cation in the Netherlands. Monitoring facilitates managing towards CSR
targets and result reporting, Starting 2006, all CSR data to be collected
must meet the same guality demands as those defined by the Dutch
Central Bank for financial data. Each quarter, the CSR data will be proces-
sed by Rabobank Group's Financial Control simultaneausly with the
financial data.

CSR in products and services

The year 2004 saw the first closing of the Robeco Sustainable Private
Equity Fund of Funds. This fund, of which Robeco is the Asset Manager
and Rabobank the Investment Advisor, closed at a volume of EUR 122
million. The fund is used for investments in the best ‘clean-tech’and
‘mean-stream’ private equity funds. These funds invest in non-listed
enterprises that are stimulated in the area of corporate social responsibi-
lity by applying Rabobank’s 'Responsible Entreprenaurship Guidelines.
The aim is to improve the performance of these enterprises by means

of risk controf and by using opportunities arising from social and
environmental developments. in 2005, the Fund of Funds received the
Clean Tech Award from Clean Tech Ventures for the most innovative
clean-tech investment product.

CSRin lending

Rabobank’s position in the food & agri sector entails social responsibility.
The implementation of a sustainability review in the credit assessments
of projects in Brazil, Singapore and Thailand, as well as in the Netherlands,
was therefore continued in 2005. Based on research in Brazil, a new CSR
instrument will be applied in lending in that country in 2005. Under this
scheme, the client will receive both a credit rating and a CSR rating, with
an explicit review of his performance in the most relevant non-financial
areas. Social issues such as corporate governance, staff policy (including
human rights), product and customer safety and the environment can
be factors for each country and sector. Explicit focus on CSR in the
lending process makes it possible to manage risks resufting from social
or environmental developments.

Rabo Groen Bank

Rabobank maintained its lead in the market for green financing in 2005
and has a market share of 50%. Total assets of Rabo Groen Bank amoun-
ted to EUR 2.7 billion. Gross loans increased to EUR 550 million in 2005.
Last year saw the first 'earmarked’ issue of green bonds. These are bonds
with advance indication to investors of the project the issue proceeds
will in principle be spent on. In 2005, EUR 53 million in funding was
realised with these bonds to finance the new waste-fired power plant of
Afval Energie Bedrijf, in Amsterdam.

Rabobank is particularly strong in financing Green Label Greenhouses,
biological agriculture, agricultural nature management and wind energy,
with the local Rabobanks playing an important part. Nearly alt banks sell
green bonds to private clients. More than three-quarters of the local
Rabobanks are involved in providing green financing.




Sustainable Rabobank operations

Obviously, an important element in the overall CSR policy is realising
sustainable operations within the Rabobank organisation itself. Numerous
initiatives in this area have been developed over the past years. Targets
include reduction in paper use, procurement of green power only,
sustainability in building offices and sustainable staff mobility.

Reduction in paper use

‘A forest a year'- this is Rabobank Group's targeted reduction. The ultimate
target is a 10% reduction in A4 paper use, 7% of which was achieved in
2004. Despite this slowdown in 2005, the 10% reduction has now been
reached.

FSC paper

An important milestone in 2005 was the signing of an agreement with
FSC Nederiand on the use of FSC certified paper. The FSC label represents
sustainable forest management. This paper has been phased in from
October 2005 for large-volume applications such as branded and
copying paper, account statements and envelopes. As a result, around
80% of total paper use is now FSC label compliant. The Annual Reports
are printed on this paper as well.

Energy

The effect of the framework contract for the supply of green power to
Rabobank Group's 1,300 offices in the Netherlands, which was signed in
2004, became visible in 2005, raising the share of green power to about
99% in 2005. In addition, a major step forward was taken in the integra-
tion of the various aspects of energy management. The procurement of

gas and green power, metering, benchmarking of energy consumption
per square metre, as well as the entire handling of the energy invoices,
have all been included in an integrated energy programme that was
made available to all Rabobank Group entities in 2005.

Sustainability in building

A programme of requirements has been drawn up for the newly to be
built Rabobank Nederland offices in Utrecht, containing a high ambition
far sustainability in building. The use of FSC certified wood is only one
of the demands. For local Rabobanks, environmental standards have
been incorporated in the briefs, including as a matter of course the use
of FSC certified building materials.

Mobility

The Rabaobank aims to continue to be among the world’s most sustaina-
ble banks. To emphasise this ambition, the car lease arrangement was
adjusted in 2005, Employees of Rabobank Nederland are allowed to lease
only relatively fuel-efficient cars, and this also applies to all management
levels. By 2008, this should result in a 5% net annual decrease in the
number of leased cars and a 10% annual reduction of the total CO,
emission of the leased car fleet. The Rabobank also tries to reduce the
use of cars in favour of public transport. For example, as from 2006,
public transport costs only are refunded for certain identified routes.

Sustainable procurement

The Rabobank also wishes to embed CSR structurally in its day-to-day
procurement practice. In a number of areas, e.g. energy and paper,
Rabobank Nederland is already experienced in the integration of CSR

{
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CSR awards for Rabobank

In the sustainability assessment by the Swiss Sustainable Asset
Management Group (SAM), as published in 2005, Rabobank

remained Europe’s most sustainable bank. Compared to 2003, the
sustainability score improved from 74% to 80%. Globally, Rabobank

comes after the Australian Westpac Banking Corporation.

in the rating by the Sustainable Investment Research international
(SiRi) of early 2006, Rabobank received the highest rating in the
Diversified Financials industry sector. SiRi rates corporate entities in
eight non-financial areas: compliance with codes and standards,
corporate governance, customer service, staff policy, the environ-
ment, procurement, contribution to society and the allocation of

the purpose of financing.

Award for Responsibility and
Sustainability Report

In the year under review, Rabobank Group received
the Accountancy Award 2005 (ACC Award) for the
best Annual Responsibility and Sustainability
Report. The report entitled 'Our corporate social
responsibility’is a summary of the main themes of
the full Annual Responsibility and Sustainability
Report, which is available on the Internet, and
deals with specific dilemmas. According to the jury,
strengths of the Report included the description
of CSR integration in the organisation and of the
activities in developing countries.




aspects in the procurement chain. Further, aspects such as child safety
and child labour are already taken into account right from the procure-
ment of premiums. Responsible pracurement will be further implemen-
ted in day-to-day operations in the years to come.

Banking in developing countries

The Rabobank Development Program focuses primarily on enterprising
people in rural areas of developing countries and gives them access to
affordable financial services. This stimulates entrepreneurship, sustainable
economic growth and prosperity. Here, Rabobank benefits from its wide
expertise in the international food & agri sector and its many years of
experience in cooperative retail banking. With its knowledge, manage-
ment and capital, Rabobank contributes to well-organised local financial
services.

For many years, the Rabobank Foundation has supported savings and
loan cooperatives in developing countries. Early last year, Rabo Financial
Institutions Development BV. was established. It provides capital to
banks with a national coverage and develops these banks into fully-
fledged financial institutions.

In 2005, Rabobank, together with three Tanzanian consortium partners,
to0k a 49% interest in the National Microfinance Bank (NMB). In the
years tc come, Rabobank will make a significant contribution to NMB's
management. In addition, Rabobank will provide technical support in
NMB's further development. With its 100 offices, this bank is one of
Tanzania’s largest banks and is very important to the development of
the rural economy in this country.
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In addition, the Rabobank Foundation and Rabobank international,
tegether with the Dutch Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Solidaridad,
launched the ‘Sustainable Agriculture Guarantee Fund: The aim of this
fund is to give small and medium-sized agricultural enterprises in
developing countries better access to affordable loans. The fund will
provide credit guarantees to local Rabobanks in South America, Africa
and Asia, enabling them to grant loans to farmers' cooperatives on
more favourable terms, for instance for the production and export of
sustainable, certified agricultural products such as coffee.

CSR targets for all entities

Every Group entity must formulate two concrete CSR targets for 2006
that tie in with the general targets, an example being the introduction
of CSR criteria in lending for Rabobank International. In 2007, all Group
entities will be assessed on the achievement of the twa targets set.

[ 1
Maore information on Rabobank Group's CSR policy and activities
can be found in the Annual Responsibility and Sustainability
Report 2005. This report is available on the Internet. The Internet
version complies with the Global Reporting initiative guidelines.
In addition, examples of interesting projects initiated by local
Rabobanks and Group entities can be found on the Internet.

See: www.rabobank.com




Rabobank Rotterdam finances entrepreneurs in socially disadvantaged districts

Impulse to the local economy

Rotterdam has identified eight Opportunity zones, i.e. socially disadvantaged city districts where entrepreneurs can
get a 50 per cent investment premium. In this way, the city intends to create an economically healthy environment.
Rabobank Rotterdam supports the initiative. Based on the subsidy provider’s positive assessment, it quickly finances

the remaining investment amount at a discounted interest rate and commission.




“Fast treatment means entrepreneurs
quickly know where they stand”

“hreuglh G errangernent, we are actvely addressing urban prekiems. Wihen an enireprancwr has been granted @
subsily, (e ean fn pringplie heve dhe menay at s dispesal within @ few days, witheut belng subjeciad to @ new
@ssEssTREnt preesss, Se iy, we have fnaneed four sueh entrapreneurs. Many mere will fallow, beeauss 400 subsidy
witlh Ghe monicipalig” Arden van Kiink, Steategy & Innevation adviser @t Rabobank Retrerdam




Consolidated balance sheet

L

At 31 December

in millions of euros 2005 2004
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,923 7.269
Due from other banks 53,065 41,050
Trading financial assets 39,011 32,646
Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss : 14,871 32,498
Derivative financial instruments 24,135 32,035
Loans to customers 304,451 273,946
Available-for-sale financial assets 51,221 48,320
Held-to-maturity financial assets 1,908 2,207
Investments in associates 297 714
Goodwill and other intangibie assets 252 204
Property and equipment 3115 3313
Investment properties 768 1,178
Deferred tax assets 1,236 1,076
Other assets 6,307 7118
Total assets 506,234 483,574
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At 31 December

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Liabilities
Due to other banks 109,749 96,347
Due to other banks at fair value through profit and loss 239 97
Due to customers 186,427 177471
Due to customers at fair value through profit and loss 32 I
Debt securities in issue 115,992 97,520
Debt securities in issue at fair value through profit and loss 19,333 11,940
Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities 28,081 39,171
Other debts 7,346 7,650
Insurance liabilities 3 17,882
Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 7,341 7,090
Provisions 931 1,081
Deferred tax liabilities 329 223
Employee benefits 1,437 1,958
Subordinated debt 2,645 2,129
Total liabilities 479,885 460,570
Equity
Equity of Rabobank Nederland and local Rabobanks 15,450 14,018
Rabobank Member Certificates issued by group companies 5811 3,840
21,261 17,858
Trust Preferred Securities lIl to V! issued by group companies 2,092 1,877
Minority interests 2,996 3,269
Total equity 26,349 23,004
Total equity and liabilities 506,234 483,574




Consolidated profit and loss account

=

—

For the year ended 31 December

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Interest income 22,101 18,580
Interest expense 15,694 12,385
Interest 6,407 6,195
Fee and commission income 2,639 2,294
Fee and commission expense 422 422
Fees and commission 2,217 1,872
Income from associates 226 99
Trading income 373 333
Net income from non-trading financial assets and liabilities

at fair value through profit and loss 20 (90)
Gains on available-for-sale financial assets 38 27
Income from Interpolis insurance business 353 214
Other (271) 572
Income 9,363 9,222
Staff costs 3,880 3,683
Other administrative expenses 1,953 2173
Depreciation and amortisation 331 321
Operating expenses 6,164 6,177
Value adjustments 517 479
Operating profit before taxation 2,682 2,566
Taxation 599 773
Net profit for the year 2,083 1,793
Of which attributable to Rabobank Nederland and local Rabobanks 1,577 1,392
Of which attributable to holders of Rabobank Member Certificates 21 217
Of which attributable to Trust Preferred Securities Il to VI m 20
Of which attributable to minority interests 184 164
Net profit for the year 2,083 1,793




Censolidated statement of changes in equity

Equity of

Rabobank Nederland Rabobank Trust Preferred Total
In millions of euros and local Rabobanks Member Certificates Securities Ill to VI Minority interests equity
At 1 January 2004 12,501 3,853 - 3,325 19,679
Arising in the period:
Available-for-sale financial assets -
net fair value changes, after taxation 376 - - - 376
Currency translation differences {57) - - - (57)
Available-for-sale financial assets -
reclassified to net profit for the year,
after taxation (109) - - - (109)
Total income and expense for the
year recognised directly in equity 210 - - - 210
Net profit for the year 1,392 217 20 164 1,793
Total income and expense 1,602 217 20 164 2,003
Issue of Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities - (13) 1,877 - 1,864
Payment on Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities - (217) (20) - (237)
Other (85) - - (220) (305)
At 31 December 2004 14,018 3,840 1,877 3,269 23,004




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Equity of

Rabobank Nederland Rabobank Trust Preferred Total
In millions of euros and local Rabobanks Member Certificates Securities lll to VI Minority interests equity
At 1 January 2005 14,018 3,840 1,877 3,269 23,004
Arising in the period:
Available-for-sale financial assets -
net fair value changes, after taxation (179) - - - (179)
Available-for-sale financial assets -
reclassified to net profit for the year,
after taxation (114) - - - (114)
Currency translation differences 22 215 - 237
Cash flow hedges - net fair value
gains, after taxation 1 - - - 1
Total income and expense for the
year recognised directly in equity (270) - 215 - (55)
Net profit for the year 1,577 21 m 184 2,083
Total income and expense 1,307 21 326 184 2,028
Issue of Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities - 1,971 - - 1,971
Payment on Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities - (211) (1) - (322)
Other 125 - - (457) (332)
At 31 December 2005 15,450 5,811 2,092 2,996 26,349




Consolidated cash flow statement

= 1

For the year ended 31 December

In millions of euros 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating profit before taxation 2,682 2,566
Adjusted for: - - - -

Non-cash items recognised in profit and loss ar)d other adjustments -

Depreciation and amortisation 343 330
Value adjustments e 517 479
Change in insurance liabilities (excluding Interpolis) o 13 7 27
Result on sale of property and equipment (12) 9
Share of (profit) of associates and result on sale of subsidiary {218) (65)
Fair value gains/losses on investment properties 1 (18)

Fair value gains/losses on available-for-sale financial assets reclassified to

the income statement (20) 90

Net gains/losses on trading financial assets (373) (333)

Net income from non-trading financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss (38) (27)

Net (increase)/decrease in property and equipment

Due from other banks - - 1,387 14,054
Trading financial assets (5,741) 5,593
Derivative financial instruments 7,900 (4,555)

Net (increase)/decrease in non-trading financial assets at fair value through
profitandloss 25,219 (18,534)
Loans to customers ) (30,337) (27,044)

Net increase/(decrease) in liabilities relating to operating activities

Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities 3 (11,090) 5,596
Due to customers - 8,956 17,541
Debt securities in issue B o 18,472 6,070
Other debts ] (304) (1,781)
Incometaxpaid | __(634) (680
Other changes (mainly attributable to disposal of Interpolis) (18,861) 7,526

Net cash flow from operating activities ) ~ (2138) 6,826




Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December

In millions of euros 2005 2004

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash and cash equivalents acquired (21 (206)

Disposal of subsidiaries net of cash and cash equivalents disposed 2 4

Acquisition of property and equipment and investment properties (456) (568)

Income from sale of property and equipment 318 644

Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity financial assets (14,885) (19,485)

Income from sale and repayment of available-for-sale financial assets and

held-to-maturity financial assets 10,286 8,848

Net cash flow fro_m investin»g activities (4,756) (10,763)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of Rabobank Member Certificates 2,000 -

Proceeds from issue of Trust Preferred Securities - 1879
Proceeds from issue of subordinated debt instruments 1,000 1,927
Payment on Rabobank Member Certificates and Trust Preferred Securities 322 237
Repayment of subordinated debt (774) (15)
Net cash flow from financing activities 2,548 4,028
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,346) 91
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,269 7178
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year B 2,923 7,269

The purchase of the interest in Eureko and the sale of the interest in Interpolis did not generate any cash flows.

The cash flows from interest are included in the net cash flow from operating activities. The interest income and expense

amounted:

Interest income 22,101 18,580

Interest expense 15,694 12,385




Notes to the

oalance sheet

Rabobank Group’s consolidated total assets
grew by 5% in 2005 to EUR 506 billion.
Lending increased by 11% and savings by 10%.

Loans to customers

Loans to customers increased by 11% in 2005 to EUR 304 (274) billion.
This total comprises:

- Lending and security transactions to government clients;

- Securities transactions due from private sector lending;

- Credit adjustments due to hedge accounting;

- Private sector lending.

At the end of 2005, lending to government clients amounted to EUR 2.5
(4.2} pitlion and the outstanding amount of securities transactions was
EUR 22,0 (18.6) billion. The Rabobank Group uses derivatives to hedge
its interest rate risk for loans to clients. These derivatives are valued at
fair value and loans to clients are valued on an amortised cost basis.
The Rabobank Group applies hedge accounting to prevent value changes
from being reflected directly in the profit and loss account. For 2005,
this resulted in a EUR 1.8 (2.2) billion revaluation of loans to customers,
The majority of loans concerns private sector lending. This item, which
represents 55% of total assets, increased by 12% to EUR 278.1 (249.0)
billion, mainly as a result of the strong growth in mortgage loans.

The greater part of lending (79%) was in the Netherlands, with 9% else-

where in Europe, 8% in America, 4% in Australia and New Zealand and
1% in the rest of the world. Loans to private individuals made up 53% of
private sector lending, 30% was in the trade, industry and services
sector and 17% in the food & agri sector.

Lending by sector

- Private individuals

Total loans to private individuals increased by 10% to EUR 146.5 (133.2)
billion in the year under review, with the greater part, 97%, granted in
the Netherlands. Abroad, lending to private individuals grew by more
than 10%, which was due in particular to strong growth in lreland.

~ Trade, industry and services

During the year under review, lending to corporate clients in trade,
industry and services was 9% higher than a year ago. As a result, total
lending to these clients amounted to EUR 83.3 {76.3) billion, with the
strongest growth in the industry and financial services sectors.

~ Food & agri

Lending to the food & agri sector covers the complete chain of the
primary agricultural sector, up to and including food retail. Lending in
this sector grew by 22% to EUR 48.2 (39.5) billion. The food & agri
activities abroad showed a particularly strong growth of ne less than
43%. The strong growth in lending to the primary agricultural sector
included loans to vegetable and fruit growers,

Lending by Group entity at year-end 2005
B Comastie retall banking 7%
]
ncarmerions) retall benking 9%
B 5%
£ Reeleste 2%
s 9%




Lending by Group entity

Of the total private sector lending of EUR 278.1 billion, EUR 200.7 (183.6)
billion was granted by the domestic retail banking operations. Their share
of total lending was 73%. Wholesale banking and international retail
banking operations granted loans representing 19% of total lending.
Leasing and real estate represented 5% and 2%, respectively.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets comprise shares, bonds, money market paper,
short-term government paper and other forms of securities.

Other financial assets are subdivided into the following categories:
- Trading financial assets;

- Available-for-sale financial assets;

- Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;

- Held-to-maturity financial assets.

At year-end 2005, other financial assets amounted to EUR 107 (116)
billion, or 21% of total assets. Around 36% of these financial assets, or
EUR 39 billion, is held for trading. Value differences in this item are taken
directly to the profit and loss account. The greater part of the financial
assets, EUR 57 billion, is in the ‘available for sale’category. This item plays
an important part in providing for the fiquidity needs and is not designed
to generate short-term profits. The difference between carrying value
and fair value is taken to the revaluation reserve. However, the value
differences of part of those financial assets that are valued at fair value,

EUR 15 billion, are taken to the profit and loss account. This concerns
primarily securities linked directly to liabilities where any valuation
fluctuations are likewise taken to the profit and loss account. A smal
part of the financial assets, EUR 2 billion, is held-to-maturity and is
valued at amortised cost.

Due to customers

Due to customers grew by 5% to EUR 186.4 (177.5) billion in the year
under review. Due to customers comprise savings, repurchase
contracts and other due to customers. The repurchase contracts
amounted to EUR 5.4 (3.9) billion and the other due to customers to
EUR 94.8 (95.3) billion.

Savings

Savings grew by 7.9 billion in 2005 to EUR 86.2 (78.3) billion, a rise of
10%. Most of the increase was realised in Internet savings, which grew
by EUR 7 billion. As a result, the share of Internet savings in total savings
rose from 43% to 46%. This was at the expense of the traditional savings
accounts and telesavings. The relative share of fixed-term deposits
increased from 7% to 10%, This came as some surprise, since holders of
salary savings accounts in the Netherlands were granted free access to a
large part of their salary savings. Against expectations, however, a large
number of account holders did not avail themselves of this opportunity
for tax reasons.

Other financial assets at year-end 2005
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Debt securities

At the end of 2005, a total amount of EUR 135.3 (109.5) billion in debt
instruments was on the balance sheet, almost half of which was classed
as short-term debt paper. In the year under review, more than EUR 20
billion in long-term debt securities was issued to finance the growth in
lending.

Subordinated debt

At the end of 2005, the total amount of subordinated debt outstanding

was EUR 2.6 (2.1) billion. To strengthen Tier Il capital, a EUR 1 billion sub-
ordinated loan was placed on a private basis with institutional investors

in 2005. Also, Trust Preferred Securities | to an amount of EUR 650 million
were redeeimed. The Trust Preferred Securities I, which do not qualify as

equity, are reported as subordinated debt on the balance sheet.

Equity

The equity at year-end 2005 were EUR 26.3 (23.0) billion. Equity com-
prise equity of Rabobank Nederland and local Rabobanks, Member
Certificates, Trust Preferred Securities -V and minority interests.

In 2005, EUR 2.0 billion in new Member Certificates was placed with
members. As on earlier occasions, there was great interest in the new
capital and the issue was oversubscribed. At the end of 2005, 59% of
equity consisted of equity of Rabobank Nederland and local Rabobanks
(mainly retained earnings), 22% of Member Certificates, 8% of Trust
Preferred Securities and 11% of minority interests.

Equity at year-end 2005
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Notes to the prof]
and 10ss account

Rabobank Group’s net profit was 16% higher in
2005 at EUR 2,083 million. This growth is partly
due to strict cost control. Income was marginally
higher and the tax burden was lower.

Income up 2%
Total income rose 2% to EUR 9,363 (9,222) million. Commission income

in particular increased sharply in 2005, while other income was lower.

Interest income up 3%

Net interest income was EUR 212 million higher at EUR 6,407 million, an
increase of 3%. This was lower than the growth in lending and savings,
reflecting the significant narrowing of the interest margin under pressure
from increased competition and the flattening of the vield curve.

Fees and commission up 18%

Total net fees and commission income in 2005 was EUR 345 million, or
18%, higher at EUR 2,217 million. This increase was due mainly to higher
commission income from asset management and other commission
income, which includes fees and commission from Global Financial
Markets.

Other income down 36%

Other income was down 36% at EUR 739 (1,155) million. This item
includes the insurance business and trading results, the bank’s share in
the results of associates and the results on financial assets available-for-
sale. The results of insurance business and of associates were both
excellent. Income was down as a result of fewer exits at Gilde funds
(after the highly successful year 2004) but also because fewer funds
were consolidated than in 2004. The trading results, the results on
available-for-sale financial assets and a large proportion of the other
income are relatively volatile, because these items are heavily influenced
by exchange-rate and interest-rate movements. Losses of other income
were largely attributable to swaptions arranged by Rabobank with its
pension fund. This swaption hedged the pension funds against the
effect of iower interest rates, while Rabobank decreased its interest

rate risk on higher interest rates. Because interest rates fell during the
subsequent period, this resulted in year-end losses for Rabobank but in
higher investment returns for the pension fund. Rabobank benefits from
this, since in the defined benefit plan, its contribution depends on the
investment returns achieved. However, higher returns than expected do
not immediately translate into a more favourable pension pramium
trend, whereas the losses on the swaption were charged directly to the
result for 2005.
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Expenses fractionally lower

Total expenses decreased fractionally in 2005, down EUR 13 million to
EUR 6,164 million, due entirely to lower other administrative expenses.
Staff costs and depreciation were slightly higher.

Staff costs 5% higher

Staff costs were up 5% at EUR 3,880 (3,683) million, mainly reflecting
higher pension expenses. Wages and salaries were 3% higher. The number
of FTEs decreased in 2005 by 4,636 to 45,580, largely as a consequence
of the sale of Interpolis to Eureko. Adjusted for this effect, there was an
increase of just over 1%, reflecting the growth in the bank’s international
operations.

Other administrative expenses 10% lower

Other administrative expenses, which include 1T costs, rents and the like,
were 10% lower, down EUR 220 million at EUR 1,953 million. This decrease
reflects in part the sale of equity investments by Gilde funds, which are
therefore no longer included in the consolidation. Operation Service also
yielded the first cost savings. An additional provision of EUR 85 million
was formed for Operation Service in 2005, on top of the provision of
EUR 120 million formed in 2004.

Value adjustments 8% higher

Value adjustments, which comprise loan losses and losses on financial
assets, were 8% higher at EUR 517 million, equivalent to 25 basis points
of the average risk-weighted items (unchanged compared with 2004).

Risk-related costs in 2005 were incurred largely as a result of an increase
by the international activities of the wholesale and international retail
business unit, where value adjustments were higher last year as a result
of the formation of several new provisions for activities in other countries,
Value adjustments for the Dutch retail banking business were lower,
reflecting the very low risk profile of the loan portfolio, which consists
predominantly of personal lending.

Operating profit before taxation up 5%
Operating profit before tax rose 5% in 2005 to EUR 2,682 (2,566) million.

Lower taxes

Taxation in 2005 amounted to EUR 599 (773) million, equivalent to an
effective tax rate of 22.3% (30.1%). The lower tax burden was due chiefly
to the lower rate of Dutch corporation tax and incidental tax income.

Net profit up 16%

Net profit in 2005 turned out 16% higher at EUR 2,083 (1,793) million,
After the deduction of minority interests and payment of the fee to
holders of Rabobank Member Certificates and Trust Preferred Securities,
in so far as these are counted as equity, the remaining sum of EUR 1,577
(1,392) million has been appropriated to equity.




Auditors repor

We have audited the consclidated balance sheet, consolidated profit
and loss account, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement for the year 2005, hereinafter referred
to as the annual figures, of Rabobank Group !, as set out on pages 80 to
86 of this report. These annual figures have been derived from the
financial statements of Rabobank Group for the year 2005, which were
audited by us and on which we issued an unqgualified auditors' report
on 8 March 2006. These annual figures are the responsibility of the
Executive Board of Rabobank Group. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion thereon based on our audit.

We have established that the annual figures are in accordance with the
financial statements from which they have been derived.

For a better understanding of Rabobank Group's financial position and
results and of the scope of our audit, the annua! figures should be read
in conjunction with the full financial staternents from which they have

been derived and our auditors'report issued thereon.

Utrecht, 8 March 2006

Ernst & Young Accountants

1) Rabobank Group consists of Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A. in
Amsterdam, its affiliated Rabobanks, Robeco Group N.V. in Rotterdar, De Lage Landen
International BY. in Eindhaven, Schretlen & Co NV, in Amsterdam, FGH Bank Nv. in Utrecht,
Rabohypotheekbank NV, in Amsterdam, Onderlinge Waarborgmaatschappij Rabobanken B.A.
in Amsterdam and their group companies.
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Jan Smits (JW.M)
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Gerda Verpoorte (G.P)
Niek Vogelaar (N.)
Guido Vos (G.J)
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Fred Weenig (F)

Alfons de Weerdt (AL)
Rolf Westmijse (R.)
Pieter Wetselaar (P)
Ruurd Weulen Kranenberg (R)

Hans van Zanten (J))




Directors and management of Group entities’

ACCBank plc

Harry de Roo (JLH.), Chairman
Colm Darling (C)

Padraic O'Connor (P)

Hidzer Kiewiet de Jonge (H.)

Alex
René Frijters (RJ.A), Chairman

De Lage Landen International BV
Karel Schellens (CACM), Chairman
Gerard van Kaathoven (G.JCM)

Ronald Slaats (RAM.)

Rolf Westmijse (R)

FGH Bank

Peter Keur (PC), Chairman
Frans Overdijk (FB.)

* As of 1 March 2006

Obvion NV

Roy van Diem (R), Chairman
John Smulders (LLA)

Robeco Groep NV
George Méller (GA), Chairman
Leni Boeren (LM.T)

Sander van Eijkern (S.)
Constant Korthout (CT.L)

Niek Molenaar (N.F)

Schretien & Co NV

Harold Knebel (HAJM.), Chairman
Bert Wenker (G.JM)

Gerbert Mos (G.A)

Sylvia Bal-Roose (S)




ossary of terms

Basis point sensitivity (BPS)
The absolute loss in the market value of equity from a parallel upward
shift of the interest rate curve by 1 basis point.

BIS ratio

The ratio reflecting the health (solvency) of a bank. The higher the figure,
the more solid the position of the bank. The ratio is calculated as the
percentage of qualifying capital (Tier | and Tier II) to the risk-weighted
assets. The minimum BIS ratio required by external supervisory
authorities is 8.0.

Economic capital

The internal capital requirement for absorbing unexpected losses based
on a given confidence level and a given time frame (1 year). Rabobank
uses a confidence level of 99.99%, corresponding to the Triple A rating
awarded to the Bank.

Efficiency ratio
Operating expenses as a percentage of income. This ratio reflects banking
productivity. The fower the percentage, the higher the efficiency.

Equity at Risk
The measure of long-term interest rate risk based on the percentage
change in the market value of reserves as a result of a 1% change in

the interest rate.

Hedge accounting

Recognising hedge items (positions of which the associated risk is
hedged by means of hedge transactions) and hedge instruments
according to the same accounting policies in the profit and loss account,
which creates matching.

Hedge instrument
Financial instrument use for hedging a hedge item’s financial risk.

Income at Risk

This is the maximum amount of interest income lost (based on a
confidence level of §7.5%) in the next twelve months as a result of
the highest possible increase in the money market and capital market
interest rate.

Joint venture
Collabarative venture between two or more legally independent
companies.

Leasing

An agreement under which the owner of an asset makes that asset
available to another party for a certain period in exchange for a set
lease charge.

Qualifying capital

The sum of core capital (Tier I) and supplementary capital (Tier {i). Tier i
capital consists of the revaluation reserves, part of the subordinated
loans less the deductible items specified by the Dutch Central Bank.

Return on equity
Profit for the year as a percentage of equity at the end of the previous
year.

Risk Adjusted Return on Capital (RAROC)

Net profit for the year divided by economic capital.




Risk-weighted assets

All on-balance-sheet and off-balance-sheet items that are measured
taking into account the risk weightings specified by the supervisory
authority.

Securitisation
Restructuring of loans in the form of tradable securities.

Tier | capital
Tier I/core capital of Rabobank Group consists of Member Certificates,
Trust Preferred Securities, other reserves and part of third-party interests.

Tier | ratio
The ratio of core capital to risk-weighted assets. The minimum Tier | ratio
required by external supervisory authorities is 4.0.

Triple A rating

The Triple A rating is the highest credit rating awarded by rating agencies.
ATriple A rating reflects the highest possible creditworthiness and
therefore the lowest possible risk that the company will go bankrupt.

Value at Risk

The measure of market risk on the trading portfolio, which based on
historical data reflects the highest possible loss that could be suffered
by Rabobank Group in one day, assuming a probability of 97.5%.

Vendor finance
Financing products (including leasing) designed to support sales
offered via the distribution channels of a manufacturer or distributor

of capital assets.
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Rabobank

Rabobank Group is a full-range financial
services provider founded on cooperative
principles. The Group is comprised of 248
independent local Rabobanks in the
Netherlands, the central organisation
Rabobank Nederland and a large number of
specialised subsidiaries. The Group’s core
objective is to generate the highest possible
customer value, To this end, the organisation
offers its clients all the financial products
and services they may want. Rabobank
Group provides services to more than half
of the Dutch population (16 million) and
Dutch companies. In the Netherlands,
Rabobank has dominant market positions
in almost all financial services areas: home
mortgages, savings, small and medium-
sized businesses, and the food & agri sector.
It has also significantly strengthened its
position in the large corporate market,
Throughout the world, Rabobank Group,
through Rabobank International, focuses
primary on financing the international food
& agri business, a niche market in which it
has a leading position. Rabobank Group has
been awarded the highest credit rating
(Triple A), and has 267 offices in 38 countries
outside the Netherlands.

www.rabobankgroep.nl

) Alex

beleggersbank

Alex has evolved from sophisticated trading
systems to a digital investment bank. Alex
Beleggersbank started fife in 1999 and leads
the market in the field of online investing.
Itis also the largest source of orders from
private individuals on both the Euronext
stock exchange and the Euronext derivatives
exchange.

Alex aims to provide the best possible
services to a growing number of investors
who prefer to invest independently in line
with their own individual objectives.

In addition, Alex offers a whole range of
support and educational services, including
professional analyses, news reports, invest-
ment specialists, seminars and the Alex
Academy training institution.

www.alexnl

de [age [anden @

partners in finance

De Lage Landen International B.V. offers
high-quality asset financing products on the
international market. It has its headquarters in
Eindhoven, the Netherlands, and has branches
and joint ventures in more than 25 countries
in Europe, North and South America,
Southeast Asia, Australia and New Zealand.

It is an international specialist in asset financing
and Vendor Finance, focusing on the Food &
Agri, Healthcare, Office Equipment, Information
Technology, Telecommunication, Trucks and
Trailers, Public Finance and Materials Handling
& Construction Equipment sectors.

In the Netherlands, it offers a broad range of
leasing and trade financing products, including
equipment lease, ICT lease, vendor lease and
car lease.

www.delagelanden.com




SCHRETLEN & CO @x

VERMOGENSMANAGEMENT

Schretlen & Co is the asset management
specialist within Rabobank Group. Its mission

is to support high net-worth individuals in
achieving their ambitions in terms of managing
their asset. Schretlen & Co focuses in particular
on (very) high net-worth individuals and
medium-sized institutional investors. Its core
activities are asset management and advice,
combined with asset planning.

its close contacts and collaboration with local
Rabobanks have resulted in activities including
Rabobank Beheerd Beleggen and Rabobank
Effecten Advies Desk, both of which are joint
ventures between Schretlen& Co and local
Rabcobanks in the field of securities services.

In addition to its head office in Amsterdam,
Schretlen & Co has branches in Apeldoorn,
Heerenveen, Maastricht, Rotterdam and Waalre.

www.schretlen.com
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9 million clients
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Rabobank Group

FGHbank

DE VASTGOEDBANK

FGH Bank is specialised in commercial real
estate financing. The real estate bank has
expert knowledge of financing and investment,
valuations, technical property analyses, tax
and legal matters, and risk management,
Moreover, the bank's network, which extends
across the whole country, with account
managers maintaining personal contact with
clients, allows it to follow regional market
developments at close hand. Its clients are
mainly project developers and institutional
and private investors in commercial real estate,
from small and medium-sized enterprises to
large companies and listed real estate funds.

www.fghbanknl

N

obvion

Obvion is a provider of mortgages and simple
financial products, operating through indepen-
dent agents. The company is a joint venture
between Rabobank Group and Algemeen
Burgerlijk Pensioenfonds (the Dutch civil
service pension fund). Obvion's strategy is
founded on six core pillars: independence,
speed and flexibility, teamwork, personal
attention, reliability and professional know-
ledge. In practice, these are reflected in fast
and reliable service, expertise and the aim of
offering a complete and competitive range

of products. Obvion has its headquarter in
Heerlen, the Netherlands.

www.cbvion.nl

9% rRoBECO

Founded in 1929, Robeco is a thoroughbred
asset manager. Worldwide, Robeco provides
investment products and services to approxi-
mately 700 institutional clients and some 1.5
million private individuals. The services to
private individuals are provided both through
banks and other distribution partners, and
through direct channels. Robeco's product
range includes fixed-interest and equity
investments, as well as alternative investments,
In addition to its home markets in the Benelux
and the US, Robeco also has branch offices in
France, Switzerland, Germany, Spain, the
Middle East and Japan. Assets managed
amounted to some EUR 130 billion at the end
of 2005. Robeco has over 1,600 employees
worldwide, spread over nine countries,

www.robeco.com
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This publication, the financial statements
and the separate edition ‘Rabobank Group
Annual Report 2005’ together form the
annual report, the financial statements
and other information of the Codperatieve
Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A.




Genera! information

Rabobank Group (‘Rabobank’) is a cooperative organisation whose
core comprises 248 local Rabobanks in the Netherlands. Rabobank
comprises the local cooperative Rabobanks in the Netherfands, the
central organisation Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank
B.A. (Rabobank Nederland) and a number of specialised subsidiaries.
Rabobank provides services in the farm of public sector lending,
corporate and investment banking, and leasing in many countries
throughout the world. Rabobank operates in 38 countries and employs
51,000 people.

Rabobank Nederland is a cooperative whose capital is divided into
shares. It is largely the product of a merger on 1 December 1972 of the
two largest Dutch cooperative entities at the time. Rabobank Nederland
has its registered office in Amsterdam and is established under Dutch
law for an indefinite period. Rabobank Nederland is registered at the
Trade Registry of the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce under
number 30046259.

Membership of Rabobank Nederland is open to cooperative banks whose
Articles of Association have been approved by Rabobank Nederland.

The activities of Rabobank Nederland can be roughly divided into two
categories. First, its role as central bank for the local Rabobanks in which
role it encourages the establishment, continuation and development

of cooperative banks, and for its members in which role it concludes
agreements with them, negotiates their rights and undertakes obligations
on their behalf insofar as these obligations have the same consequences
for all members. Second, Rabobank Nederland's own banking activities,
which supplement and are independent of the activities of the local
Rabobanks.

The majority of the members of the local Rabobanks are clients.
At 31 December 2005, the local Rabobanks had approximately
1,550,000 members.

Address:
Croeselaan 18
PO. Box 17100
3500 HG Utrecht
The Netherlands

Internet:
www.rabobank.com
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Consolidated balance sheet

[

)

At 31 December

2005 2004

In millions of euros Notes

Assets o )
Cash and cash equivalents 7 2,923 7,269
Due from other banks 8 53,065 41,050
Trading financial assets 9 39,011 32,646
Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 10 14,871 32,498
Derivative financial instruments M 24,135 3203_5
Loans to customers 12 304,451 273,946
-A;ailable-for-sale financial assets 13 51,221 48,320
I_-ield-to-maturity financial assets 14 1,908 2,207
Investments in associates 15 2,971 714
(_Soodwill and other intangible assets 16 252 204
Property and equipment 17 3,115 3313
Investment properties 18 768 1,178
Deferred tax assets 29 1,236 1,076
Other assets 19 6,307 7,118

Total assets

506,234 - 483574




)

At 31 December

In millions of euros Notes 2005 2004
Liabilities
Due to other banks 20 109,749 96,347
Due to other banks at fair value through profit and loss 21 239 97
Due to customers 22 186,427 177471
Due to customers at fair value through profit and loss 23 32 11
Debt securities in issue 24 115,992 97,520
Debt securities in issue at fair value through profit and loss 25 19,333 11,940
Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities 1 28,081 39171
Other debts 26 7,346 7,650
Insurance liabilities 3 17,882
Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 27 7,341 7,090
Provisions 28 931 1,081
Deferred tax liabilities 29 329 223
Employee benefits 30 1,437 1,958
Subordinated debt 31 2,645 2129
Total liabilities 479,885 460,570
Equity
Equity of Rabobank Nederland and local Rabobanks 33 15,450 14,018
Rabobank Member Certificates issued by group companies 34 5811 3,840
21,261 17,858
Trust Preferred Securities Il to Vl issued by group companies 35 2,092 1,877
Minority interests 36 2,996 3,269
Total equity 26,349 23,004
Total equity and liabilities 506,234 483,574




Consolidated profit and loss account

C

]

For the year ended 31 December

2004

in millions of euros Notes 2005

Interest income 37 22,101 18,580
Interest expense 37 15,694 12,385
Interest 37 6,407 6,195
Fee and commission income 38 2,639 2,294
Fee and commission expense 38 422 422
Fees and commission 38 2,217 1,872
Income from associates 39 226 99
Trading income 40 373 333
Net income from non-trading financial assets and liabilities

at fair value through profit and loss 41 20 (90)
Gains on available-for-sale financial assets 13 38 27
Income from Interpolis insurance business 42 353 214
Other 43 71 572
Income 9,363 9,222
Staff costs 44 3,880 3683
Other administrative expenses 45 1,953 2,173
Depreciation and amortisation 46 331 321
Operating expenses 6,164 6,177
Value adjustments 47 517 479
Operating profit before taxation 2,682 2,566
Taxation 48 599 773
Net profit for the year 2,083 1,793




In millions of euros Notes 2005 2004
Of which attributable to Rabobank Nederland and local Rabobanks 33 1,577 1,392
Of which attributable to holders of Rabobank Member Certificates 34 21 217
Of which attributable to Trust Preferred Securities it to VI 35 11 20
Of which attributable to minority interests 36 184 164
Net profit for the year 2,083 1,793

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Equity of

Rabobank Nederland Rabobank Member Trust Preferred Total
In millions of euros and local Rabobanks Certificates Securities Hl to VI~ Minority interests equity
At 1 January 2004 12,501 3,853 - 3,325 19,679
Arising in the period:
Available-for-sale financial assets -
net fair value changes, after taxation 376 - - - 376
Currency translation differences {57) - - - (57)
Available-for-sale financial assets -
reclassified to net profit for the year,
after taxation (109) - - - (109)
Total income and expense for the
year recognised directly in equity 210 - - - 210
Net profit for the year 1,392 217 20 164 1,793
Total income and expense 1,602 217 20 164 2,003
Issue of Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities - (13) 1,877 - 1,864
Payment on Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities - (217) (20) - (237)
Other ] (85) - - (220) (305)
At 31 December 2004 14,018 3,840 1,877 3,269 23,004




Equity of

Rabobank Nederland Rabobank Member Trust Preferred Total
In millions of euros and local Rabobanks Certificates Securities lll toVI  Minority interests equity
At 1 January 2005 14,018 3,840 1,877 3,269 23,004
Arising in the period:
Available-for-sale financial assets -
net fair value changes, after taxation (179) - - - (179)
Available-for-sale financial assets -
reclassified to net profit for the year,
after taxation (114) - - - (114)
Currency translation differences 22 - 215 - 237
Cash flow hedges - net fair value
gains, after taxation 1 - - - 1
Total income and expense for the
year recognised directly in equity (270) - 215 - (55)
Net profit for the year 1,577 211 1M1 184 2,083
Total income and expense 1,307 211 326 184 2,028
Issue of Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities - 1,971 - - 1,971
Payment on Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities - (2171) (111) - (322)
Other 125 - - (457) (332)
At 31 December 2005 15,450 5811 2,092 2,996 26,349




Consolidated cash flow statement

— ]

For the year ended 31 December

In millions of euros 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating profit before taxation 2,682 2,566
Adjusted for: -
Non-cash items recognised in profit and loss and other adjustments

Depreciation and amortisation 343 330
Value adjustments 517 479
Change in insurance liabilities (excluding Interpolis) 13 27
Result on sale of property and equipment (12) 9
Share of (profit) of associates and result on sale of subsidiary i (218) (65)
Fair value gains /losses on investment properties . 1 (18)

Fair value gains /losses on available-for-sale financial assets reclassified

to the income statement (20) 90

Net gains /losses on trading financial assets (373) (333)

Net income from non-trading financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss (38) (27)

Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets

Due from other banks 1,387 14,054
Trading financial assets (5,741) 5593
Derivative financial instruments 7,900 (4,555)

Net (increase)/decrease in non-trading financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss 25,219 (18,534)
Loans to customers (30,337) (27.044)

Net increase/(decrease) in liabilities relating to operating activities

Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities (11,090) 5596
Due to customers 8,956 17,541
Debt securities in issue 18,472 6,070
Other debts o (304) (1,781)
Income tax paid (634) (680)
Other changes (mainly attributable to disposal of Interpolis) (18,861) 7,526
Net cash flow from operating activities (2,138) 6,826




n}

For the year ended 31 December

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash and cash equivalents acquired 21 (206)
Disposal of subsidiaries net of cash and cash equivalents disposed 2 4
Acquisition of property and equipment and investment properties (456) (568)
Income from sale of property and equipment 318 644
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity financial assets (14,885) (19485)
Income from sale and repayment of available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-

maturity financial assets 10,286 8,848
Net cash flow from investing activities (4,756) (10,763)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of Rabobank Member Certificates 2,000 -
Proceeds from issue of Trust Preferred Securities - 1,879
Proceeds from issue of subordinated debt instruments 1,000 1,927
Payment on Rabobank Member Certificates and Trust Preferred Securities 322 237
Repayment of subordinated debt (774) (15)
Net cash flow from financing activities 2,548 4,028
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,346) 91
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,269 7178
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,923 7,269
The purchase of the interest in Eureko and the sale of the interest in Interpolis did not generate any cash flows.

The cash flows from interest are included in the net cash flow from operating activities.

The interest income and expense amounted:

Interest income 22,101 18,580
Interest expense 15,694 12,385




Notes to the
consolidated financia
statements

This is the first official publication of the consolidated financial statements prepared under international Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) in accordance with European Union regulations. The comparative figures have been restated accordingly.

1 Basis of consolidation

Rabobank Group (Rabobank’) comprises the local Rabobanks ((Members) in the Netherlands, the central cooperative
Rabobank Nederland and other specialised subsidiaries. Together they form Rabobank Group and Rabobank Nederland,
which advises the Members and assists them in the provision of their services. Rabobank Nederland also advises the
Members on behalf of De Nederlandsche Bank (the Dutch central bank). Rabobank's cooperative structure has several
executive levels, each with its own duties and responsibilities.

In [FRS terms, Rabobank Nederland exercises control over the local Rabobanks.

The consolidated financial statements of Rabobank include the financial information of Rabobank Nederland and that of

the Members and the other group companies.

2 Accounting policies

The main accounting policies used in preparing these consclidated financial statements are explained below.

2.1 General

The consolidated financial statements of Rabobank have been prepared in accordance with International Financia!
Reporting Standards ('IFRS) as approved by the European Union.

Rabobank adopted IFRS with effect from 1 January 2005 and has therefore restated its figures already reported for 2004 to
bring them into line with IFRS. The effect of the adaption of the standards is explained in note 3, 'Effect of changes in
accounting policies due to first-time adoption of IFRS!

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale financial
assets, trading financial assets and liabilities, and derivative contracts. These items are recognised at fair value.

Unless otherwise stated, all amounts in these consolidated financial statements are in millions.

2.1.1 Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires managernent to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities and the reporting of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, as well as the amounts reported for income and expenses during the reporting period.
Although management based their estimates on the most careful assessment of the current circumstances and activities,

the actual results might deviate from these estimates.




2.2 Group financial statements

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries and other entities (including special purpose entities) over which Rabobank exercises control, directly or
indirectly, are consolidated. The assets, liabilities and results of these entities are consolidated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which Rabobank obtains control, and cease to be consolidated on the
date that this control ends. All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
business units of Rabobank are eliminated as part of the consolidation.

2.2.2 Joint ventures

The interests of Rabobank in entities where control is shared are consolidated proportionally. With this method, Rabobank
includes its share of the income and expenses, assets and liabilities, and cash flows of the various joint ventures in the
relevant items of its financial statements,

2.2.3 Investments in associates

[nvestrents in associates are recognised in accordance with the equity method. With this method, Rabobank’s share of
the profits and losses of an associate (after the acquisition) is recognised in profit and loss, and its share of the changes in
reserves after the acquisition is recognised in reserves. The cumulative changes after acquisition are adjustments to the
cost of the investment,

Associates are entities in which Rabobank holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights and over which Rabobank has
significant influence but does not exercise control. Unrealised gains on transactions between Rabobank and its associates
are eliminated in proportion to the size of Rabaobank’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction indicates that an impairment loss should be recognised on the asset transferred. Investments by Rabobank
in associates include the goodwill acquired. If Rabobank’s share in the losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, Rabobank will not recognise any more tosses of the associate unless Rabobank has given undertakings or
made payments on behalf of this associate.

23 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

23.1 General

Derivative financial instruments generally mean foreign currency contracts, currency and interest rate futures, forward rate
agreements, currency and interest rate swaps, and currency and interest rate options (written as well as acquired).
Derivative financial instruments might be traded on an exchange or as over- the-counter (OTC) instruments between
Rabobank and a client. All derivative financial instruments are recognised at inception on the balance sheet at cost and
subsequently revalued to fair value. The fair value is determined using listed market prices, prices offered by traders,
cash-flow discounting models and option valuation models based on current market prices and contracted prices for the
underlying instruments, as well as the time value of money, vield curves and the volatility of the underlying assets and
liabilities. All derivative financial instruments are included under assets if their fair value is positive and under liabilities if
their fair value is negative.

Derivative financial instruments that are embedded in other financial instruments are treated separately if their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the underlying derivative contract and this contract is not classified at fair
value through profit and loss.




2.3.2 Instruments not used for hedging
Realised and unrealised gains and losses on derivative financial instruments classified by Rabobank as held-for-trading are

recognised under ‘Trading income’

2.3.3 Hedging instruments

Rabobank also uses derivative financial instruments as part of balance sheet control to manage its interest rate risks, credit

risks and foreign currency risks.

On the date of concluding a derivative contract, Rabobank can designate certain derivative financial instruments as (1) a

hedge of the fair value of an asset or liability on the balance sheet (fair value hedge), as (2) a hedge of future cash flows

attributable to an asset or liability on the balance sheet, an expected transaction or a non-current liability (cash flow

hedge), or as (3) a hedge of a net-investment in a foreign entity (net investment hedge). Derivative financial instruments

can be gualified as hedging instruments if certain criteria are met.

These criteria include:

- Preparation of formal documentation of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the objective of the hedge, the
hedging strategy and the hedge relationship before applying hedge accounting;

- The hedge is expected to be highly effective (in a range of 80% to 125%) in offsetting changes in the hedged iter's fair
value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risks during the entire reporting period; and

- The hedge is continuously highly effective from inception onwards.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated as fair value hedges and are highly effective
in relation to the hedged risks are recognised in profit and loss, together with the corresponding changes in the fair value
of the assets or liabilities hedged against the risks in question.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting (according to the fair value hedge model), any adjustment
to the carrying amount of a hedged interest-bearing financial instrument is amortised through profit and loss until the end
of the hedged period. Any adjustrent to the carrying amount of a hedged equity instrument is recognised under ‘Profits
and losses not disclosed in the profit and loss account’until disposal of the equity instrument.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and that
are highly effective in relation to the hedged risks are recognised in the hedging reserve included under equity (see note
11). The non-effective part of the changes in the fair values of the derivative financial instruments are recognised in profit
and loss. If the forecast transaction or non-current liability results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, any deferred
gain or loss included in equity are restated to the initial carrying amount (cost) of the asset or liability. In all other cases,
deferred amounts included in equity are taken te the profit and loss account and are classified as income or expenses in
the pericds in which the hedged non-current liability or forecast transaction had an effect on profit and loss.

Certain derivative contracts, although they are effective economic hedges in relation to the managed risk positions taken
by Rabobank, do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific IFRS rules. These contracts are therefore treated as
derivative trading financial instruments, with the fair value of gains and losses being reported under ‘Trading income’
Rabobank hedges the credit risks of loan portfolios with economic hedges based on credit default swaps and does not
apply hedge accounting to these instruments. However, if Rabobank recognises an impairment loss on a loan hedged with
this type of economic hedge, the gain on the credit default swap is set off against expenses/gains related to credit losses.
The fair value of derivative financial instruments held for trading and hedging purposes is disclosed in note 11, 'Derivative

financial instruments and other trade liabilities’




24  Trade liabilities

Trade liabilities are mainly negative fair values of derivative financial instruments and delivery obligations arising on short
selling of securities. Securities are sold short to realise gains from short-term price fluctuations. The securities needed to
settle the short selling are acquired through securities leasing or sale and repurchase contracts. Securities sold short are
recognised at fair value at the balance sheet date.

Trade liabilities also include certain financial liabilities that Rabobank does not intend to sell, but which it designated as
held for trading on initial recognition and recognised at fair value. Changes in the fair value of these financial liabilities are
recognised in profit and loss for the period in which they arise.

2.5 Trading financial assets

Trading financial assets are acquired to realise gains from short-term fluctuations in the prices or margins of traders, or form
part of a portfolio that regularly generates short-term gains. These assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently
revalued to fair value based on quoted bid prices. Any realised and unrealised gains and losses are included under Trading
income’ Interest earned on trading financial assets is recognised as interest income. Dividends received on trading financial
assets is recognised as dividend income.

All purchases and sales of trading financial assets that have to be delivered within a period prescribed by regulations or
market convention are recognised at the transaction date. Other trading transactions are recognised as derivative financial
instruments until the date of settlement.

2.6 Non-trading financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Rabobank has opted to classify financial instruments not acquired or entered into for realising gains from short-term
fluctuations in traders’ prices or margins at fair value through profit and loss. These financial assets are carried at fair value.
Interest earned on assets with this classification is recognised as interest income and interest due on liabilities with this
classification is recognised as interest expense. Dividends received on the financial assets are included under dividend
income. Any other realised and unrealised gains and losses on revaluation of these financial instruments to fair value are
included under ‘Net income from non-trading financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss’

2.7 Available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the appropriate classification of a financial asset on its date of acquisition.

Financial assets that are intended to be held indefinitely or sold for liquidity purposes or in response to changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or share prices are classified as available for sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at costs (which includes transaction costs). These assets are
subsequently revalued to fair value based on quoted bid prices or values derived from cash flow maodels. The fair values
of unlisted equity instruments are estimated based on appropriate price/earnings ratios, adjusted to reflect the specific
circumstances of the respective issuers. Any unrealised gains and losses from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in equity unless they relate to amortised interest. If such financial assets are disposed of or
suffer impairment losses, the adjustments to fair value are recognised in profit and loss as gains or losses on available-for-
sale financial assets.

An impairment loss is recognised on a financial asset if its carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an instrument carried at fair value is the present value of the expected future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of interest on a comparable financial asset.

If the fair value of securities cannot be reliably measured, they are carried at cost.




All purchases and sales made in accordance with standard market conventions for available-for-sale financiai assets are
recognised at the transaction date. All other purchases and sales are recognised as forward derivative contracts until their

dates of settlement,

2.8 Held-to-maturity financial assets

Financial assets with fixed terms are classified as held-to-maturity financial assets, provided management intends to keep
them for their full terms and is in a position to do so. Management determines the appropriate classification for its
investments on their acquisition dates.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost based on the effective interest method, net of

provisions for impairment losses as necessary.

Interest earned on held-to-maturity financial assets is recognised as interest income.

All purchases and sales made in accordance with standard market conventions for held-to-maturity financial assets are
recognised at the date of settlement. All other purchases and sales are recognised as forward derivative contracts until

their dates of settlement.

2.9 Repurchase and reverse repurchase contracts

Financial assets that are sold subject to related sale and repurchase contracts are included in the financial statements under
“Trading financial assets’ and ‘Available-for-sale financial assets. The liability 1o the counterparty is included under ‘Due to
other banks'and 'Due to customers' depending on the application.

Financial assets acquired under reverse sale and reverse repurchase contracts are recognised as:

- Due from other banks, or

- Loans to customers,

depending on the application. The difference between the selling and repurchasing price is recognised as interest income
or expense over the term of the agreement, based on the effective interest method,

2,10 Securitisations and other derecognition constructions

Rabobank securitises, sells and carries various financial assets that it sometimes sells to special purpose entities, which then

issue securities to investors. Rabobank has the option of retaining an interest in sold securitised financial assets in the form

of subordinated interest-only strips, subordinated securities, spread accounts, servicing rights, and guarantees, put options

and call options, and other constructions.

A financial asset (or a portion of a financial asset) is derecognised if:

- the rights to the cash flows from the asset expire;

- the rights to the cash flows from the asset and a substantial portion of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
transferred;

- a commitment to transfer the cash flows from the asset is presumed and a substantial portion of the risks and benefits
are transferred;

- not all the risks and benefits are retained or transferred; however control over the asset is transferred.

If Rabobank retains control over the asset but does not retain a substantial portion of the rights and benefits, the asset is

recognised in proportion to the continuing involvement of Rabobank. A related liability is also recognised to the extent of

Rabobank’s continuing involvernent. The recognition of changes in the value of the liability corresponds to the recognition

of changes in the value of the asset.




If a transaction does not meet the abave conditions for derecognition, it is recognised as a loan for which security has
been provided.

To the extent that the transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition, the transfer does not result in
Rabobank’s contractual rights being separately recognised as derivative financial instruments if recognition of these
instruments and the transferred asset, or the liability arising on the transfer, were to result in double recognition of the
same rights or obligations.

Gains and losses on securitisations and sale transactions depend partly on the previous carrying amounts of the financial
assets involved in the transfer. The carrying amounts of the assets in question are allocated to the sold and retained
interests based on the relative fair values of these interests at the date of sale. Any gains and losses are recognised at the
time of transfer under ‘Trading income’

The fair value of the sold and retained interests is based on quoted market prices or calculated as the present value of the
future expected cash flows, using pricing models that take into account various assumptions such as credit losses, discount
rates, yield curves, payment frequency and other factors.

Rabobank decides for each securitisation transaction whether the securitisation instrument should be included in the con-
solidated financial statements. For this purpose, it performs an assessment by taking a number of factors into consideration,
for example the activities of the SPE, decision-making powers and the allocation of the benefits and risks associated with
the activities of the SPE.

2.11 Netting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount is transferred to the balance sheet if a legal right to set off the
recognised amounts exists and it is intended to settle the expected future cash flows on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.12 Foreign currencies

2.12.1 Foreign entities

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are carried in the currency that best reflects the
economic reality of the underlying events and circumstances that are relevant for the entity (the functional currency).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is the parent company’s functional currency.

Gains, losses and cash flows of foreign entities are translated into the presentation currency of Rabobank at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates, which are approximately equal to the average exchange rates. For balance sheet purposes,
they are translated at the exchange rates on 31 December, Translation differences arising on the net investments in foreign
entities and on loans and other currency instruments designated as hedges of these investments are recognised in equity.
If a foreign entity is sold, any such translation differences are recognised in profit and loss as part of the gain or loss on

the sale.

Goodwill and fair-value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are recognised as assets and liabilities of
the foreign entity and are translated at the closing rate.

2.12.2 Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
date. Translation differences arising on the settlement of such transactions or on the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss, unless they are recognised in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges.




Translation differences on debt securities and other monetary financial assets carried at fair value are included under
foreign exchange gains and losses. Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equity instruments held for
trading are recognised as part of the fair value gains or losses. Translation differences on available-for-sale non-monetary

items are included in the revaluation reserve reported under equity.

2.13 Interest

Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing instruments are recognised in profit and loss according to the
allocation principle, with the effective interest method being applied to the actual purchase price. Interest income includes
coupons relating to fixed-interest financial assets and trading financial assets, as well as the cumulative premiums and
discounts on government treasury securities and other cash equivalent instruments. If any loans suffer impairment losses,
they are written down to their recoverable amounts and the interest income recognised henceforth is based on the
discount rate for calculating the present value of the future cash flows used to determine the recoverable amounts.

2.14 Fees and commission

Income from asset management activities consists mainly of unit trust and fund management commission and administra-
tion fees. Fees are also received for insurance activities relating to pension management and employee healthcare.

Income from asset management and insurance activities is recognised as earned when the services are provided.

Fees and commission are generally recognised according to the allocation principle. Fees and commission received for
negotiating a transaction, or taking part in the negotiations, on behalf of third parties, for example the acquisition of a
portfolio of loans, shares or other securities, or the sale or purchase of companies, are recognised at completion of the

underlying transactions.

2.15 Loans to customers and due from other banks

Loans to customers and due from other banks are not derivative financial instruments with fixed or defined payments, not
listed on active market, apart from such assets that Rabobank classifies as trading, at fair value on initial recognitions with
changes recognised through profit and loss, or as available for sale. These loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost, including transaction costs.

A value adjustment, for {osses on loans, is recognised if there is objective evidence that Rabobank will not be able to collect
all amounts due under the original terms of the contract. The size of the reserve is the difference between the carrying
amount and recoverable amount, which is the present value of the expected cash flows, including amounts recoverable
under guarantees and sureties, discounted at the original effective rate of interest of the loans.

The reserve for loans includes losses if there is objective evidence that losses are attributable to some portions of the loan
portfolio at the balance sheet date. These are estimated based on the historical pattern of losses for each separate portion
and the credit ratings of the borrowers, and taken into account the actual economic conditions under which the borrowers
conduct thelr activities. If a loan is not collectible, it is written off from the related reserve for losses on loans. Any amounts
subsequently collected are included under the item 'Value adjustments’on the profit and loss account.




2.16 Goodwill and other intangible assets

2.16.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is the amount by which the acquisition price paid for a subsidiary or associate exceeds the fair value on the
acquisition date of Rabobank's share of the net assets and the unconditional liabilities of the entity acquired. Goodwill

on acquisitions made on or after 1 January 2004 is recognised on the balance sheet as an intangible asset net of any
impairment losses. Goodwill on the acquisition of a subsidiary made before 1 January 2004 was charged directly to equity.
Goodwill in such case has not been capitalised retrospectively, as allowed under IFRS,

2.16.2 Software development costs

Costs related to the development or maintenance of computer programs are recognised as an expense at the time they
are incurred. Costs directly incurred in connection with identifiable and unique software products over which Rabobank
has controt and that will probably provide economic benefits exceeding the costs for longer than a year are recognised
as intangible assets. Direct costs include the employee expenses of the software development team and an appropriate
portion of the relevant overhead.

Expenditures that improve the performance of computer programs compared with their original specifications are added
to the original cost of the software. Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised on a

straight-line basis over a period not exceeding three years.

2.16.3 Insurance contracts acquired as part of a business combination or portfolio transfer

The fair value (present value of the expected future cash flows) of contractual insurance rights and obligations are capitalised
as intangible assets and amortised over the term of the contract, which is generally between 2 and 5 years. The net asset
undergoes an impairment test each year based on the expected future cash flows from the acquired insurance contracts.
An impairment loss is recognised if the expected future profits do not justify the carrying amount of the asset,

2.16.4 Impairment losses on goodwill and other intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, Rabobank assesses whether there are indications of impairment losses on goodwill and other
intangible assets. If such indications exist, impairment testing is carried out to determine whether the carrying amount of
goodwill and other intangible assets are fully recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount is
greater than the recoverable amount.

2.17 Property and equipment

Equipment (for own use) is recognised at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation.

Property (for own use) represents mainly offices and is also recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Straight-line deprecation is applied to these assets in accordance with the schedule below. Each asset is depreciated to its
residual value over its estimated useful life.

- Land Not depreciated
- Buildings 25-40 years
Equipment, including the following:

- Computer equipment 1-3 years

- Other equipment and vehicles 3-8 years




Property and equipment are regularly submitted to impairment testing. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to the recoverable amount. Gains and
losses on the disposal of items of property and equipment are determined in proportion to their carrying amounts and
taken into account when determining the operating result. Repair and maintenance work is charged to profit and loss at
the time the costs are incurred. Expenditures on extending or increasing the benefits from fand and buildings compared
with their original benefits are capitalised and subsequently depreciated.

Finance expenses incurred during the creation of an asset for use or sale are charged to profit and loss for the period in

which they are incurred.

2.18 Investment properties
Investment properties, mainly office buildings, are held for their long-term rental income and are not used by Rabobank or
its subsidiaries. Investment properties are recognised as long-term investments and included on the balance sheet at cost,

net of accumulated depreciation.

219 Leases

2.19.1 Rabobank as lessee

Leases relating to property and equipment under which substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are transferred
10 Rabobank are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of
the leased assets or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned
between the lease liability and the finance charges, so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. The corresponding lease liabilities are included under other loans, after deduction of finance charges.

The interest components of the finance charges are recognised in profit and loss over the term of the lease. An item of
property and equipment acquired under a lease agreement is depreciated over the useful life of the asset or, if shorter, the
term of the lease.

Leases under which a substantial portion of the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (less any discounts given by the lessor) are charged to profit and
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

2.19.2 Rabobank as lessor

Finance leases

If assets are leased under a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable under
‘Due from other banks' or ‘Loans to customers. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the
receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised as interest income over the term of the

lease using the net investment method, which results in a constant rate of return on the investment.

Operating leases

Assets leased under operating leases are included on the balance sheet under ‘Property and equipment’ The assets are
depreciated over their expected useful lives in line with those of comparable items of property and equipment. Rental
income (less discounts granted to lessees) is recognised under ‘Other income’on a straight-line basis over the term of

the lease.




2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised if Rabobank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If Rabobank expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only if the reimbursement is virtually certain.

2.20.1 Restructuring

Restructuring provisions comprise penalties for premature termination of leases, payments under redundancy schemes
and other costs directly attributable to restructuring programms. The costs are recognised in the period in which a legal
or constructive obligation arises for Rabobank. No provisions are formed in advance for costs relating to continuing
operations of Rabobank.

2.20.2 Leave and long-term employment

Leave entitlements of employees and leave relating to long-term employment are recognised at the time they are granted.
A provision is formed for the estimated obligation for annual leave and leave relating to long-term service of employees,
with the balance sheet date as reference point.

2.20.3 Legal issues

Legal issues provisions are formed for the amounts estimated at the balance sheet date as payable in connection with
ongoing legal proceedings. The provisions include an estimate of legal costs and any payments to be made in the course
of the legal proceedings.

2.21 Employee benefits

Rabobank provides different pension plans based on the local conditions and practices of the countries in which it operates.
In general, the plans are financed by payments to insurance companies or trustee administered funds. The payments are
calculated actuarially at regutar intervals. A defined benefit plan is one that incorporates a promise to pay an amount of
pension benefit, which is usually based on several factors such as age, number of years in service and remuneration.

A defined contribution plan is one under which Rabobank pays fixed contributions to a separate entity (& pension fund)
and acquires no legal or constructive obligation if the fund has insufficient assets to pay all the benefits to employee-
members of the plan in respect of service in current and past periods.

2.21.1 Pension obligations

The defined benefit liability is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, including
adjustments for actuarial gains and losses and past service costs not yet recognised, reduced by the fair value of the fund.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries each year using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash outflows at rates
of interast on government securities with terms approximating those of the related obligations. Most of the pension plans
are average pay plans and the net costs after deduction of employees' contributions are included under ‘Staff costs.
Actuarial gains or losses from adjustments due to actual developments, medified actuarial assumptions and plan changes
are recognised using the corridor method in accordance with IFRS.




2.21.2 Defined contribution plans

Under defined contribution plans, Rabobank pays contributions to publicly or privately managed insured pension plans on
a compulsory, contractual or voluntary basis. Once the contributions have been made, Rabobank has no further payment
obligations. The regular contributions are net period costs for the year in which they are due and are included on this basis

under ‘Staff costs.

2.21.3 Other post-employment obligations

Some Rabobank units provide other post-employment benefits. To become eligible for such benefits, the usual requirement
is that the employee remains in service until retirement and has been with the company a minimum number of years.

The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the years of service, based on a systern similar to that for defined
benefit plans. The obligations are valued each year by independent actuaries.

Under the current collective labour agreement, employees who satisfy the age criteria can opt for early retirerent at 60.

A provision has been formed for employees who will be eligible for early retirement under the plan in the future.

The provision is calculated actuarially, using an average market rate of interest for all employees who satisfy the criteria

and who will probably opt to retire early under the plan.

222 Tax
Tax receivables and payables and deferred tax assets and liabilities are set off if they relate to the same taxation group,
the same taxation authority, a legal right exists to set off tax items and simultaneous treatment or settlement is expected.

Provisions are formed in full for deferred tax liabilities, using the liability method, arising from temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
The main temporary differences relate to the depreciation of property and equipment, the revaluation of certain financial
assets and liabilities, including derivative financial instruments, provisions for pensions and other post-employment benefits,
provisions for losses on loans and other impairment and tax losses, and, in connection with business combinations, the fair
values of the net assets acquired and their tax bases. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available, against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Provisions are formed in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, unless the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The income taxation on profitis calculated in accordance with the tax legislation of the relevant jurisdiction and recognised
in the period in which the profit is realised. The tax effects of the carry-forward of unused tax losses are recognised as an
asset if it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax items relating to the revaluation to fair value of available-for sale financial assets and cash flow hedges that are
charged or taken to equity are subsequently recognised in profit and loss together with the respective gain or loss.




2.23 Due to other banks, due to customers and debt securities in issue

These borrowings are initially recognised at cost, ie. the proceeds received less directly attributable and non-recurring
transaction costs. Loans are subseguently included at amortised cost. Any difference between the net proceeds and the
redemption amount is recognised over the term of the loan, using the effective interest method.

If Rabobank repurchases one of its own debt instruments, it is derecognised, with the difference between the carrying
amount of the liability and the consideration paid being recognised as income.

2.24 Rabobank Member Certificates

These are the Members Certificates issued in 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2005. Since the proceeds of the issue are available to
Rabobank on a perpetual and highly subordinated basis (also subordinate to the Trust Preferred Securities) and since in
principle no distribution is made if the consolidated profit and loss account of Rabobank shows a loss for any financial year,
the issue proceeds, insofar as they have been lent on to Rabobank Nederland, are recognised under ‘Equity'in proportion to
the number of shares held by members and employees. As a result, distributions are accounted for in the profit appropriation.

2.25 Trust Preferred Securities

Trust Preferred Securities, which pay a non-discretionary dividend and are redeemable on a specific date or at the option of
the holder, are classified as financial liabilities and included under ‘Other loans. The dividends on these preferred securities
are recognised in profit and loss as interest expense based on amortised cost using the effective interest methaod.

The remaining Trust Preferred Securities are recognised as equity, as there is no formal obligation to repay the principal or
to pay a dividend.

2.26 Financial guarantees
Financial guarantees are initially measured at cost and subseguently revalued to the amount that Rabobank would
reasonably have to pay at the balance sheet date to settle the liability or transfer it to a third party.

2.27 Bills

Bills represent commitments by Rabobank to redeem bilis issued to clients. Rabobank expects to redeem most bills at
the time the clients receive payment. Bills are recognised as off-balance-sheet transactions and disclosed as contingent
liabilities and obligations.

2,28 Trust activities
Assets and revenue involved in fiduciary activities, together with the related obligation to return the assets to the clients,
are eliminated if Rabobank acts as nominee, trustee or agent.

2.29 Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of Rabobank that engages in providing products or services and is subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of other segments. A segment in which most of the revenue is generated by
sales to external clients, and the revenue, profit or assets account for 10% or more of all segments in aggregate is reported
separately. Rabobank's primary segment reporting format is by business segment; the secondary format is by geographical

segment.




2.30 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid short-term investments held to meet current obligations in cash, rather than for investment
or other purposes. Such obligations have outstanding terms of less than 90 days at inception. Cash equivalents are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.31 Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consclidated financial statements requires Rabobank to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities and the reporting of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, as well as the amounts reported for income and expenses during the reporting period. The actual
results can deviate from the above-mentioned estimates.

3 Effect of changes in accounting policies due to first time adoption of IFRS

The effect of the adoption of IFRS on equity reported at 1 January 2004 can be broken down as follows:

vt —

At 1 January 2004 At 1 January 2004 after

In millions of euros as reported application of IFRS

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7117 7178
Due from other banks 41,919 41,890
Financial assets 84,445 92,878
Derivative financial instruments ) - 27,479
Loans to customers 250,797 248,039
Other assets 19,027 13,299
Total assets 403,305 430763
Liabilities

Due to other banks 82,856 83,117
Due to customers 172,571 159,930
Debt securities in issue 80,695 99,028
Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities - 33,575
Other debts 24420 9,431
Other financial liabilities at fair value - 4,941
Provisions 19,177 19,087
Total liabilities 379,719 409,109
Equity and subordinated debt 23,586 21,654

Total equity and liabilities 403,305 430,763
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The effect of the transition to IFRS on the consolidated profit previously reported for the year ended 31 December 2004:

—

In millions of euros

2004 result as reported

2004 result after first-
time adoption of [FRS

Interest 6,249 6,195
income from securities and associates 482 99
Commission 2112 1,872
Results on financial transactions 312 270
Income from insurance business - 214
Other income 900 572
Total income 10,055 9,222
Staff costs 4,029 3,683
Other administrative expenses 2,335 2,173
Depreciation and amortisation 368 321
Total operating expense 6,732 6,177
Value adjustments 514 479
Qperating profit before tax 2,809 2,566
Income tax expense 957 773
Net profit for the year 1,852 1,793

|-
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The effects of the first-time adoption of the new reporting standards on the presentation of results and equity are

explained briefly below.

Net profit for 2004 under IFRS amounted to 1,793, 59 lower than under Dutch GAAP. Although the change in net profit for the
year was relatively small, the composition of net profit did change, however. In addition to the effect on the composition of

net profit from the changes in accounting policies, there was also an effect from the different treatment of the insurance

business results. The most significant change in the presentation of results due to the first-time adoption of IFRS relates to

interest income and the consolidation of interests.

lgnoring the different treatment of results from the insurance business, interest income under IFRS is higher than under

Dutch GAAP. Most of the difference is attributable to reclassifications. On the other hand, interest income fell due to the fact

that swap results on the investment portfolio are no longer amortised. In accordance with IFRS, these results are recognised

directly in profit and loss.

The interests in the Gilde funds and the majority participating interests of these funds are consolidated under IFRS.

This caused income to increase by 279 and operating expenses by 259.

On 1 January 2004, the date of the transition to the new accounting standards, equity totalled 19.4 billion under IFRS,

compared with 15.2 billion under Dutch GAAP The difference can be accounted for as follows:




in billions of euros

Equity at 1 January 2004 under Dutch GAAP 15.2
Reclassification of the fund for general banking risks as equity 1.7
Other minority interests reclassified as equity 33 B
Adjustment of the valuation of derivative financial instruments (0.9)
Adjustment of the valuation of buildings (0.3)
Adjustment of the valuation of interest-bearing securities - o4
Gain on swap transactions 0.2
Tax effects 0.1
Adjustment to provision for doubtful debts (0.1)
Adjustment to provision for pensions and healthcare 0.2)
incremental cost of lending 0.2)
Other adjustments 0.2
42
Equity at 1 January 2004 under IFRS 19.4
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The effect of the adoption of IFRS on equity reported at 31 December 2004 can be broken down as follows:

—

At 31 December 2004

At 31 December 2004

after application

In millions of euros as reported of IFRS
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,204 7,269
Due from other banks 40,588 41,050
Trading financial assets 111,189 115,671
Derivative financial instruments - 32,035
Loans to customers 276,170 273,946
Other assets 39,938 13,603
Total assets 475,089 483,574
Liabilities

Due to other banks 96,266 96,444
Due to customers 192,123 177,482
Debt securities in issue 92,578 109,460
Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities - 39,171
Other debts 46,761 7,873
Other financial liabilities at fair value - 7,090
Provisions 20,752 20,921
Total liabilities 448,480 458,441
Equity and subordinated debt 26,609 25,133
Total equity and liabilities 475,089 483,574
Explanation:

In comparison with Dutch GAAP, total assets are 2% higher under IFRS at 483.6 billion. The increase is primarily due to the

fact that under IFRS all derivative positions must be included on the balance sheet at market value, while under Dutch

GAAP this only applies to trading positions. In addition, most of the items reclassified are liabilities.
On 371 December 2004, equity amounted to 23.0 billion under IFRS, compared with 18.1 billion under Dutch GAAP.

The difference can be accounted for as follows:




In billions of euros

Equity at 31 December 2004 under Dutch GAAP - 18.1

Difference at 1 January 2004 as accounted for above 4.2

Minority interests 0.1

Net profit for 2004 o B 0.2

Revaluation reserve relating to available-for-sale financial assets 0.5

Other adjustments 0.1 )
4.9

Equity at 31 December 2004 under IFRS 23.0

[




4 Solvency

The main capital ratio requirements set by De Nederlandsche Bank (the Dutch central bank) are derived from the capital
adequacy guidelines of the European Union and the Basel Committee an Banking Supervision. These ratios compare a
bank’s total capital (Tier | and Tier Il) and core capital (Tier ) with the total risk-weighted assets and off-balance-sheet items
and with the market risk exposure of the trading portfolios. The minimum requirements for total capital and core capital as
a percentage of risk-weighted assets are 8% and 4% respectively. The table below shows the capital available to the
Rabobank and the minimum capital required by the regulatory authorities.

With the market risk approach, the general market risk is hedged, as well as the risk of open positions in foreign currencies,
debt, own equity instruments. Assets are weighted according to broad categories of notional risk, the weightings reflecting
the deemed capital required to back them. Four risk weightings are used: 0%, 20%, 50% and 100%. For example, cash and
money market instruments are assigned a weighting of 0%, which means that no capital is required to back the holding of
these assets. ltems of property and equipment are assigned a weighting of 100%, which means that capital equal to 8% of
their carrying amount has to be held to back them.

Off-balance-sheet liabilities relating to loans, forward contracts, forwards and options based on derivative financial
instruments have various categories of conversion factors applied to them in order to disclose these items at their balance-

sheet equivalents. These equivalent amounts are then also assigned risk weightings.

C ]

Rabobank ratios

In millions of euros 2005 2004

Tier | and qualifying capital can be broken down as follows:

Retained earnings and other reserves 15172 13,469
Payment on Rabobank Member Certificates and Trust Preferred Securities (322) (237)
Rabobank Member Certificates 5811 3,840
Trust Preferred Securities [l to VI 2,092 1877
Trust Preferred Securities | and I! 1,483 1,927
24,236 20,876
Part of minority interest treated as Tier | capital 749 637
Deductions (125) (109)
Tier | capital 24,860 21,404
Revaluation reserve 93 47
Deductions (773) (391)
Part of subordinated debt treated as qualifying capital 1,092 145
Qualifying capital 25,272 21,205
Risk-weighted assets 213,901 196,052
Ratio
Core capital (Tier | ratio) 116 109
Qualifying capital (BIS ratio) 11.8 108
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5 Risk exposure of financial instruments

5.1  Strategy for the use of financial instruments

Rabobank’s activities are inherently related to the use of financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments.
Rabobank accepts deposits from clients at fixed and variable rates of interest for a variety of terms and aims to earn above-
average interest margins on these depaosits by investing them in high-quality assets. Rabobank also aims to increase these
margins by consolidating short funds and loans for longer terms at higher interest rates, at the same time keeping sufficient

liquid resources to meet all payments that might become due.

A further objective of Rabobank is to increase its interest rate margins by obtaining above-average margins, after deduction
of provisions, and by granting loans to commercial and retail borrowers with various credit ratings. These risks apply not
only to loans recognised on the balance sheet, but also to guarantees given by Rabobank such as letters of credit and

performance and other guarantee documents.

Rabobank also trades in financial instruments when it takes positions in tradeable and unlisted instruments (OTCs), including
derivative financial instruments, in order to profit from short-term movements on the share and bond markets and in

exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices.

5.2 Interest rate risk

Rabobank is exposed to the risk of effects from fluctuations in market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows.
As a result of such unexpected movements, interest rate margins can rise or fall. The Executive Board sets limits for the size of
the permitted mismatch resulting from interest rate adjustments. The mismatch situation is monitored daily and monthly

reports on it are sent to the respective risk management committees.

The following table gives a highly simplified picture of Rabobank's repayment schedule broken down by interest-rate type.
It shows the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Rabobank, classified by interest rate period or date of maturity.
The schedule does not take into account assumptions about client behaviour. Assumptions regarding early repayment of
mortgages are used for Rabobank's interest rate risk model. In addition, the model used for due to customers is a portfolio
of money market and capital market items. The assumptions on behaviour have been agreed with De Nederlandsche Bank
{the Dutch central bank). Mareover, the on-balance-sheet position is hedged with derivative financial instruments not

included in the table.

Every quarter, reports generated by Rabobank's interest rate risk model are submitted to De Nederlandsche Bank.
The results of a stress scenario based on the assumption that the interest rate curve will make a 2% parallel shift upwards
and downwards show that interest income will probably not fall by more than 1% in the first year. The expected limit for

the second year is 3%.
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Within 1 1-3 3-12 More than  Non-interest-
In millions of euros month months months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
At 31 December 2005 -
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 896 - 6 - - 2,021 2,923
Due from other banks 32,976 13,847 3,902 542 1,343 455 53,065
Trading financial assets 5,333 2,991 3,836 12,645 9,564 4,642 39,011
Other financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss 6 2 104 1,955 10,344 2,460 14,871
Loans to customers 72,123 34,815 36,572 92,737 67,352 852 304,451
Available-for-sale financial assets 4,110 11,365 4,333 16,173 14,866 374 51,221
Held-to-maturity financial assets 115 115 635 1,019 24 - 1,908
Other assets 533 854 470 162 64 4,224 6,307
Total assets 116,092 63,989 49,858 125,233 103,557 15,028 473,757
Liabilities
Due to other banks 54,504 42,462 6,871 3,937 1,020 955 109,749
Due to other banks at fair value
through profit and loss - 239 - - - - 239
Due to customers 164,902 8912 3,503 3,303 3,496 2,311 186,427
D_ueZ) customers at fair value
through profit and loss - - 21 1" - 32
Debt securities in issue 27,075 41,166 15,710 25,294 6,745 2 115,992
Debt securities in issue at fair
value through profit and loss 3,286 4,897 6,843 1,238 3,069 - 19,333
Other debts 782 906 1,077 49 133 4,399 7,346
Insurance liabilities - - - - - 3 3
Other financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss 589 302 310 3,284 2,512 344 7.347
Subordinated debt 1,001 13 - 64 1,534 33 2,645
Total liabilities 252,139 98,897 34,335 37,180 18,509 8,047 449,107
Interest rate sensitivity gap (136,047) (34,908) 15,523 88,053 85,048 6,981 24,650

[
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Within 1 1-3 3-12 More than  Non-interest-
in millions of euros month months months  1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
At 31 December 2004
Assets o -
Cash and cash equivalents 6,544 16 3 - - 706 7,269
Due from other banks 23,096 10,950 3,125 802 i «—'“2,765 312 41,050
Trading financial assets 3,064 4,471 5211 9383 7,712 2,805 32,646
Other financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss 2,874 1,650 1,758 9,322 13,451 3,443 32,498
Loans to customers 60,550 24,900 36,259 87,230 63,207 1,800 @46
Available-for-sale financial
assets 1,435 2,563 7,292 18,658 16,848 1,524 48,320
Held-to-maturity financial assets - 226 304 1,652 25 - 2,207
Other assets 251 500 555 169 663 4,980 7,118
Total assets 97,814 45,276 54,507 127,216 104,671 15,570 445,054
Liabilities
Due to other banks 46,951 41,757 3447 2,088 944 1,160 96,347
Due to other banks at fair value
through profit and loss - - - - 97 - 97
Due to customers 137,443 24,754 3,942 5,015 5,589 728 177.471
Due to customers at fair value -
through profit and loss - n - - - - 1
Debt securities in issue 4,883 32,956 19,867 28,176 11,628 WOr 97,520
Debt securities in issue at fair
value through profit and loss 4,256 396 650 3,451 3,187 - 11,940
Other debts (4,941) 280 (960) (8644  (2,574) 24489 7,650
Insurance liabilities - - 585 1,978 15,302 7 17,882
Other financial liabilities at fair o
value through profit and loss 1,813 889 17 1,390 2,867 14 7,090
Subordinated debt 67 17 17 1995 1 32 2120
Total liabilities 190,472 101,060 27,675 35,449 37,041 26,440 418,137
Interest rate sensitivity gap (92,658) (55,784) 26,832 91,767 67,630 (10,870) 26917




The table below provides a summary of the average effective interest rates at 31 December for monetary financial
instruments denominated in major currencies.

C )}

EUR GBP usb AUS Other
o 7 % % % % %
At 31 December 2005
Assets )
Cash and cash equivalents 2.08 4.64 348 - 0.07
Due from other banks 2.81 4.72 3.80 5.85 1.16
Trading financial assets 2.78 5.26 3.08 4.22 2,02
Loans to customers 4.86 5.80 5.04 7.05 6.23
Available-for-sale financial assets 3.46 5.25 3.48 6.19 1.70
Held-to-maturity financial assets 3.37 - - - -
Liabilities
Due to other banks 266 4.59 349 5.54 263
Due to customers 2.21 471 3.16 5.16 434
Debt securities in issue 2.23 4.85 2.44 5.89 4.18
Other debts 3.90 - 2.65 - -
EUR GBP ush AUS Other
% % % % %
At 31 December 2004
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2.54 433 234 - 0.06
Due from other banks 2.60 4.62 1.94 442 1.44
Trading financial assets 2.13 451 1.72 4.12 2.16
Loans to customers 4.98 5.39 333 7.27 4.86
Available-for-sale financial assets 3.52 4.78 4.41 4.98 2.61
Held-to-maturity financial assets 4.03 - - - -
Liabilities
Due to other banks 2,57 4.39 2.60 4.05 3.24
Due to customers 225 4.89 2N 5.28 4.83
Debt securities in issue 2.01 455 1.66 5.69 3.78
Other debts 3.96 - 1.52 - -




53 Credit risk

The credit risk exposure is the loss that Rabobank would suffer if a counterparty or issuer were to default on all its contractual
obligations. Credit risk is inherent in traditional banking products. Positions in tradeable assets such as bonds and shares are
also subject to credit risk. Rabobank is exposed to credit risks. A credit risk is defined as the risk that a counterparty will be
unable to make payments in full when they become due. Rabobank controls the size of its credit risk exposure by limiting
the amount at risk in relation to a borrower, or a group of borrowers, and to countries. These risks are monitored cyclically
and are subject to regular assessment. Rabobank uses an escalating authorisation system to make decisions on individual
loans. Immediately below the Executive Board, the system takes the form of loan committees; at lower levels, assessments

undergo a review by a’'second pair of eyes.

Credit risks are managed by regularly analysing the financial capacity of borrowers and potential borrowers to pay the
amounts they owe in interest and principal and by adjusting their credit limits as necessary. Credit risks are also partly
managed through the use of covenants and/or the provision of security and business and personal guarantees, The credit
risk exposure relating to each individual borrower is further restricted by the use of sub-limits to hedge amounts at risk, not
all of which are disclosed on the balance sheet, and the use of daily delivery risk limits for trading items such as forward
currency contracts. Most actual risks are assessed each day against the limits.

Approximately 53% of Rabobank’s total loan portfolio represents loans to private customers (mainly mortgages) who have
an extremely low risk profile. The remainder is a highly varied portfolio of loans to business clients in the Netherlands and
abroad. The proportion of the total loan portfolio attributable to the food & agri sector was 17% in 2005. The proportion of
the loan portfolio relating to trade, industry and services was 30% at year-end 2005 and is spread over a large number of
clients in many sectors, mainly in industrialised countries.

The proposed BIS Il regulations for credit risk distinguish between the standard approach and an approach based on internal
ratings. The latter approach analyses the cause of actual losses in past years in order to calculate the risk of a borrower
defaulting on his contractual obligations when a payment becomes due. The internal method distinguishes between a
basic method and a mare advanced method.

5.3.1 Loans

Apart from due from other banks (53 billion, or 10% of total assets), Rabobank’s only significant risk concentration is among
private sector lending, which accounts for 48% of all loans to customers. Loans to trade, industry and services and loans to

the food & agri sector are both spread over a wide range of industries. None of them represents more than 10% of the total

client loan portfolio.




1

At 31 december

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Total loans to customers ) 304,451 273,546
of which:

to government clients 1,053 1,616

securities transactions due from government clients 1,459 2,564

securities transactions due from private sector Jending 22,025 18,570

interest rate hedges (hedge accounting) 1,819 2,238
Private sector lending 278,095 248,958
This can be broken down geographically as follows:
The Netherlands 218,363 78% 200,278 80%
Other countries in the Euro zone 24,681 9% 21,358 9%
North America 18,391 7% 13,892 6%
Latin America 3,620 1% 2,836 1%
Asia 2,764 1% 2,196 1%
Australia and New Zealand 10,219 4% 8,329 3%
Other countries 57 0% 69 0%
Total 278,095 100% 248958 100%
Risk spread in the loan portfolio can be broken down by business segment as follows:
Private individuals 146,512 53% 133,184 53%
Trade, industry and services 83,340 30% 76,321 31%
Food & agri 48,243 17% 39,453 16%
Total 278,095 100% 248,958 100%
= —

5.3.2 Derivative financial instruments

Rabobank sets strict limits for open positions, in amounts as well as in terms. If ISDA (International Swaps and Derivatives

Association) standards apply or a master agreement including equivalent terms has been concluded with the counterparty

and the jurisdiction of the counterparty permits setting off, the apen position is monitored. The amount exposed to credit

risk is limited in each case 1o the fair value of the transactions plus an uplift for potential future risks for Rabobank (at the

97.5% confidence level). Regarding derivative financial instruments, this is only a fraction of the notional amount at which

the open transactions are disclosed. This credit risk is managed as part of the general lending limits for clients. Substantial

amounts of security or other guarantees are given for Rabobank’s credit risk exposures in relation to these transactions.

The credit risk exposure represents the current fair value of all open derivative contracts showing a gain, taking into

account master netting agreements enforceable by law.




5.3.3 Credit risk management methods

Rabobank further limits its exposure to credit risk by entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties for a
significant volume of transactions. In general, master netting arrangements do not lead to the setting off of assets and
liabilities included on the balance sheet as transactions are usually settled gross. The credit risk relating to favourable
contracts is limited by master netting arrangements, however, to the extent that, if an event or cancellation occurs, all
amounts involving the counterparty are frozen and settled net. Taking netting arrangements into account, the total fair
value of the derivative contracts portfolio is a positive amount of 5,591 (7,116).

The total credit risk exposure of Rabobank from derivative financial instruments to which netting arrangements apply is
highly sensitive to the closing of new transactions, lapsing of existing transactions and market movements in interest and

exchange rates.

An additional method for managing the credit risk associated with derivative financial instruments and sale and repurchase

contracts is the use of collateral arrangements.

5.3.4 Financial instruments not disclosed on the balance sheet

The main purpose of these instruments is to ensure that financial resources are available for clients when needed.
Guarantees and stand-by letters of credit, which represent irrevocable commitments by Rabobank to make payments to
third parties on behalf of clients if they are unable to fulfil their obligations, are exposed to the same risks as loans.
Documentary and commercial letters of credit, which are written undertakings by Rabobank on behalf of clients authorising
third parties to draw bills against Rabobank up to a preset amount subject to specific conditions, are backed by the delivery
of the underlying goods to which they relate. Accordingly, the risk exposure of such an instrument is less than that of a

direct loan,

Obligations to grant loans at specific rates of interest during a fixed period are included and recognised as derivative financial
instruments, unless the obligations cease at the end of the period that appears to be required to carry out appropriate
acceptance procedures. In that case, they are treated as transactions conforming to standard market conventions.

Promises to grant lending facilities represent unused partial authorisations to grant such facilities in the form of loans,
guarantees or letters of credit. Regarding promises to grant credit facilities, Rabobank is potentially exposed to losses up

to an amount equal to the unused commitments. However, the probable size of such losses is less than the total of the
unused commitments, as most promises to grant credit facilities are made subject to the clients meeting certain conditions
that apply to loans. Rabobank monitors the term to expiry of credit promises, as long-term commitments are generally
associated with a higher risk than short-term commitments.




5.4  Currency risk

Rabeobank is exposed to the effect of fluctuations in exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. Just as for other
market risks, the currency risk exposure of the trading books is managed using value-at-risk (VaR) limits set by the Executive
Board. This risk is monitored on a daily basis. The non-trading books are exposed only to the translation risk on capital
invested in foreign activities and on issues of Trust Preferred Securities not denominated in euros. To monitor and manage
the translation risk, Rabobank follows a policy of protecting equity against exchange rate fluctuations. The following table
shows the carrying amounts of Rabobank's assets and liabilities broken down by currency.

[ ]

Carrying amount in millions of euros

EUR GBP usb AUS Other Total
At 31 December 2005
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,493 12 22 51 1,345 2,923
Due from other banks 17,536 9,109 22,336 123 3,961 53,065
Trading financial assets 13,606 4,942 10,204 178 10,081 39,011
Other financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss 5314 1,210 7,316 - 1,031 14,871
Derivative financial instruments 15,932 177 5,866 238 1,922 24,135
Loans to customers 236,790 7,008 45,395 7,563 7,695 304,451
Available-for-sale financial assets 22,776 157 22,339 459 5,490 51,221
Held-to-maturity financial assets 1,908 - - - - 1,908
Investments in associates 2,618 - 3 8 342 2971
Goodwill and other intangible assets 183 - 2 - 67 252
Property and equipment 2,843 29 190 12 41 3,115
Investment properties 768 - - - - 768
Deferred tax assets 830 33 343 30 - 1,236
Other assets 3,824 257 1,450 140 636 6,307

Total assets 326,421 22934 115,466 8,802 32,611 506,234
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Carrying amount in millions of euros

EUR GBP usD AUS Other Total
At 31 December 2005
Liabilities
Due to other banks 41,619 13,088 45,076 819 9,147 109,749
Due to other banks at fair value through profit
and loss - - 239 - - 239
Due to customers 157,756 8,834 16,075 1,070 2,692 186,427
Due to customers at fair value through profit
and loss 1 21 - - - 32
Debt securities in issue 29,553 6,071 56,837 6,859 16,672 115,992
Debt securities in issue at fair value through
profit and loss 10,731 247 6,143 507 1,705 19,333
Derivative financial instruments and other trade
liabilities 20,208 541 5,584 286 1,462 28,081
Other debts 824 1,770 2,705 473 1,574 7,346
Insurance liabilities 2 - - 1 - 3
Other financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss 4,137 486 2,480 - 238 7,341
Provisions 883 14 5 22 7 931
Deferred tax liabilities 222 1 100 6 - 329
Employee benefits 1,400 18 19 - 1,437
Subordinated debt 1,162 - 1,483 - - 2,645
Total liabilities 268,508 31,091 136,746 10,043 33,497 479,885
Net on-balance-sheet position 57,913 (8,157) (21,280) (1,241) (886) 26,349
At 31 December 2004
Total assets 343,963 18,540 65,438 13,150 42,483 483,574
Total liabilities 307,835 27,666 87,658 9,804 27,607 460,570
Net on-balance-sheet position 36,128 9,126) (22,220) 3,346 14,876 23,004




5.5 Liquidity risk

Rabobank is exposed to daily withdrawals from its available cash resources in the form of overnight deposits, current

accounts, expiring deposits, early repayment of loans, guarantees, and out-of-the-margin and other calls on derivatives

settled in cash. Rabobank holds no cash to meet these needs, as experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment

of maturing arrangements can be predicted with a high degree of probability. Rabobank uses a liquidity risk model that

incorporates the trading and investment portfolios as a buffer for liquidity risk management. This is reflected in the balance

sheet and the table below by the substantial iterns ‘Trading financial assets, ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’and ‘Other

financial assets at fair value through profit and loss' In the event of a liquidity crisis, these assets can be utilised immediately to

increase liquidity.

The table below shows Rabobank’s assets and liabilities grouped by the liquidity period remaining between the balance

sheet date and contractual repayment date.

s

Contract repayment date

No

On  Lessthan 3 months More than repayment
In millions of euros demand 3 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years date Total
At 31 December 2005
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,990 253 18 - - 662 2,923
Due from other banks 10,065 36,690 3,673 756 1,543 338 53,065
Trading financial assets 158 5,965 3,753 13,945 11,495 3,695 359,011
Other financial assets at fair value »‘
through profit and loss - 8 104 1,955 10,344 2,460 14,871
Derivative financial instruments 12 2,542 2,591 7,777 11,212 1 24,135
Loans to customers 11,729 47,876 16,997 48,952 178,419 478 304,451
Available-for-sale financial assets 264 10,437 4,095 17,445 18,715 265 51,221
Held-to-maturity financial assets - 230 635 1,019 24 - 1,908
Other assets 648 1,233 496 229 56 3,645 6,307
Total assets 24,866 105,234 32,362 92,078 231,808 11,544 497,892

s
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Contract repayment date

No

On  Llessthan 3 months More than  repayment
In millions of euros demand 3 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years date Total
At 31 December 2005
Liabilities
Due to other banks 7,068 88,762 7,187 5,436 1,242 54 109,749
Due to other banks at fair value
through profit and loss - - - 126 113 - 239
Due to customers 141,571 31,144 3,251 4,099 3,794 2,568 186,427
Due to customers at fair value
through profit and loss - - - 32 - - 32
Debt securities in issue 4,112 50,862 12,643 35,672 12,700 3 115,992
Debt securities in issue at fair value
through profit and loss - 728 423 3125 15,057 - 19,333
Derivative financial instruments
and other trade liabilities 74 2,028 2,713 8,462 14,795 9 28,081
Other debts 697 1,757 1,114 298 105 3,375 7,346
Insurance liabilities - - - - - 3 3
Other financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss 591 317 339 3,570 2,517 7 7,341
Subordinated debt - - - 64 2,547 34 2,645
Total liabilities - 154,113 175,598 27,670 60,884 52,870 6,053 477,188
Net liquidity surplus/(deficit) (129,247) (70,364) 4,692 31,194 178,938 5491 20,704
At 31 December 2004
Total assets 36,686 78,260 36,836 98,136 213,684 13,487 477,089
Total liabilities 145,329 155,527 30,832 50,896 33,855 22,987 439,426
Net liquidity surplus/(deficit) (108,643) (77,267) 6,004 47,240 179,829 (9,500) 37,663

The above breakdowns were compiled on the basis of contract information, without taking into account the way the

different balance sheet items change in practice. This is taken into account, however, for the day-to-day management of

the liquidity risk. The regulations of the supervisory authority are also factored in. In relation to the liquidity criteria of
De Nederlandsche Bank, Rabobank had a substantial liquidity surplus at 31 December 2005.

The terms of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace interest-bearing liabilities at acceptable costs when they fall due

are major factors in assessing Rabobank’s liquidity position and its exposure to movements in interest and exchange rates.




The liquidity requirements to meet payments under guarantees and stand-by letters of credit are substantially lower than
the size of the liabilities, as Rabobank does not generally expect that the third party to such an arrangement will withdraw
its resources. The total open position relating to contractual obligations to provide credit does not necessarily represent
Rabobank’s future cash resource needs, as many of these obligations will lapse or terminate without financing being
required.

56 Market risk

Rabobank is exposed to market risk. A market risk arises on open positions in relation to interest rates, currencies and share-
based products, ali of which are subject to general and specific market movements. Rabobank employs a value-at-risk (VaR)
method to estimate the market risk of positions it holds and the maximum expected losses. The method requires a number
of assumptions to be made for different changes in market conditions. The Executive Board sets limits for the acceptable
risks and these are monitored on a daily basis.

The criterion for the daily value that may be exposed to risk (VaR) is an estimate, at the 97.5% confidence level, of the
potential losses that could occur when the existing positions are held unchanged for one trading day. The value for the
criterion is selected in such way that daily losses exceeding the VaR should not accur more than once in 40 days on
average. The actual results are assessed regularly to verify the validity of the assumptions, parameters and factors used in
calculating the VaR.

As the VaR is an integral part of Rabobank’s risk management processes for dealing with market risk, VaR limits are set for all
trading activities. The actual exposures in relation to the limits together with a consolidated group VaR is tracked each day
by management. The average daily VaR for Rabobank was 19 in 2005 (17). The highest and lowest VaR reported during the
year were 25 (22) and 14 (11) respectively. Tnis approach does not prevent losses exceeding these limits in the event of
dramatic market swings.

5.7  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The table below shows the fair values of financial instruments based on the stated valuation methods and assumptions.
This table is included because not all financial instruments are disclosed in the financia! statements at fair value. The fair
value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between two knowledgeable and willing
parties in an arm's length transaction.

We use the market price as fair value if an active market exists (such as a stock market), as this is the best measure of the
fair value of a financial instrument. However, market prices are not available for a large number of the financial assets and
liabilities that Rabobank holds or issues, Hence, for financial instruments for which no market prices are available, the fair
values shown in the table below have been estimated using the present value or the results of other estimation and
valuation methods, based on the market conditions at the balance sheet date. The values produced using these methods
are highly sensitive to the underlying assumptions used for the amounts as well as for the timing of future cash flows and
the discount rates. The following methods and assumptions have been used:




Cash and cash equivalents: The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is assumed to be almost equal to their carrying
amount. This assumption is also used for highly liquid investments and the current component of all other financial assets

and liabilities.

Due from other banks: Due from other banks comprise interbank placings and items to be collected. The fair values of
floating rate placings and overnight deposits are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed-interest deposits
is based on the present value of the cash flows, calculated using appropriate money market interest rates for debts with
comparable credit risks and terms to maturity.

Financial assets and derivative financia! instruments held for trading: Financial assets and derivative financial instruments
held for trading are carried at fair value based on available quoted market prices. If quoted market prices are not available,
the fair value is estimated from appropriate discounted cash-flow models and option valuation models.

Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: These financial assets are carried at fair value based on guoted
prices in active markets if available. If not, they are estimated from comparable assets on the market, or using valuation

methods, including appropriate discounted cash-flow models and option valuation models.

Loans to customers: The fair value of issued loans is estimated from the present value of the cash flows, using current
market rates for similar loans. For variable-interest loans that are reviewed often and do not vary significantly in terms of

credit risk, the fair value is based on the carrying amount until maturity.

Available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity financial assets: Available-for sale financial assets and held-to-
maturity financial assets are carried at fair value based on available quoted market prices. If guoted market prices are not
available, the fair value is estimated from appropriate discounted cash-flow models and option vafuation models.

Other financial assets: For almost all other financial assets, the carrying amount is a good approximation of the fair value,

Due to other banks: Due to other banks comprise interbank placings, items to be delivered and deposits. The fair values of
floating rate placings and overnight deposits are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed-interest deposits
is based on the present value of the cash flows, calculated using ruling money market interest rates for debts with

comparable credit risks and terms to maturity.




Trade liabilities: The fair value of trade liabilities is based on available quoted market prices. If quoted market prices are not
available, the fair value is estimated from valuation models (such as discounted cash-flow models).

Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss: The fair vatue of these liabilities is based on available
guoted market prices. If guoted market prices are not available, the fair value is estimated from appropriate discounted
cash-flow models and option valuation models. Other financial liabilities classified at fair value through profit and loss
are immune to changes in Rabobank’s credit rating.

Due to customers: Due to customers include current accounts and deposits. The fair value of savings and current accounts
that have no specific termination date is assumed to be the amount payable on demand at the balance sheet date, ie.
their carrying amount at that date. The fair value of the deposits is estimated from the present value of the cash flows,
based on current bid rates of interest for similar arrangements with terms to maturity that match the items to be measured.
The carrying amount of variable-interest deposits is a good approximation to their fair value at the balance sheet date.

Debt and other instruments issued by Rabobank: The fair value of these instruments is calculated using quoted market
prices. For notes for which no quoted market prices are available, a discounted cash flow model is used, based on a current
yield curve appropriate for the term to maturity.

Other debts: The fair value of loans is estimated from the present value of the cash flows, based on current market rates for
similar loans with terms to maturity that match the outstanding terms of the loans to be measured.

Off-balance-sheet instruments for obligations or guarantees: The fair value of off-balance-sheet instruments for obligations
or guarantees is based on current fees for entering into such arrangements, taking into account the outstanding terms of
the agreements and the creditworthiness of the counterparties.
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2005 2004
In millions of euros Carrying amount Fair value  Carrying amount Fair value
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,923 2946 7,269 7,269
Due from other banks 53,065 52,919 41,050 41,118
Trading financial assets 39,011 39,011 32,646 32,646
Other financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss 14,871 14,871 32,498 32,498
Derivative financial instruments 24135 24135 32,035 32,035
Loans to customers 304,451 347 273946 281,981
Available-for-sale financial assets 51,221 51,221 48320 48,320
Held-to-maturity financial assets 1,908 2,054 2,207 2,401
Total assets 491,585 498,574 469,971 478,268
Liabilities o
Due to other banks 109,749 108,721 96,347 7“96,356
Due to other banks at fair value through profit
and loss 239 239 97 97
Due to customers 186,427 185,514 ‘ 177471 178,125
Due to customers at fair value through profit ‘
and loss 32 32 11 1
Debt securities in issue 115,992 116,227 97,520 100,374
Debt securities in issue at fair value through profit ‘
and loss L _ 19,333 19,33_3 11,940 o 11,940
Derivatives and other trade liabilities 28,081 28,081_4' 39171 39171
Subordinated debt 2,645 2,573 2,129 2,125
Total liabilities 462,498 460,720 424,686 428,199
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The figures stated here represent the best possible estimates by management, based on a range of methods and

assumptions.

If a quoted market price is available, this is the best estimate of fair value. If no quoted market prices are available for fixed-
term securities, equity instruments, derivative financial instruments and commodity instruments, Rabobank bases the fair
value on the present value of the future cash flows, discounted at market rates corresponding to the credit ratings and

terms to maturity of the investments. Alternatively, a model-based price can be used to determine a suitable fair value.




Rabobank's policy is to have all models used for valuing financial instruments validated by competent staff who are
independent of the staff who determine the fair values of the financial instruments.

In determining market or fair values, various factors have to be considered, such as the time value of money, volatility,
underlying options, warrants and derivative financial instruments. Other factors are liguidity and the creditworthiness of the
counterparty. Modifications to assumptions might affect the fair value of held-for-sale and available-for sale financial assets
and liabilities.

The table below summarizes the valuation methodes used in determining the fair value of financial assets and liabilities
except from current financial instruments, receivables and payables arising in the normal course of business. Because of the
relatively short time between their initial recognition and expected realisation, the carrying amounts of these items are a
good approximation of their fair values.

Measurement of financial instruments At 31 december
2005 2004

In millions of euros Fair value % Fair value %

Quoted market prices 208,975 22% 220,891 24%

Valuation methods based on assumptions fully

supported by demonstrable market prices or rates 750,319 78% 685,576 76%

5.8 Trust activities

Rabobank provides fiduciary, trustee, corporate accounting, and asset management services, as well as advisory services to
third parties, as part of which it has to make decisions on the allocation, purchase and sale of a wide variety of financial
instruments. Assets held in connection with fiduciary activities are not disclosed in these financial statements. For some of
the arrangements, Rabobank has agreed to achieve yield targets for the assets under its management. With these services,
Rabobank could be exposed to the risk of being held liable for inadequate management or performance.




6 Business segments

The business segments the Rabobank uses in its reporting are defined from a management viewpoint. This means they are

the segments reviewed as part of Rabobank’s strategic management and for the purpose of making business decisions.

Rabobank distinguishes five major business segments: Domestic retail banking, Wholesale and international retail banking,
Asset management and investments, Leasing and Real Estate.

The other business activities of Rabobank comprise a variety of segments, none of which requires separate reporting.
Inter-segment transactions are conducted in accordance with normal commercial terms and market conditions.
Financial resources can be reallocated between segments, which leads to a reclassification of finance costs recognised in
operating profit. The interest recognised on these financial resources is based on the cost of capital. No other material
income or expense items arise between business segments. The assets and liabilities of a segment comprise operating

assets and operating liabilities, in other words, a substantial part of the balance sheet, but excluding items relating to tax.

The accounting policies used for segment reporting are the same as those described in the section on the main accounting

policies used in preparing the consolidated financial statements.




Wholesale Asset
and inter- Management
Domestic  national retail and Real

In millions of euros retail banking banking  investments Leasing Estate Other * Total
For the year ended
31 December 2005
External income 7,719 1,399 784 1,073 302 (1,914) 9,363
Income from other segments (2,288) 827 (66} (354) (152) 2,033 -
Total income 5431 2,226 718 719 150 119 9,363
Segment expense 3,910 1,536 468 484 42 241 6,681
Operating profit before tax 1,521 690 250 235 108 (122) 2,682
Income tax expense 497 17 76 57 30 (178) 599
Net profit for the year 1,024 573 174 178 78 56 2,083
Business unit assets 219,777 368,147 14,179 20,757 9,101 (128,698) 503,263
Investments in associates 15 215 154 4 18 2,565 2,97
Total assets 219,792 368,362 14,333 20,761 9,119 (126,133) 506,234
Business unit liabilities 205,141 359,787 13,546 19,262 8,496 (126,347) 479,885
Total liabilities 205,141 359,787 13,546 19,262 8496 (126,347) 479,885
Additions to property and
equipment 115 40 16 10 4 222 407
Depreciation and amortisation
including amortisation of
software 164 40 13 15 1 98 33N
Value adjustments 175 259 - 92 1 (10) 517

* Including elimination between segments.
g g




Wholesale Asset
and inter- Management
Domestic  national retail and Real

In millions of euros retail banking banking  investments Leasing Estate Other * Total
For the year ended
31 December 2004
External income 7,557 1,315 731 993 241 (1,615) 9,222
Income from other segments (2,384) 946 (78) (352) (115) 1,983 -
Total income 5173 2,261 653 , 641 126 368 9,222
Segment expense 4,001 1,476 467 449 32 231 6,656
Operating profit before tax 1,172 785 186 192 94 137 2,566
Income tax expense 415 230 48 38 30 12 773
Net profit for the year 757 555 138 154 64 125 1,793
Business unit assets 201,458 333,802 13,220 17,489 8,041 (91,150) 482,860
Investments in associates 17 194 128 - 14 361 714
Total assets 201,475 333,996 13,348 17,489 8,055  (90,789) 483,574
Business unit liabilities 188,037 326,001 12,776 16,211 7514 (89,969) ' 460,570
Total liabilities 188,037 326,001 12,776 16,211 7514  (89,969) 460,570
Additions to property and
equipment 136 24 15 273 2 71 521
Depreciation and amortisation o
including amortisation of
software 172 42 17 M 1 78 321
Value adjustments 247 119 1 86 - 26 479
* Including elimination between segments.




Additions to
property, Contingent
Business unit Business unit Income from equipment and liabilities and
In millions of euros assets liabilities  external clients intangible assets obligations
At 31 December 2004
The Netherlands 309,969 303,724 8,785 31 44,285
Other countries in Euro zone 24,092 9,764 907 (15) 4,326
Rest of Europe (excl. Euro zone) 77,272 65,375 723 9 6,333
North America 56,133 72,615 407 69 9,599
Latin America 4612 2,081 232 5 367
Asia 7,869 13,861 (32) 2 1,524
Australia and New Zealand 26,268 12,795 229 5 2,464
Other and consolidation effects 19 (330) (1,888) 21 -
Total 506,234 479,885 9,363 407 68,898
= ]
= y
Additions to
property, Contingent
Business unit Business unit Income from equipment and liabilities and
in millions of euros assets liabilities  external clients intangible assets obligations
At 31 December 2004
The Netherlands 310,098 302,856 9,144 479 38,573
Other countries in Euro zone 8,375 3,343 335 76 1,592
Rest of Europe (excl. Euro zone) 94,286 82,752 678 2) 6,281
North America 26,072 36,678 867 (6) 12,834
Latin America 3,335 1,463 188 1 382
Asia 22,083 17,636 7 - 1.211
Australia and New Zealand 13,864 12,688 174 3 1,994
Other and consolidation effects 5461 3,154 2,171) (30) -
Total 483,574 460,570 9,222 521 62,867
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7 Cash and cash equivalents

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Cash . 675 689
Money market loans o 67 13
Deposits at central banks other than mandatory reserve deposits 1,723 6,160
Cash and cash equivalents . 2465 6,862
Mandatory reserve deposits at central banks 458 407
Total cash and cash equivalents 2923 7,269
Mandatory reserve deposits consist of deposits with De Nederlandsche Bank (the Dutch central bank) required under its
minimum reserve policy. These deposits are not available to Rabobank for use in its daily business activities.

8 Due from other banks

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Deposits with other banks 13387 12,001
Assets transferred under repurchase transactions 36,759 26,134
Loans 3 2983 219_77
Less: value adjustments (64) 62)
Total due from other banks 53,065 41,050
Breakdown of value adjustments _

At 1 January 62 747
Additional value adjustment to due from other banks 6 15
Reversal of value adjustment to due from other banks (5)

Value adjustments 1 15
Amounts written off during the year - (3)
Other changes 1 3
At 31 December 64 62




9 Trading financial assets

2005 2004
In millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total
Purchased loans - 2,255 2,255 2,124 2,124
Short-term government securities 275 - 275 1,140 - 1,140
Government bonds 10,436 262 10,698 17,276 702 17,978
Other debt securities 15,828 793 16,621 2,409 148 2,557
Venture capital 3 1 4 - ) 5
Equity instruments 2,349 2,342 4,691 7451 48 7499
Other financial assets 4,208 259 4,467 20 1,323 1,343
Total 33,099 5912 39,011 28,296 4,350 32,646
10 Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
2005 2004

in millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total
Short-term government securities - 41 41 - - -
Government bonds 794 299 1,093 2,218 - 2,218
Other debt securities 11,021 173 11,194 26,630 - 26,630
Venture capital 4 221 225 - - -
Equity instruments 2,236 - 2,236 3,438 5 3,443
Other trading financial assets 75 7 82 81 126 207
Total 14,130 741 14,871 32,367 131 32,498




11 Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities

11.1  Types of derivative financial instruments used by Rabobank

Forward currency and interest rate contracts are contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount based on
movements in exchange or interest rates, or to purchase or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a future date
at a fixed specified price in an organised financial market. As collateral for forward contacts is provided in the form of cash,
cash equivalents or marketable securities, and movements in the value of forward contracts are settled daily, the credit risk
is negligible. Forward rate agreements are individually agreed forward interest rate contracts under which the difference
between a contractually agreed interest rate and the market rate on a future date has to be settled in cash, based on a

notional principal amount.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps entail an economic
exchange of currencies or interest rates (such as a fixed rate for one or more variable rates, or a combination i.e., a cross-
currency swap). Except for certain currency swaps, there is no transfer of the principal amount. The credit risk exposure

of Rabobank represents the potential cost of replacing the swaps if the counterparties default. The risk is monitored
continuously against current fair value, a portion of the notional amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the markets.
As part of the credit risk management process, Rabobank employs the same methods for evaluating counterparties as it

does for lending activities.

Currency and interest rate options are contracts under which the seller (known as the writer) gives the buyer (known as
the holder) the right, entailing no obligation, to purchase (in the case of a call opticn) or sell (in the case of a put option) a
specific amount of foreign currency or a specific financial instrument on or before an agreed date or during an agreed
period at a price set in advance. As consideration for accepting the currency or interest rate risk, the writer receives a payment
{(known as a premium) from the holder. Options are traded on exchanges or between Rabobank and clients (OTQ).
Rabobank is exposed to credit risks only as option holder and only up to the carrying amount, which is equal to the fair

value in this case.

Credit default swaps (CDSs) are instruments by means of which the seller of a CDS agrees to pay the buyer an amount

equal to the loss that would be incurred by holding an underlying reference asset if a specific credit event were to occur
(ie. the materialisation of a risk). The buyer is under no obligation to hold the underlying reference asset. The buyer pays
the seller a credit protection fee expressed in basis points, with the size of the fee depending on the credit spread of the

reference asset.

11.2 Derivative financial instruments issued or held for trading

Rabobank trades in financial instruments to take positions in tradeable or OTC instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, so that it can profit from short-term movements on share and bond markets and in exchange and interest
rates. For this type of trading, Rabobank sets risk limits relating to market positions at the end of the day (overnight trades)
as well as during the day (intraday trades). Apart from specific hedging rules, the currency and interest rate risks associated
with these derivative financial instruments are usually offset by taking counter positions in order to manage the volatility in
the net cash or cash equivalent amounts needed to liguidate the market positions.




Derivative financial instruments held as hedges

Rabobank concludes various derivative contracts that are intended as fair value, cash flow or net investment hedges, and
which accordingly qualify as such. Rabobank also concludes derivative contracts as hedges against economic risks. It does
not apply hedge accounting to these contracts.

Fair value hedges

Most of Rabobank’s fair value hedges are interest rate and cross currency swaps that provide protection against a potential
decrease in the fair value of fixed-interest financial assets or a potential increase in the fair value of clients time deposits in
local as well as foreign currencies. The net fair value of these swaps at 31 December 2005 was 3,757 (3,622).

Rabobank hedges part of its currency risk exposure relating to available-for-sale shares with fair value hedges in the form of
currency futures contracts. The net fair value of these forward currency contracts at 31 December 2005 was 7 (-54).

For the year ended 31 December 2005, Rabobank recognised a loss of 26 (21) on the portion of the fair value hedges
classified as ineffective.

Cash flow hedges
Rabobank makes almost no use of cash flow hedges.

Net investment hedges

Rabobank uses forward currency contracts to hedge part of the translation risk on net investments in foreign entities.

At 31 December 2005, forward contracts with a total notional amount of 2,922 (2,371) were classified as net investment
hedges. These contracts produced losses totalling 169 (gains totalling 65), which were recognised in equity. No deductions
from equity were made during the year (-).

11.3 Notional amount and fair value

Although the notional amount of certain types of financial instruments provides a basis for comparing instruments that
are included on the balance sheet, it does not necessarily represent the related future cash flows or the fair values of the
instruments. Hence, it does not represent the exposure of Rabobank to credit or exchange risks. The notional amount is the
value of the underlying asset or reference rate or index of a derivative financial instrument and forms the basis for measuring
changes in the value of such instruments. It provides an indication of the volume of transactions executed by Rabobank;

it is not a measure of risk exposure, however. Some derivative financial instruments are standardised in terms of notional
amount or settlement date, having been designed for trading on active markets (i.e. on stock exchanges). Others are
specifically constructed for individual clients and not for trading on an exchange, even though they can be traded at prices
negotiated by buyers and sellers (OTC instruments).




L

A positive fair value represents the cost for Rabobank to replace all contracts on which it will be entitled to receive payment.
Replacement would apply in the event of all counterparties remaining in default. This is the standard method in the industry
for calculating the current credit risk exposure. A negative fair value represents the cost for Rabobank to replace all contracts
on which it will have to make payment. Replacement would apply in the event of Rabobank remaining in default. The total
of positive fair values and the total of negative fair values are disclosed separately in the balance sheet. Derivative financial
instruments are favourable (if passive) or not favourable (if not passive) as a result of swings in market or exchange rates in
relation to their contract values. The total contract or notional amount of derivative financial instruments held, the degree
to which these instruments are favourable or not favourable, and hence the total fair value of the derivative financial assets
and liabilities can sometimes fluctuate significantly.

The table below shows the notional amounts and the positive and negative fair values of Rabobank’s derivative contracts
(including those relating to closed derivative positions).




Contract/

In millions of euros Notional amount Fair value

B 7 Assets Liabilities
At 31 December 2005 o
Derivative financial instruments held for trading
Currency derivative financial instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)
Forward currency contracts 219,249 2,497 2,493
Currency swaps 4,326 362 424
OTC currency options 6,871 6 7
Listed tradeable contracts 7
Options 51 - 7
Total currency derivative financial instruments 230,497 2,865 2,931
Interest rate derivative financial instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)
Interest rate swaps 1,128,741 14,582 15,500
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 63,340 2,040 1,383
Forward rate agreements 209,925 45 55
OTC interest rate options 120,935 1,688 1,738
Total OTC contracts 1,522,941 18,355 18,676
Listed tradeable contracts
Interest rate swaps 226,942 7 13
Total interest rate derivative financial instruments 1,749,883 18,362 18,689
Credit derivative contracts
Credit default swaps 25,452 398 321
Total return swaps 14,311 151 126
'l:c;tal credit derivative financial instruments 39,763 549 447
Precious metals contracts
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)
Forward contracts 4 - -
Total precious metals contracts 4 - -




Contract/

In millions of euros Notional amount Fair value

Assets Liabilities
Equity instruments/index derivative financial
instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts {OTC)
Options 6,383 71 1,704
Listed tradeable contracts
Futures 168 - -
Options 2,927 1,656 -
Total equity instruments/index derivative financial
instruments 9,478 1,727 1,704
Other derivative financial instruments 43 85 -
Total derivative financial assets/liabilities held
for trading 2,029,668 23,588 23,771
Derivative financial instruments classified as fair
value hedges
Forward currency contracts 51 - -
Currency swaps 1,129 - 7
Interest rate options 5,536 - -
Interest rate swaps 29,762 448 3,951
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 7,246 98 352
Total derivative financial instruments classified as
fair value hedges 43,724 546 4,310
Derivative financial instruments classified as cash
flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 36 1 -
Total derivative financial assets/liabilities classified
as hedges 43,760 547 4,310
Total derivative financial assets/liabilities recognised 2,073,428 24,135 28,081

s




Contract/

In millions of euros Notional amount Fair value

Assets Liabilities
At 31 December 2004
Derivative financial instruments held for trading
Currency derivative financial instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)
Forward currency contracts 173,950 7,087 8,457
Currency swaps 3,665 6,056 7,604
OTC currency options 5,989 (444) (278)
Listed tradeable contracts
Currency futures 284 6 1
Options - 1 1
Total currency derivative financial instruments 183,888 12,706 15,785
Interest rate derivative financial instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)
Interest rate swaps 1,267,761 13,403 14,530
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 56,959 2,011 2,060
Forward rate agreements 231,316 87 109
OTC interest rate options 93,774 790 385
Total OTC contracts 1,649,810 16,291 17,084
Listed tradeable contracts
Interest rate futures 275,825 9 6
Interest rate options 2,708 - -
Total interest rate derivative financial instruments 1,928,343 16,300 17,090
Credit derivative contracts
Credit default swaps 18,166 544 270
Total return swaps 18,984 217 135
Total credit derivative financial instruments 37,150 761 405
Precious metals contracts
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)
Forward contracts 14 - 1
Total precious metals contracts 14 - 1




Contract/
In millions of euros Notional amount Fair value
Assets Liabilities

Equity instruments/index derivative financial
instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)
Options _ 25 415 - ~1V§578

25 415 1,3%
Listed tradeable contracts
Options - 832 -
Total equity instruments/index derivative financial
instruments 25 1,247 1,358
Other derivative financial instruments - 187 -
Total derivative financial assets/liabilities held
for trading 2,149,420 31,201 34,639
Derivative financial instruments held as hedges .
Derivative financial instruments classified as fair
value hedges ) }
Currency options 392 - - -
Currency swaps 199 199 254
Interest rate swaps 13,617 564 3741
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 18,156 64 509
Total derivative financial instruments classified as
fair value hedges 32,364 827 4,504
Derivative financial instruments classified as cash
flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 50 7 28
Total derivative financial instruments classified as cash
flow hedges 50 7 28
Total derivative financial assets/liabilities classified
as hedges 32,414 834 4,532
Total derivative financial assets/liabilities recognised 2,181,834 32,035 39,171

—
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12 Loans to customers

At 31 december

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Loans initiated by Rabobank:
Loans to government clients

Leasing 7 8

Payables relating to securities transactions 1,459 2,564

Other 1,046 1,608
Loans to private clients:

Overdrafts 9,280 9,299

Mortgages 200,701 183,207

Leasing 14,472 12,136

Payables relating to securities transactions 22,025 18,570

Other 57,818 48,571
Gross loans to customers 306,808 275,963
Less: changes in loans to customers (2,357} (2,017)
Total loans to customers 304,451 273,946
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Value adjustments in loans to customers
Value adjustments in [oans to customers can be broken down as follows:
At 1 January 2,017 1916
Additional value adjustment for credit losses 826 801
Reversal of value adjustment for credit losses (251) (319)
Defaulting loans written off during the year (364) (399)
Other changes 129 15
Total value adjustments in loans to customers 2,357 2,017




Finance leases
Loans to customers also includes receivables from finance leases, which can be broken down as follows:

L

In millions of euros 2005 2004

Receivables from gross investment in finance leases:

Shorter than 1 year 5,852 5034
Longer than one year but not longer than five years 9,494 8,017
Longer than 5 years 394 305
Total receivables from gross investment in finance leases 15,740 13,356

Unearned deferred finance income from finance leases 1,450 1,353

Net investment in finance leases 14,290 12,003

[ms yn

In millions of euros 2005 2004

Net investment in finance leases can be broken down as follows:
Shorter than 1 year 5317 4,547
Longer than one year but not longer than five years 8,610 7,190

Longer than 5 years 363 272

Net investment in finance leases 14,290 12,003

[ —

The provision for finance leases included in value adjustments amounted to 189 at 31 December 2005 (141).




13 Available-for-sale financial assets

c

2005 2004

in millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total
Loans granted - 2,240 2,240 - 2,619 2,619
Short-term government securities 713 55 768 734 (18) 716
Government bonds 20,714 3,943 24,657 17,498 2,767 20,265
Other debt instruments 8,188 7,611 15,799 11,749 5856 17,605
Equity instruments 155 7,038 7,193 1,351 4122 5473
Other available-for-sale financial assets 407 157 564 350 1,292 1,642
Total available-for-sale financial assets 30,177 21,044 51,221 31682 16,638 48320
|- ]
Gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets:

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Derecognised available-for-sale financial assets 38 27
The changes in available-for-sale financial assets can be broken down as follows:

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Opening balance 48,320 45,109
Translation differences on monetary assets 2,225 (1,011
Additions 16,243 19,046
Disposals (sale and redemption) (15,219) (13,818)
Gains/{losses) from changes in fair value 88 536
Value adjustments (120) (1,309
Other changes (316) (233)
Closing balance 51,221 48,320

—
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14 Held-to-maturity financial assets

2005 2004
In millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted
Government bonds 1,580 - 1,580 1,870 -
Other debt instruments 328 - 328 337 -
Total held-to-maturity financial assets 1,908 - 1,908 2,207 -
The changes in held-to-maturity financial assets can be broken down as follows:
In mitlions of euros 2005
Opening balance L B 2,207
Additions 24
Disposals (sale and redemption) (527)
Value adjustments (13)
Closing balance 1,908
15 Investments in asscciates
In millions of euros 2005
Opening balance 714
Purchases 2,376
Sales (2)
Share of profit of associates before taxation 29
Share of income tax of associates -
Dividends paid 8
Foreign exchange differences 1
Other (139)
Total 2,971
—

At 31 October 2005, Rabobank acquired a 32% interest in Eureko in exchange for its interest in interpofis.




16 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Software developed

In millions of euros Goodwill in-house Insurance portfolio Total
Year ended 31 December 2005

Net opening carrying amount 112 76 16 204
Foreigrn e;éﬁ_:ar;ggaiﬁerences - (MS)AA S - (3)
Additions 42 85 3 130
Acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries 3 (37) - (34)
Other - 7 - 7
Amortisation - (47) (5) (52)
Net closing carrying amount 154 84 14 252
C;;t 154 213 45 412
Accumulated amortisation - (129) (31 (160)
Net carrying amount 7 154 7 84 14 252
o Software developed

In millions of euros Goodwill in-house Insurance portfolio Total
Year ended 31 December 2004

Net opening carrying amount - 32 14 46
Additions 96 67 9 172
Disposals - 2) - (2)
Acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries (14) 1 - (13)
Other 30 4 - 26
Amortisation - (18) (7} (25)
Net closing carrying amount 112 76 16 204
Cost 112 148 42 302
Accumulated amortisation - (72) (26) (98)
Net carrying amount 112 76 16 204

s

Rabobank makes limited use of fully amortised software and other intangible assets.




17 Property and equipment

C

In millions of euros Land and buildings Equipment Total

Year ended 31 December 2005

Net opening carrying amount 2,079 1,234 3,313
Foreign exchange differences 8 7 15
Purchases 104 - 246 o 35_0
Acquisition of subsidiaries 34 23 57
Disposals (48) o (16) (64)
Disposal of subsidiaries (201) (51 (252)
Depreciation (104) (190) (294)
Other 8 (18) (10)
Net closing carrying amount 1,880 1,235 3,115
Cost 3123 2,348 5,471
Accumulated depreciation (1,243) (1,113) (2,356)
Net carrying amount 1,880 1,235 3,115
in millions of euros Land and buildings Equipment Total
Year ended 31 December 2004

Net opening carrying amount 2,099 1,198 3,297
Foreign exchange differences (4) (7) an
Additions 38 447 485
Acquisition of subsidiaries 30 6 36
Disposals (63) (109) (172)
Disposal of subsidiaries (19) (1) Y
Depreciation (104) (213) (317)
Other 102 (87) 15
Net closing carrying amount 2,079 1,234 3,313
Cost 3,269 2,724 5,993
Accumulated depreciation (1,190) (1,490) (2,680)

Net carrying amount 2,079 1,234 3,313

e —




18 Investment properties

[

In millions of euros 2005 2004
_N_eiqgening carrying amount 1,178 1,160
Purchases 105 52
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 5
Sales (90) -
Disposals - )
Qisposal of subsidiaries (395) (37)
Other (30) -
Net closing carrying amount 768 1,178
The fair value and carrying amount are practically equal.

{ ]
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Cost 878 1,250
Accumulated depreciation B (110) (72)
Net carrying amount 768 1178

s

The remaining maturity of investment properties is less than 10 years.




19 Other assets

tn millions of euros 2005 2004
Receivables and prepayments 1,522 1748
Accrued income 265 388
Prepaid taxes (37) 397
Taxes receivable 7 183
Assets held for sale 22 98
Accrued interest o 1,836 1,850
Precious metals, goods and warehouse receipts . 577 343
Assets in progress Y = 96
Capitalised acquisition costs ) - 174
Reinsurance assets o - 388
Other assets ) 1,752 1,441
Less: provision for impairment losses on other assets - 12
Total other assets 6,307 7,118
20 Due to other banks

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Other loans 4,868 5,945
Money market deposits 594 723
Time deposits 71,920 58,530
Other deposits ~ 1871 8,251
Repurchase contracts 20,496 22,898
Total due to other banks 109,749 96,347
21 Due to other banks at fair value through profit and loss

This item relates to time deposits.




22 Due to customers

C ]
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Savings 86,181 78,325
Current accounts/settlement accounts 48,240 43,376
Time deposits 36,162 35377
Repurchase contracts 5,392 3,907
Other due to customers 10,452 16,486
Total due to customers 186,427 177471
—= —

At year-end, client accounts included deposits amounting to 8 (4) that were held as collateral for irrevocable commitments

in connection with letters of import credit.

23 Due to customers at fair value through profit and loss

This item relates to time deposits.

24 Debt securities in issue

—

2005 2004
In millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total
Certificates of deposit - 21,814 21,814 - 21,738 21,738
Commercial paper - 38,071 38,071 - 29,301 29,301
Bonds 50,627 3,453 54,080 40,298 3,245 43,543
Other debt securities 1,468 559 2,027 2,494 444 2,938
Total debt securities 52,095 63,897 115,992 42,792 54,728 97,520




25 Debt securities in issue at fair value through profit and loss

=

2005 i 2004
In millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total
Bonds 17,672 - 17,672 11,300 - 11300
Other debt securities 1,661 - 1,661 640 - 640
]’o_tal debt securities 19,333 - 19,333 11,940 - 11,940
| e—— ——— |
26 Other debts
In millions of euros 2005 éOO4
Payables . 3439 L 1967
Dividends payable i 69 38
Income tax expense 283 291
Accrued interest 2,242 2773
Other 1,313 2,581
Total other debts 7346 o 7,650
27 Other financiat liabilities at fair vaiue through profit and loss
C —
In millions of euros 2005 2(5(74
Short share positions 923 2,567
Shart bond positions 6,418 4,523
Total 7.341 7,090




28 Provisions

Rabobank recognised the following provisions during the year:

(

In millions of euros 2005 )200—4
Restructuring provision ) 343 326
Leave and long-term employment provision 1 2
Legal issues proQision 227 264
Other 360 489
Total 931 1,081
Restructuring provision

Opening balance 326 273
Additional provisions recognised in profit and loss 161 164
Used during the year (144) am
Closing balance 343 326
Leave and long-term employment provision

Opening balance 2 2
Additional provisions recognised in profit and loss - 1
Used during the year n )
Closing balance : 1 2
Legal issues provision

Opening balance 264 264
Additional provisions recognised in profit and loss 65 56
Used, or released during the year (102) (56)
Closing balance 227 264
Other

Opening balance 489 255
Additional provisions recognised in profit and loss 19 365
Used, or released during the year (148) (131)
Closing balance 360 489
Total provisions 931 1,081
r —

Other includes provisions for loss-making contracts, credit guarantees and tax claims.




/=

Maturity of the Rabobank provisions (excluding provisions for employee benefits and_doubtful debts)

Less than More than
In millions of euros 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years Total
At 31 December 2005
Maturity of the provisions 223 618 73 17 931

—

29 Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured for all temporary differences using the ‘liability’ method and an effective tax
rate of 29.19% (30.0%). Changes in the deferred income tax account can be broken down as follows:

=

In millions of euros 2005 2004

Deferred tax assets
Opening balance 1,076 1,046
(Charged)/taken to profit and loss

- in respect of rate changes (44) (64)
- other 65 12
Available-for-sale financial assets _

- remeasurement of fair value 28 -
Foreign exchange differences 58 @
Acquisition/(disposal) of subsidiary 2 9
Other 51 99
Closing balance 1,236 1,076

Deferred tax liabilities

Opening balance 223 211

(Charged)/taken to profit and loss

- in respect of rate changes (5) (1

Available-for-sale financial assets

- remeasurement of fair value 51 57

Cash flow hedges

- remeasurement of fair value 10
Foreign exchange differences 12 8)
Acquisition/(disposal) of subsidiary - (75 (11)

Other

Closing balance

—=




In millions of euras 2005 2004
Deferred tax assets

Pensions and other post-employment benefits 497 683
Value adjustments - 47 41
Other provisions 161 66
Hedged client deposits 176 337
Carry-forward losses 374 104
Property and equipment (1) (16)
Other temporary differences 8) (139)
Total deferred tax assets 1,236 1,076
Deferred tax liabilities

Pension and other post-employment benefits (2) 8
Value adjustments 1 1
Other provisions - 1
Cash flow hedges 1 1
Carry-forward losses - 5 20
Other temporary differences 314 192
Total deferred tax assets 329 223
o )
The deferred tax expense relates to the following temporary differences:

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Property and equipment 5 2
Pension and other post-employment benefits 1 (5)
Value adjustments 4 (10)
Other provisions 18 3
Carry-forward losses (34) (2)
Other temporary differences (20) 63
Eeferred tax expense (26) 51

—

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax items relate to the same taxation authority.




30 Employee benefits

=

In miltions of euros 2005 2004
Pension plans ) 838 1,247
Other post-employment benefits L 74 276
Other employee benefits 525 435
Total pension liabilities 1,437 1,958

C

30.1 Pension plans

Rabobank has implemented several pension plans covering a significant percentage of its employees. Most of the plans are

average pay defined benefit plans, some of which are administered by pension funds. The assets of the fund-administered
plans are held independent of Rabobank assets and are managed by the trustees of the funds. These plans are valued each
year by independent actuaries using the method prescribed by IFRS. The most recent actuarial valuations were carried out

at the end of 2005.

The weighted average of the principal actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of the provision for defined benefit plans

at 31 December (% per annum) are:

—

2005 2004
Discount rate 4 ~ ﬁ
Expected salary accrual rate B 3 3
Consumer price inflation (indexation) 2 2
Expected return on investments B 5 5.25
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Present value of liabilities administered by funds B 9,676 L 8593
Fair value of plan assets (8,739) (7,820)
- 937 . 773
Present value of liabilities not administered by funds 1 8
Unrecognised actuarial gains/{losses) B (62 466
Unrecognised backservice costs (38) -
Net liabilities ) 838 1,247




In millions of euros 2005 2004
Present value of liabilities administered by funds

Present value of entitlements at 1 January 8,593 8,137
Interest 353 391
Increase in entitlements during the year 355 392
Benefits paid (126) (128)
Pension plan changes 309 -
Deconsclidation effects (992) -
Expected present value of entitlements at 31 December 8,492 8,792
Actuarial result 1,184 (199)
Present value of entitlements at 31 December 9,676 8,593
Fair value of plan assets

Fair value of assets at 1 January B 7,820 6,961
Expected income from investments 376 387
Premiums 947 316
Benefits paid (126) (128)
Deconsolidation effects (904) -
Expected fair value of assets at 31 December 8,113 7,536
Actuarial result 626 284
Fair value of assets at 31 December 8,739 7,820
Actual income from investments

Expected income from investments 376 387
Actuarial result 626 284
XCtuaI income from investments 1,002 671
The amounts recognised in consolidated profit and loss for the year are as follows:

= 1
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Costs based on period of employment during the year 355 392
Interest on liabilities 353 391
Expected income from plan assets (376) (387)
Pension plan changes 271 -
Gains and losses on discounts, settlements and costs 17 17
Total cost for defined benefit plans 620 413




30.2 Other post-employment benefits
Besides pension plans, Rabobank has a number of other post-employment benefit plans. The recognition method and

measurement frequency are the same as for the defined benefit plans.

In addition to the assumptions used for the pension plans, the principal actuarial assumption used is a 4% increase in

healthcare costs.

—

In millions of euros

Present value of liabilities not administered by funds

Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses)

Net liabilities

—

The amounts recognised in consolidated profit and loss are as foliows:

s

In millions of euros

Costs based on employment period during the year

Interest on liabilities

Actuarial result

Release of provision

Total costs

L




31 Subordinated debt

L ]

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Subordinated debt 2,645 2129
—= — 1

This subordinated debt includes loans relating to Trust Preferred Securities | and I, Rabobank Nederland, ACCBank and
FGH Bank N.V.

C —

In millions of euros 2005 2004

Trust Preferred Securities I and Il

At 1 January 1,927 2,037
Revaluation and other adjustments 206 (110)
Repayments (650) -
At 31 December 1,483 1,927

In 1999, 26 mitlion non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities with an expected distribution of 7% were issued by Rabobank
Capital Funding Trust, Delaware, a group company of Rabobank Nederland. The total proceeds from this issue amounted to
650. As from 31 December 2004, Rabobank Capital Funding Trust has the right, after receiving prior written approval from
De Nederlandsche Bank, ta repurchase these Trust Preferred Securities on each distribution date (once a quarter). The trust
exercised this right in the year under review to repay the loan.

In 2003, 1.75 million non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities were issued by Rabobank Capital Funding Trust Il, Delaware,
a group company of Rabobank Nederland. The expected distribution is 5.26% until 31 December 2013, after which the
expected distribution is equal to the three-month USD LIBOR plus 1.6275%. The total proceeds from this issue amounted to
USD 1,750 mitlion. As from 31 December 2013, these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution

date {which is once a quarter) after prior written approval is received from De Nederlandsche Bank,

Rabobank Nederland issued a variable interest rate loan of 1,000 in 2005, with the rate subject to review every three
months.

The subordinated loan of ACCBank is a loan of 63 bearing interest at a variable rate. The loan matures in 2008. The interest
expense recognised in 2005 was 1.9.

The subordinated loan of FGH Bank NV consists of five loans. Two loans of 7.5 and 5 respectively, each bearing a variable
rate of interest and repayable in 2011. A loan of 10 bearing a current interest rate of 6.25%, increasing to 6.75% after five
years. The loan matures in 2012. A loan of 40 bearing a fixed rate of interest of 6% and repayable in 2012. A further loan of
0.7 bearing a variable rate of interest and repayable in 2012.




32 Contingencies and ccmmitments

Credit related liabilities

Credit granting liabilities represent the unused portions of funds authorised for the granting of credit in the form of loans,

guarantees, letters of credit and other lending refated financial instruments. Rabobank’s credit risk exposure from credit

granting liabilities consists of potential losses amounting to the unused portion of the authorised funds. The total expected

loss is lower than the total unused funds, however, as credit granting liabilities are subject to the clients in question

continuing to meet specific standards of creditwarthiness, Guarantees represent irrevocable undertakings that, provided

certain conditions are met, Rabobank will make payments on behalf of clients if they are unable to meet their financial

obligations to third parties. Rabobank also accepts credit granting liabilities in the form of credit facilities made available to

ensure that clients'liquidity requirements can be met, but which have not yet been drawn upon.

[

In millions of euros 2005
Guarantees 7,021 6,550
Credit granting liabilities 60,636 55,075
Letters of credit e 1,199
Contingent liabilities 18 43
Total credit related and contingent liabilities 68,898 62,867
——
Liabilities relating to operating leases
Rabobank has taken on various operating lease contracts as lessee. The future net minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases can be broken down as follows:
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Shorter than 1 year 7 7
Longer than one year but not longer than five years 13 17
Longer than 5 years - 1
Total liabilities relating to operating leases 20 25

C




Payments receivable from operating leases

Rabobank has taken on various operating lease contracts as lessor. The future net minimum lease payments receivable from

non-cancellable operating leases can be broken down as follows:

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Earlier than 1 year 277 226
Later than one year but not later than five years 795 647
Later than 5 years 99 81
Total payments receivable from operating leases 1,171 954
33 Equity

Equity of Rabobank Nederland and iocal Rabobanks

T ]
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Foreign currency translation reserve 93 71
Revaluation reserve for available-for-sale financial assets 184 478
Hedging reserve for cash flow hedges 1 -
Retained earnings 15,172 13,469
Total reserves and retained earnings at year end 15,450 14,018
Foreign currency translation reserve

Opening balance 71 127
Currency translation differences emerging during the year 22 (56)
Closing balance 93 71
Revaluation reserve available-for-sale financial assets

Opening balance 478 212
Net gains/(losses) from fair value changes (174) 491
Deferred tax assets and liabilities 12 (121)
Losses reclassified under profit as a result of impairment losses - 2
Net (gains)/losses reclassified under profit at disposal (132) (nmn
Other - 5
Closing balance 184 478

s




In millions of euros 2005 2004

Hedging reserve for cash flow hedges

Opening balance -

Gains/(losses) from fair value changes 1

Closing balance 1

Retained earnings

Opening balance _ 13469 12,162
Net profit ) 2,083 1,793
Payment on Rababank Member Certificates and Trust Preferred Securities (322) (237)
Other (58) (249)
Closing balance 15,172 13,469
Total reserves and retained earnings 15,450 14,018

C )

34 Rabobank Member Certificates issued by group companies

Members’ capital relates to the Member Certificates issued in 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2005. In 2000, Rabobank Ledencertificaten
N.V. (RLC), a group company of Rabobank Nederland, issued 40 million shares. The total proceeds from this issue amounted
to 1,000. In 2000, RLC granted Rabobank Nederland a 900 deep-subordinated loan with a term of 31 years.

In 2001, RLC issued an additional 60 million shares. The total proceeds of this issue amounted to 1,575. In 2001, RLC granted
Rabobank Nederland a 1,350 deep-subordinated loan with a term of 30 years. In 2002, RLC il issued an additional 17 million
shares. The total proceeds of this issue amounted to 1,747. In 2002, RLC !l granted Rabobank Nederland a 1,487 deep-subor-
dinated loan with a term of 32 years. In 2005, RLC !l issued an additional 40 million shares. The total proceeds of this issue
amounted to 2,000. In 2005, RLC Il granted Rabobank Nederland a 1,999 deep-subordinated loan with a term of 35 years.
At year-end 2005, the number of shares held by members and employees was 98,576,672 (98,388,376) with a net asset
value of 2,530 (2,528), 16,277,476 (16,361,759} shares with a net asset value of 1,713 (1,725) and 39,478,422 shares with a net
asset value of 1,974,

Subject to the prior written approval of De Nedertandsche Bank, the loan may be repaid ahead of schedule on 29 June
2006 and every subseguent 29 June. The loan granted by RLC Il can be repaid ahead of schedule on 29 December 2012.
The loan granted by RLC Il can be repaid early on 29 September 2035 and on the 29th of the third month of every quarter
thereafter.

Since the proceeds of the issue are available to Rabobank on a perpetual and highly subordinated basis (also subordinate
to the Trust Preferred Securities) and since in principle no distribution is made if the consolidated profit and loss account of
Rabobank shows a loss for any financial year, the issue proceeds, insofar as they have been lent on to Rabobank Nederland,
are recognised in equity in proportion to the number of shares held by members and employees.

The distribution per certificate in 2005 was 1.25 for RLC |, 4.5 for RLC Il and 0.3 for RLC Il RLC has the right not to make a
distribution.




Rabobank Member Certificates

 —

in millions of euros 2005 2004

Changes during the year:

Opening balance 3,840 3,853
Rabobank Member Certificates issued and cancelled during the year 1,971 (13)
Closing balance 5811 3,840
=

35 Trust Preferred Securities Il to VI issued by group companies

In 2004, four tranches of non-cumulative variable-interest shares were issued.

- Rabobank Capital Funding Trust Ill, Delaware, a group company of Rabobank Nederland, issued 1.50 million non-cumula-
tive Trust Preferred Securities. The expected distribution is 5.254% until 21 October 2016. For the period 21 October 2016
to 31 December 2016 inclusive, the expected distribution is equal to the USD LIBOR interpolated for the period, plus
1.5900%. The trust has the right not to make a distribution. Thereafter, the expected distribution is equal to the three-
month USD LIBOR plus 1.5900%. The total proceeds from this issue amounted to USD 1,500 mitlion. As from 21 October
2016, these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date (which is once a quarter) after prior
written approval is received from De Nederlandsche Bank.

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust I, Delaware, a group company of Rabobank Nederland, issued 350 thousand non-cumu-
lative Trust Preferred Securities. The expected distribution is 5.556% until 31 December 2019, after which the expected
distribution is equal to the six-month GBP LIBOR plus 1.4600%. The trust has the right not to make a distribution. The total
proceeds from this issue amounted to GBP 350 million. As from 31 December 2019, these Trust Preferred Securities can
be repurchased on each distribution date (which is once every half-year) after prior written approval is received from De
Nederlandsche Bank.

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust V, Delaware, a group company of Rabobank Nederland, issued 250 thousand non-cumu-
lative Trust Preferred Securities. The expected distribution is equal to the three-month BBSW plus 0.6700% until 31
December 2014 inclusive, after which the expected distribution is equal to the three-month BBSW plus 1.6700%. The
trust has the right not to make a distribution. The total proceeds from this issue amounted to AUD 250 million. As from 37
December 2014, these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date (which is once a quarter)
after prior written approval is received from De Nederlandsche Bank.

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust V), Delaware, a group company of Rabobank Nederland, issued 250 thousand non-cumu-
lative Trust Preferred Securities. The expected distribution is 6.415% until 31 December 2014, after which the expected
distribution is equal to the three-month BBSW plus 1.6700%. The trust has the right not to make a distribution. The total
proceeds from this issue amounted to AUD 250 million. As from 31 December 2014, these Trust Preferred Securities can
be repurchased on each distribution date (which is once a quarter) after prior written approval is received from De
Nederlandsche Bank.




A distribution becomes due on the Trust Preferred Securities issued in 1999 and 2003 included under subordinated loans if:

(i) the most recently audited and adopted consolidated financial statements of Rabobank Nederland show that

Rabobank Group realised a net profit (after tax and extraordinary expenses) in the previous year; or

(i) a distribution is made on securities that are more subordinated (such as Rabobank Member Certificates and

Rabobank Member Certificates Il) or on securities of equal rank (pari passu); subject to the proviso that no distribution

becomes due should the De Nederlandsche Bank object (for example, if Rabobank’s solvency ratio is below 8%).

The condition stated under (i) does not apply to Trust Preferred Securities issued in 2004. The other conditions do apply.

If Rabobank Group realises a profit, Rabobank Nederland can make a distribution on these securities at its own discretion.

Trust Preferred Securities

s

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Changes during the year:

Opening balance 1,877 .
Issued - 1879
Revaluation 215 {2)
Closing balance 2,092 187
36 Minority interests

This item relates to shares held by third parties in subsidiaries and other group companies.

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Opening balance 3,269 3,325
Currency translation differences 328 (152)
Other changes (601) 96
Closing balance 2,996 3,269

 ——




37 Interest

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Interest incomei

Cash and cash equivalents 96 106
Due from other banks 2,333 1513
Trading financial assets 1,369 1,034
Other financial assets at fair value 269 215
Derivative financial instruments 613 227
Loans to ‘c_ustomers 14,837 13,432
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,994 1,982
;eld—to—maturity financial assets 69 85
Other L 521 (14)
Total interest income 22,101 18,580
Interest expense

Due to other banks 4,425 3,482
Trading financial assets 15 -
Due to customers 4,567 3919
Debt securities in issue 3,464 2,379
Derivative financial instruments 2,239 1,642
Q‘ther debts 221 402
Other 763 561
Total interest expense 15,694 12,385
Ngt interest 6,407 6,195




38 Fees and commission

Fee and commission income

=

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Asset management . . m 605
Insurance commission ~ 371 361
Lending 20 245
Purchase and sale of other financial assets L 370 389
Payment services B 407 374
Custodial fees and securities services o ) 38 37_
Other transactions involving financial instruments . 108 104
Other commission income 414 179
Total fee and commission income 2,639 2,294
Fee and commission expense
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Asset management B 186 o 149
Insurance commission - 2
109 72

Purchase and sale of other financial assets

Payment services

Custodial fees and securities services

Other commission expense

Total fee and commission expense

Net fees and commission

C




39 Income from associates

C =]
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Profit of associates 226 99
Of the profit of 226 (99), 128 (-) relates to discontinuation/disposal of interests.

Key figures of associates are as follows:

Total assets at year end 98,285 20,507
Total liabilities at year end 87,756 17,308
Total income 3,749 4,039
Net result 306 297
Interest of Rabobank in associates 98 99
40 Trading income

[ —
in millions of euros 2005 2004
Foreign currencies 31 25
Debt instruments and interest rate derivative financial instruments 247 238
Equity instruments 89 71
Other trading income 6 (1)
Total trading income 373 333
 oom— —

The trading income also includes gains and losses on spot and forward contracts, options, futures and assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies.

41 Net income from non-trading financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Net income 20 (90)
— —




42 Income from Interpolis insurance business

—

In millions of euros

Income from Interpolis insurance business

C

On 31 October 2005, the interest in Interpolis was transferred in order to obtain an interest in Eureko. This did not generate

any cash flows. The narmal profit of Interpolis for the period 1 January to 31 October 2005 inclusive was 308 (214).

Profit before tax for the same period was 429 (income 1,023, expense 594) (303 (income 999, expense 696)). The income

tax expense on this profit came to 121 (89). The gain realised on the disposal was 78 before tax and 45 after tax.

From 1 January to 31 October 2005, Interpolis generated the following cash flows: 900 from operating activities, minus 860

from investing activities and minus 40 from financing activities.

43 Other

As well as rent from real estate investments and income from operating leases, other includes the results on effects that

cannat be allocated to individual categories of the profit and loss account. The adoption of IFRS has led to a sharp increase

in the volatility of this portion of other income. The change in other income is almost entirely explained by this,

44 Staff costs

—

In millions of euros

2005 2004

Wages and salaries

2637 2569

Social security contributions and insurance costs

212 214

Pension costs for defined contribution plans

Pension costs for defined benefit plans

29 18

620 413

Other post-employment benefits

(197) 26

Other employee costs

579 443

Total staff costs

3,880 3683

—=

Expressed in FTEs, the average number of employees was 47,876 (50,533).




45 Other administrative expenses

This item includes office supplies, [T expenses, postage, advertising, rent, maintenance of buildings, etc.

(

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Other administrative expenses 1,953 2,173
| 1
46 Depreciation and amortisation

—— -}
In millions of euros 2005 2004
Depreciation and amortisation 331 321
[ ]
47 Value adjustments

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Due from other banks 1 15
Loans to customers 575 481
Receipts less write-offs (41) (64)
ged'i‘_t_r_elatedilia bi|iti‘e§ (11) 19
Available-for-sale financial assets - 27
Other assets (7) 1
Total value adjustments 517 479

——

The risk expenses related to lending were at an all-time low in 2004, while in 2005 they were slightly above the long-term

average. This is mainly the result of a number of large new provisions formed abroad.




48 Taxation

s ]

In millions of euros 2005 2004

Current income tax

- year under review 634 . 594
- prior years 9) 43
Deferred tax o (26) 51
Share of income tax expense of associates - (15)
Taxation B 599 773

The taxation on operating profit of Rabobank differs from the theoretical amount based on Dutch standard tax rates.

The reconciliation between the two amounts is shown below.

[ 1

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Profit before taxation 2,682 2,566
Tax exempt income and income to which tax treaties apply (623) (203)
Income from Interpolis insurance business (353) (214
Non-deductible expenses 114 51
Other . 58 (28)
Tax losses not recognised in prior years (151) (10)
Taxable income 1,727 2162
Income tax expense based on a rate of 31.5% (34.5%) 544 745
Effect of change in tax rates 39 63
Effect of different tax rates in other countries and miscellaneous effects 16 (35)
Taxation 599 773

In 2005, the Dutch government reduced the standard rate of income tax from 34.5% to 31.5%.




49 Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and joint ventures

The disposals relate to Interpolis and Stroeve.

The assets and liabilities acquired and disposed of, as well as the corresponding goodwill and fees, can be broken down

as follows:

—

Acquisitions Disposals
Joint Joint

In millions of euros Subsidiaries ventures Total Subsidiaries ventures Total
At 31 December 2005
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - 1 - - -
Due from other banks 18 - 18 7127 - 7127
Trading financial assets - - - 1 - 1
Other financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss - - - 9,144 - 9,144
Derivative financial instruments - - - 82 - 82
Loans to customers - - - 1,043 - 1,043
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - 4,356 - 4,356
Investments in associates - - - 33 - 33
Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - 34 - 34
Property and equipment 3 - 3 252 - 252
Investment property - - - 395 - 395
Other assets - - - 1,444 - 1,444
Total assets 22 - 22 23,911 - 2391

s

—]




Acquisitions o Disposals B
Joint Joint

In millions of euros Subsidiaries ventures Total Subsidiaries ventures Total
At 31 December 2005 B
Liabilities - j
Due to other banks 18 - 18 564 - 564
Due to customers - - - 1,022 - 1,022
Insurance liabilities - - - 19,157 - 19,157
Derivative financial instruments and other
trade liabilities - - - 6 - 6
Other debts - - - 740 - 740
Other liabilities 1 - 1 - - -
Provisions - - - 49 - 49
Current tax 1 - 1 129 - 129
Deferred tax liabilities - - - 175 - 175
Liabilities relating to employee benefits - - - 50 - 50
Total liabilities 20 - 20 21,892 - 21,892
Net assets acquired/disposed of 2 - 2 2,019 - 2,019
o )

Acquisitions Disposals

Joint Joint

In millions of euros Subsidiaries ventures Total Subsidiaries  ventures Total
At 31 December 2005
Gain/(loss) from disposal (after tax relating
to Interpolis and Stroeve) - - - 102 - 102
Total acquisition fee/gain on sales 5 - 5 - - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
acquired/disposed of (1) (1) - - -
Total 4 - 4 102 - 102




50 Transactions with related parties

Two parties are considered related if one exercises contro! or has significant influence over the other party (regarding
finance or operating decisions). In the normal course of business, Rabobank conducts a wide variety of transactions with
related entities, involving different types of loans, deposits and transactions in foreign currencies. Transactions between
related parties also include transactions with subsidiaries, associates, joint venture entities, shareholders and senior
management, as well as transactions between subsidiaries. All these transactions were at arm's length. In accordance with
IAS 24:4, intragroup transactions are eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In the normal course of Rabobank’s business operations, banking transactions are carried out with related parties.
These involve loans, deposits and transactions in foreign currencies. All these transactions were at arm’s fength and against
market prices. The volumes of related party transactions, year-end outstanding balances and the corresponding income

and expenses during the year are given below:

Associates Other related parties

In millions of euros 2005 2004 2005 2004
Loans

- outstanding at beginning of the year 1,023 1,013 6 2
- granted during the year - 205 28 9
- repaid during the year (990) (195) (12) (5)
Loans outstanding at end of the year 33 1,023 22 6
Due to other banks and due to customers

- outstanding at beginning of year 1,002 668 1 -
- recognised during the year 531 346 - 1
- repaid during the year (344) {(12) (1) -
Deposits at 31 December 5,969 1,002 - 1
Other liabilities 66 67 145 -

Credit liabilities and other guarantees issued by Rabobank 1,054 982 2,036 1,786




51 Supervisory Board and Executive Board

The members of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board are listed on page 93 of these consolidated financial state-

ments. The benefits for members and former members of the Executive Board came to 7.9 in 2005 (8.7). This amount is

included under staff costs. It can be broken down as follows:

In millions of euros ' ﬁ*ZOOS 2004
Salaries 7 5.4 53
Pension contributions 0.6 07.5
Performance related benefits 1.4 1.8
Other ) 05 1.1
Total 7.9 87

The total benefits for current and former members of the Supervisory Board amounted to 1.2 (1.2).

At year-end 2005, loans and advances granted to members of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board totalled 1.4

(1.9) respectively 3.4 (3.8).




52 Principal subsidiaries and associates

Subsidiaries

Name Share Voting rights
Netherlands

De Lage Landen International B.V. 100% 100%
FGH Bank 100% 100%
Gilde International B.V. 100% 100%
O.W.M. Rabobanken B.A. 100% 100%
Obvion N.V. 50% 70%
Rabohypotheekbank N.V. 100% 100%
Rabobank Ledencertificaten N.V. | to [li 100% 100%
Rabo Merchant Bank N.V. 100% 100%
Rabo Vastgoed B.V. 100% 100%
Rabo Wielerploegen B.V. 100% 100%
Raiffeisenhypotheekbank N.V. 100% 100%
Robeco Groep N.V. 100% 100%
Schretlen & Co N.V. 100% 100%
Other Euro zone countries

ACCBank Plc 100% 100%
North America

Rabobank Capital Funding LCC 1 & If 100% 100%
Rabobank Capital Funding Trust Il to VI 100% 100%
Utrecht America Holdings Inc. 100% 100%
Australia and New Zealand

Rabobank Australia Limited 100% 100%
Rabobank New Zealand Limited 100% 100%
Associates

Name Share Voting rights
Netherlands

Eureko B.V. 37% 37%
Rest of Europe

Bank Sarasin & Cie S.A. 28% 28%
BGZ S.A. 35% 35%

C




53 Reverse repurchase and securities borrowing contracts

Reverse repurchase and securities borrowing contracts concluded by Rabobank are included under 'Due from other banks'

and 'Loans to customers’. At 31 December, they amounted to:

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Due to other banks 36,758 26,134
Loans to customers 23,484 21134
Total reverse repurchase and securities borrowing contracts 60,242 47,268

c

Under the terms of the reverse repurchase and securities borrowing contracts, Rabobank receives collateral that it can
pledge or sell to third parties. The total fair value of the securities received under the terms of the contracts was 61,391 at
31 December 2005 (48,481). In accordance with the contract terms, collaterat with a total fair value of 12,445 was pledged
or sold in 2005 (13,978).

54 Repurchase agreements and security lending contracts

Repurchase and securities lending contracts concluded by Rabobank are included under 'Cue from other banks’ and 'Due
to customers. At 31 December, they amounted to:

In millions of euros 2005 2004
Due to other banks 20,496 22,898
Due to customers 5,392 3,907
Total repurchase and securities leasing contracts 25,888 26,805

At 31 December 2005, interest-bearing securities with a carrying amount of 26,382 had been provided as collateral
for repurchase and similar contracts (27,493). In general, the counterparty has the right to resell or repledge the securities.




55 Events after the balance sheet date

Untill now no events after the balance sheet date have occurred,
The publication of these consolidated financial statements was approved by the Executive Board on 8 March 2006.

Executive Board

Bert Heemskerk (H.), chairman

Rik baron van Slingelandt (DJM.G)
Hans ten Cate (J.C)

Bert Bruggink (A.)

Piet van Schijndel (PJ.A)

Piet Moerland (PW.)

Supervisory Board

Lense Koopmans (L}, chairman
Antoon Vermeer (AJAM), deputy chairman
Sjoerd Eisma (S.E), secretary
Leo Berndsen (LJM)

Bernard Bijvoet (B)

Marinus Minderhoud {M.)

Paul Overmars (PFM)

Hans van Rossum (JAAM)
Herman Scheffer (H.C)

Martin Tielen (MJM)

Aad Veenman (AW)

Arnold Walravens (AHCM)
Teun de Boon (T.)




Auditors report

Introduction

We have audited the consolidated financial statements for the year 2005
which are part of the financial statements of Cotperatieve Centrale
Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A. (Rabobank Nederland). These consolida-
ted financial statements are the responsibility of the Executive Board of
Rabobank Nederland. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

Scope

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards general-
ly accepted in the Netherlands. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifi-
cant estimates made by the Executive Board of Rabobank Nederland, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for

our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the company as at December 31, 2005
and of the result and the cash flows for the year then ended in accor-
dance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the EU and comply with the financia! reporting requirements included
in Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code as far as applicable.

Furthermore we have established to the extent of our competence that
the annual report is consistent with the consolidated financial state-

ments.

Utrecht, 8 March 2006

for Ernst & Young Accountants

N.M. Pul ChrJ. Westerman




Colophon

Published by
Rabobank Nederland

Communications

Art direction and design
Eden Design & Cormunication, Amsterdam
Borghouts Design, Haarlem

Photographs

Tjeerd Fonk, Amsterdam

Internet

Info.nl, Amsterdam
SiteManagement

C&F Report, Amsterdam

Production co-ordination
Kobalt BV, Amstelveen

Prepress
NEROC'VGM, Amsterdam

Printers

Thieme, Amsterdam

Materials used

This document was printed using environmentally friendly materials.
The ink was mineral oil-free Novavit® Easy Mix Bio and the paper 250
gram and 130 gram Arctic the Volume (FSC certified).

Publication
This publication, the financial statements and the separate edition

‘Rabobank Group Annual Report 2005 together form the annual report,

the financial statements and other information of the Coperatieve
Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A.

Filing

After they have been adopted, the annual report 2005, the financial
statements 2005 and other information will be filed at the offices of
Trade Registry of the Chamber of Commerce and Industries under
number 30.046.259.

Disclaimer
This report is a translation of the Dutch report. In the event of any

conflict in interpretation, the Dutch original takes precedence.

Annual Reports
Rabobank Group publishes the following annual/interim reports:
« Annual Report 2005
(in Dutch and English);
« Consolidated Financial Statements 2005
{in Dutch and English);
- Annual Sustainability Report 2005
(in Dutch and English);
- Interim Report 2006
(in Dutch and in English, to be published in September 2006).

For copies of these reports please contact Rabobank Nederland,
Communications.

Croeselaan 18, 3521 CB Utrecht

Postbus 17100, 3500 HG Utrecht

Telephone 030-21622 98

Fax 030-2161916

E-rail jaarverslagen@rn.rabobank.n)

All Annual Reports are also available on the internet:
www.rabobankgroep.nl/jaarverslagen







05 2006

EE—
[T

||

Rabobank




